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Ronson Europe N.V.
Letter from the CEO

To our shareholders

The year 2013 was characterized by mixed trendthénglobal economy. With the lingering effects bé t2008
financial crisis still impacting many countries angl the world and with another year of relativelggnant growth in
Europe, the Polish economy continued to generatetgrand general stability. In 2013, the Polishrexay grew by
approximately 1.6%, while unemployment stayed apreximately 13%, with many of the larger Polishiest
maintaining rates around 5%. According to many ecasts, the Polish economy is expected to growrtntter 2.5%
to 3.5% in 2014.

During 2013, the residential market in Poland shibwigns of growth on the demand side and equilibrhetween
supply and demand. In 2013, construction commenoet?7,000 new residential units in Poland, whih decrease
of over 10% compared to 2012. The total numberudtimg permits granted during 2013 amounted to,@30, which
was 16% lower than the year before. Decreasing Igugtarted to become visible in a number of majotidh
metropolitan areas since the third quarter 2012erwthe overall number of apartments available forcipase
decreased compared to the second quarter 2012ndiease in demand and not sufficient supply slaidereverse the
previous years’ - trend of lower real estate priddswever, due to new restrictive regulations aadKing policies
only the most credible developers were able toreefinancing for new projects and were able toease supply.

The Company’s highlights for 2013 include:
- pre-sale of 572 units which exceeded the Compapigiss for 2013 and represented the highest yeartiyub in

Ronson’s history;
- delivery of 474 units to our customers, which wis® ghe best annual result in Ronson’s history;

- completion of construction works on 4 projects (@akl, Chilli 1, Verdis 1l and Naturalis 111}, reulting in receipt
of permits for occupancy for 294 units;
- commencement of construction of 6 projects (EsprdgsVerdis Ill, Sakura Ill, Chilli Ill, Impressidl and

Tamka), representing a total of 688 units (anotbeord for the Company);
- afurther strengthening of Ronson’s brand name, and
- adapting the Company operations to comply withrie Polish Developers’ Law.

During 2013, in an environment of still high conipeh, the Company sold 572 units with a total eabf PLN 221.8
million while in 2012 the Company sold 380 unitsttwihe total value of PLN 153.0 million. Net profir 2013
amounted to PLN 19.0 million while in 2012 it améeohto PLN 31.7 million.

We continue to believe that in the medium and ltergn, the residential Polish market holds greatnise. Studies
continue to suggest that over 4 million new unité meed to be built in the coming years in order Poland to reach
the EU27 average number of units per 1,000 inhatsitdn addition, the on-going migration of Polistizens from

rural to urban areas will create further demandafmew housing stock. With current annual productapping out at
approximately 160,000 units the long-term shortagehe residential market will remain pronounced ahould

continue to create strong residential developmppbaunities.

We believe the Company is in an advantageous posit benefit from current market conditions. Wdidwe the
Company currently enjoys the following advantages:

- astrong capital structure allowing the Compangtéot and finance new projects;

- apipeline of projects at attractive locations;

- the ability to increase and decrease the sizeiandg of specific projects based on perceived miadkenand,;

- ahighly professional staff, and

- aknown brand in Warsaw and an emerging brandherd®olish cities.
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Letter from the CEO

The advantages mentioned above should give the @oynthe opportunity to significantly expand thelscef its
operations and sales, and ultimately to rank antahgdarger residential development companiesoiarii.

We wish to thank all of our shareholders for thesntinued support and confidence in our abilitycéary out our
corporate vision.

Sincerely,
Shraga Weisman
CEO
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Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Supervisory Board report

We are pleased to present the Financial Stateréfenson Europe N.V. for the financial year 2048;ompanied by
the report of the Management Board. Ernst & Yourmgduntants LLP have audited the Financial Statesnant
issued an unqualified Auditor's Report. We recormuiitie shareholders to adopt the Financial Statesvaenpresented.

We concur with the Management Board’s proposahaksrt up on page 116 to allocate the net profitHeryear 2013
amounting to PLN 19,026 thousand to Retained egsnin

Supervision

During 2013, there were frequent Supervisory Baand Management Board meetings and conference daits)g
which, among other topics, the following items wdiscussed:

e the Company’s business strategy;

e new dividend policy;

e the strengthening of the Company’s financial positi

e potential sources of long term capital, includisguiance of long-term bonds and new shares;

e performance review of the Management Board anduetiah of the Company’s remuneration policy;
e the corporate governance structure of the Company;

e risk management and processes undertaken during#ng

e  group restructuring anticipating Polish tax regolas;

e evaluation and re-appointment of the Company’statsliand

o financial results and other related issues.

The Supervisory Board (including its committees) mleven times to discuss, among other thingsfuhetioning of
the Management Board. The Board (Audit committée) anet with the external auditors without the pres of the
Management Board. All Supervisory Board meetindd he2013 were attended by the majority of the rhers of the
Supervisory Board.

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Come@tare to supervise, monitor and advise the ManageBoard and
Supervisory Board on all matters related to risknagement, audit, control and compliance to relevarancial
legislation and regulations. The Audit Committes lagso been involved in the process of assessmgédiformance
and costs of the external auditors, with whom thamittee met twice during the year.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration and Nwmating Committee to: (i) propose to the SupervisBoard

remuneration of the members of the Management Bdaoluding a review and monitoring of the Groupgal

remuneration policy, (ii) advise the SupervisoryaBbon matters relating to the nominations of tatipervisory and
Management Board members. The Remuneration andrisbintg Committee regularly reviews the Supervisdoard

profile, its effectiveness and composition. The outtee also reviews the performance of the memiwoérshe

Management Board.

Internal Auditor

The Supervisory Board appointed an internal audiborthe Company, which - upon request — examiravant
control procedures within the Company in specifieas.
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Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the Financitdrig¢ats for the year ended 31 December 2013. Tireseial
statements were discussed at a Supervisory Boagtingattended by the auditors.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

On 25 November 2013, Mr Frank Roseen resigned psr8igory Director of the Company.

Composition of the Management Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdeisl lon 27 June 2013, Mr Pierre Decla was appointethber of
the Management Board and managing director B fiarm of four years. On 25 November 2013, Mr Deelsighed
from his position.

During the upcoming General Meeting of Shareholdiénsill be proposed to appoint Mr Peter Dudolens& a new
member of the Management Board of the Company. @nsame date, Mr Israel Greidinger will step downaa
member of the Management Board of the Company.Bdad of the Supervisory Directors would like tqeess its
gratitude to Mr Greidinger for his many years ofitiution to the development and growth of the @any.

5 March 2014
For the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall,
Chairman
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Corporate Governance
Governance structure

The Company is a Dutch public company with a ligton the Warsaw Stock Exchange (‘WSE’). For thison the
Company is subject to both Dutch and Polish rutesragulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Govern@ocemittee released the Dutch Corporate Governaoce Gt
was updated on 10 December 2008 by the Corporater@ance Code Monitoring Committee (“the Commitjete’
take effect as of the financial year 2009. The tedlaDutch Corporate Governance Code (‘the Codeftains
principles and best practice provisions for managgnboards, supervisory boards, shareholders amefrglemeetings
of shareholders, financial reporting, auditorscldisure, compliance and enforcement standards.Cidmemittee has
published its most recent monitoring report in Met02013.

Dutch companies listed on a regulated stock exahamthe EU/EER are required under Dutch law teld&e in their
annual reports whether or not they apply the pioris of the Code and, if not, to explain the reasahy. The Code
provides that if a company's general meeting ofedi@ders explicitly approves the corporate goveceastructure and
policy and endorses the explanation for any demiatiom the best practice provisions, such compaitiypbe deemed
to have complied with the Code.

The Company acknowledges the importance of goopotate governance. The Management and Supervisoayd8
have reviewed the Code, and generally agree vétputport. The Boards have taken and will take famther steps
they consider required and appropriate to furtmplément the Code and any Dutch law corporate gewvere
requirements and improve the Company’s corporatem@ance features. This is very much a living psscét is the
Company’s policy to discuss the topic annually wilte shareholders and schedule it for this purgos¢he annual
general meeting of shareholders each financial. @ topic has been part of the agenda for eacbrgemeeting of
shareholders since 2007.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergpance framework of the Company were approvedth first
time by the shareholders in 2007 at the occasigheofPO of the Company.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code:

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedetbeant best practice provisions of the Dutch Crafmo
Governance Code, except for the provisions sebelatw.

Il. 2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in aayent, not be exercised in the first three yeaterahe date of
granting. The number of options to be granted shalldependent on the achievement of challengirgetarspecified
beforehand.

In 2014, the Company has granted to selected maembfemanagement and key personnel a form of variabl
remuneration, which are technically not optionsatgjuire shares but the cash value of such varranheineration is
determined by the development of the Company’seshece after the date of granting (Phantom Stotkg rationale

is to align the interests of management and kegqgmerel with the interests of shareholders. Referémanade to the
Remuneration Report on page 13. This variable remaiion has been granted unconditionally and indépet on the
achievement of targets. The Company shall not artieesk existing agreements to comply with provisich4 of the
Code (to the extent it would be deemed applicalfl@nsidering that the Company’s stage of developraed its
intention to create a simple alignment of interegtsnanagement and shareholders, the Company rebtadipply this
provision (to the extent deemed applicable).
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Governance structure (cont'd)

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with tkeeption of not more than one person, shall bepeddent within
the meaning of best practice provision lll. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of fivenmbers, of which three are independent within theumrgy of the

Dutch Corporate Governance Code. Two leading sbéders, i.e. Israel Theaters Ltd. and U. Dori Graug., each

(indirectly) holding a shareholding and voting tiglof 39.8%, have agreed to use their voting rightsuch a manner
to procure that the two leading shareholders véllifba position to nominate independent supervisiingctors to the
Company. Moreover, the Company’s articles of asgmr state that the Supervisory Board shall havieast two

independent Supervisory Board directors.

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervidoogrd shall contain rules on dealing with conflid&interest and
potential conflicts of interest between manageni®#rd members, supervisory board members and thernek
auditor on the one hand and the company on theroffiee terms of reference shall also stipulate Whi@nsactions
require the approval of the supervisory board. Teenpany shall draw up regulations governing ownigrsif, and
transactions in securities by management or superyiboard members, other than securities issuethéy ‘own’

company.

The Company believes that the restrictions undexibgecurities law are sufficient to govern the evghip of, and
transactions in, securities by Supervisory and Mangent Board members. Implementing additional ict&tns would

potentially harm its ability to attract and enstlre continued services of Supervisory and ManagéeBeard members
and the Company therefore believes that applyirsgltst practice provision is not in its best iagtr

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations talgsts, presentations to investors and institutloinaestors and
press conferences shall be announced in advandbeooompany’s website and by means of press redeBsevision
shall be made for all shareholders to follow theseetings and presentations in real time, for exanyl means of web
casting or telephone lines. After the meetingspiiesentations shall be posted on the company'siteeb

Considering the Company’s size, it would createxressive burden to provide facilities which enablareholders to
follow in real time the meetings and presentatimaferred to in the best practice provision. The @any will ensure
that presentations are posted on its website inmhagliafter the meetings in question.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2013, no transactionsedsrred to in best-practice provisions 11.3.4,8I8 and [11.6.4 took
place involving a conflict of interest relating directors, supervisory board members or naturalcaridgal persons
holding at least 10% of the shares in the compapyplying best-practice provisions 11.3.2, 11.3.31.6.1 and I11.6.2

was therefore not relevant.

Statement referred to in the Decree of 20 March 20&tb 154, determining the further requirementsnoerning the
contents of annual reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civdd€ (Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370, to amend Book€) and the
Royal Decree of 20 March 2009, limited liabilitymapanies, whose shares — to put it briefly — atedi®n a regulated
stock exchange, must include a statement in theiual reports about their compliance with the pples and best
practices of the Code.

In light of the foregoing the Company confirms tirathe year under review, it did not comply full§th the provisions
of the Code, nor does it intend to comply during thurrent financial year or the next financial ydés reasons for
doing so are explained in the paragraphs above.
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Governance structure (cont'd)

Corporate Governance Code in Poland

The Code of Best Practice for WSE-Listed Compafties ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rules’) appliesoimganies
listed on the WSE, irrespective of whether such games are incorporated in Poland or outside oambl The WSE
Corporate Governance Rules consist of general remordations relating to best practices for listechganies (Part I)
and best practice provisions relating to managerbeatds, supervisory board members and sharehdl@erss Il to
V).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose upooatm@anies listed on the WSE an obligation to dselo their

current reports continuous or incidental non-coamle with best practice provisions (with the exicepof the rules
set forth in Part I). Moreover, every year each WiSt&d company is required to publish a detailledesnent on any
non-compliance with the WSE Corporate Governancie®R(including the rules set forth in Part I) byywaf a

statement submitted with the company’s annual tgfpioe “Yearly Compliance Statement’).

Companies listed on the WSE are required to justify- or partial compliance with any WSE Corpor&tvernance
Rules and to show the ways of eliminating the gmestonsequences of such non-compliance or thes steph
company intends to take to mitigate the risk of-sompliance with such rule in future.

The Company intends, to the extent practicableptaply with all principles of the WSE Corporate @avance Rules.
However, certain principles will apply to the Comganly to the extent permitted by Dutch law. Dietdiinformation

regarding non-compliance, as well as additionalangtions regarding partial compliance with cerfAI8E Corporate
Governance Rules due to incompatibilities with Dutaw, are included in the aforementioned repavtsich are also
available on the Company’s website (www.ronsorapk) are being published by way of a current report.

The Company makes all efforts to comply with allnpiples of both the Dutch Code and the WSE Corgora
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparencyetontst possible
extent. The Company believes that its efforts @m@reciated by its stakeholders and that theseteffuitl support the
Company’s growth and its reliability.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Per the Articles of Association* of the Companye #mnual General Meeting of Shareholders shalldbe \within six
months after the end of the financial year to degth, among other matters: (i) the annual repar}’ gdoption of the
annual accounts, (iii) discussion of (any substhmihanges in) corporate governance, (iv) discassfaremuneration
policy for the Board of Managing Directors (“Managent Board”), (v) granting of discharge to the Mgement
Board for the management over the past financiat, i) discussion of remuneration of SupervisBoard members,
(vii) granting of discharge to the Supervisory Bbdor the supervision over the past financial ydsiij) policy on
additions to reserves and dividends, (ix) adoptbthe profit appropriation, (x) (re)appointment members of the
Management Board and (xi) (re)appointment of mesbéthe Board of Supervisory Directors (“SuperwsBoard”).

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall beé hsloften as the Management Board or the Supeyvidoard

deems necessary. Shareholders representing ig¢inegate of at least one-tenth of the Companyisegsapital may
request the Management Board or the SupervisorydBtm convene a General Meeting of Shareholdeegingt
specifically the business to be discussed.

’ Most recently amended on 30 June 2011
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Issue of new shares

The Company shall only issue shares pursuant ®salution of the General Meeting or of another ocoape body
designated to do so by a resolution of the Gemdealting for a fixed period not exceeding five yedrse designation
must be accompanied by a stipulation as to the rumbshares that may be issued. The designatigneaeh time be
extended for a period of up to five years. The glesion may not be cancelled, unless the designgiifovides
otherwise. A decision by the General Meeting taiésshares or to designate another body to issuesshan only be
taken upon the proposal of the Management Boare.pfbposal is subject to the approval of the Supery Board.

Each shareholder shall have a pre-emptive right mispect to any share issue in proportion to ¢jggemate amount of
his shares, except if shares are issued for a asin-@onsideration or if shares are issued to erapbygf the Group.

Considering the interest in the Company held (eatly) by two leading shareholders, (1) Israel Taealtd. and (2)
U. Dori Group Ltd., each holding (indirectly) 39.88b the Company’s share capital and votes, the gdnari control
over the Company is not possible without the conaad involvement of at least one of the two legdihareholders.
In addition, the two leading shareholders are sgrted both in the Supervisory Board and in thedgament Board
of the Company.

Supervisory and Management Boards

The Company has a two-tier corporate governanagtshe, consisting of an executive Management Bdtrd
‘Management Board’) and a non-executive Supervi8ogrd (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The day-to-daynagement
and policy-making of the Company is vested in thankigement Board, under the supervision of the Sigoey
Board. There are currently five members of the Mgmnaent Board whose names are set out below. Ther@sqory
Board supervises the Management Board and the Guoyispgeneral course of affairs and the businessritucts. It
also supports the Management Board with advicgehfiorming their duties the Supervisory Board mersitmust act
in accordance with the interests of the Companythedbusiness connected with it.

As of 1 January 2013 the Act on Management and rSigien (‘Wet Bestuur en Toezicht’) came into etfed/ith this
Act, statutory provisions were introduced to ensubmlanced representation of men and women in geamant boards
and supervisory boards of companies governed IsyAbi. Balanced representation of men and wometeésned to
exist if at least 30% of the seats are filled byhraad at least 30% are filled by women.

Ronson Europe N.V. has currently no seats takewdigpen. Since Ronson Europe N.V. does not complly thi¢ law
in this respect, it has looked into the reasonsnfum-compliance. The Supervisory Board recogniheshienefits of
diversity, including gender balance. However, thp&visory Board feels that gender is only one pérdiversity.
Supervisory Board and Management Board members amititinue to be selected on the basis of wide rangi
experience, backgrounds, skills, knowledge andyinisi The Supervisory Board continues to strivenfiore diversity
in both the Supervisory Board and Management Bdaod.more information on the rules of the SupenmyisBoard
please refer to the profile of the Supervisory Bloamn Ronson Europe N.V.'s website.
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Supervisory Board

The Articles of Association provide that the Compahall have a Supervisory Board consisting oast three and at
most seven persons of which at least two Supenvi€irectors shall be independent. Supervisory Dinexc are
appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholdars foeriod of four years. After holding office fiire first period of
four years, Supervisory Directors are eligible flerelection for two additional terms of four yeaach. The General
Meeting of Shareholders shall establish the renativer for each Supervisory Director.

Supervisory Board Committees

The Supervisory Board is supported by two comnittee

e the Audit Committee (comprising Mr Shilhav (chairyaMr Sharoni and Mr Segall)
e the Remuneration and Nominating Committee (compyisilr Mientkavich, (chairman),Mr Shilhav and Mr
Sharoni)

These committees are composed of members of ther@sqry Board with relevant experience. All comtesis
operate under the overall responsibility of the Sujgory Board, in accordance with the best pracsiipulations of
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall (age 51, US citizen, male), Chairman

Mr Mark Segall was appointed as a member of theeStignry Board of the Company on 28 September 20@¥re-
appointed on 30 June 2011. Mr Segall is the fournddfidron Corporate Advisors LLC, a corporate adviy and
mergers and acquisitions boutique, Kidron Capitavidors LLC, a US registered broker dealer, andKimfron
Opportunity Fund I, LLC, a small private equity €urPrior to forming Kidron in 2003, he was the Guoed executive
officer of Investec Inc. Mr Segall serves on theaftbof directors of ATMI, Inc., Bel Fuse Inc., Igtated Asset
Management plc., Temco Services Industries Inc. lafidity Cross Border Acquisition Corp. His curteterm as
Supervisory Director expires in June 2015. Thereasconflict of interest between the Company artteiobusiness
activities of Mr Segall.

Arie Mientkavich (age 71, Israeli citizen, male),jde-Chairman

Mr Arie Mientkavich was appointed a member of thg&visory Board of the Company on 30 June 201d, ian
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. He has lputy Chairman of the Board of Gazit Globe Ltth¢e

2005). He is also Chairman of the Boards of théofahg companies: Gazit Globe Israel (Developmértd). (since
2006), U. Dori Group Ltd. (since 2012), Elron Eteciic Industries Ltd. (since 2007) and Rafael Depeient
Corporation Ltd. (since 2007) and a director in éd Ltd. (since 2010). From May 2006 to January42dk

Mientkavich served as Vice-Chairman of IDB Holdi@grporation Ltd. and from July 2007 to February £0director
in Given Imagining Ltd. Previously (1997 to 2008)r Mientkavich was Chairman of the Board of Isr@8scount

Bank Ltd. He served as Active Chairman of the IsBezurities Authority, (1987 to 1997) and concuothg he was a
member of the License Committee as well as of thgigory Committee of the Bank of Israel. His cutrégrm as
Supervisory Board Director expires in June 201%r€hs no conflict of interest between Ronson ath@robusiness
activities of Mr Mientkavich.

Przemyslaw Kowalczyk (age 44, Polish citizen, male)

Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk was appointed as a memlbehe Supervisory Board on 30 June 2011. Since 2040
Kowalczyk is an independent business consultantogedates as financial and investment advisorrange of small
and medium enterprises in Poland. From 2002 to 20@%as member of the management board at VollexswBgnk
Polska Group. Prior to that, from 1994 to 2002,Hémwalczyk was active in the banking sector in b8thitzerland and
Poland, and held various positions including theadH®f the Treasury Department with BankgesellscBailin
(Polska) S.A.. His current term as Supervisory €iwe expires in June 2015. There is no conflicintérest between
the Company and other business activities of Mr Klowyk.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board (cont’d)

Reuven Sharoni (age 76, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Reuven Sharoni was appointed as a member ddtipervisory Board on 23 June 2008 and re-appomte2B June
2012. Mr Sharoni’s recent positions include DepMgnager and head of Non Life Arieh Insurance Cormgplaal.
from 1980 to 1984. In the years 1984 to 2000, ledaas Deputy General Managing Director and fro®02@ntil 2002
as the General Managing Director of Arieh Insuragmmpany Ltd. Since 2003, Mr Sharoni has been diveac
chairman of Shirbit Insurance Company Ltd. and esif006 also a Chairman of Millenium Pension Saviltgls His
current term as Supervisory Director expires ineJA@16. There is no conflict of interest betwean @ompany and
other business activities of Mr Sharoni.

Yair Shilhav (age 55, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Yair Shilhav was appointed as a member of thpeBrisory Board on 28 September 2007 and re-apgubioh 30
June 2011, and he is the Chairman of the Audit Citteen Mr Shilhav is member of the Supervisory Bband
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Global City Himigs N.V. (previously known as Cinema City Intefaaal N.V.).
Since 2004, Mr Shilhav has been the owner of anlessi consulting office. Between 2000 and 2003, && avmember
of the executive directory committee of the aublinf Somekh Chaikin, a member of KPMG. Between 18688 2003,
he was the head of the Haifa branch of Somekh @haik which he was partner from 1990 to 2003. Pricbecoming
a partner at Somekh Chaikin, he was head of thiegsimnal and finance department of the same fitenwas also the
head of the accountancy faculty at Haifa Univerbiggween 1998 and 2002. His current term as SwgmgvDirector
expires in June 2015. There is no conflict of iegtbetween the Company and other business aesiafiMr Shilhav.
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Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to thealjement Board under the supervision of the Sigoew
Board. The Articles of Association provide that thanagement Board shall consist of two or more rgemga
directors. Managing directors are appointed by @emeral Meeting of Shareholders. The ManagementdBshall

meet as often as a managing director requests tingeall resolutions by the Management Board shalladopted by
an absolute majority of the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblgh@rday-to-day management, including comprehenssle
management control, financing and regulatory coamgié.

The Company and its operating companies are orgdrilong clear functional reporting lines. Througthive Group,
corporate and operating accountabilities, rolesraggdonsibilities are in place.

Managing directors A and B

Per the Company’s Articles of Association, the Mgaraent Board shall consist of one or more manadgiregtors A
and may in addition consist of one or more managdingctors B. The Supervisory Board shall deterngirexisely the
number of managing directors and the precise numibm@anaging directors of a specific class.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall grantrte of the managing directors A the title of ‘Chigecutive
Officer’ who will be the President of the ManagemBpnard, and may also grant to one of the manadiiregtors A the
title of ‘Chief Financial Officer’ and other titled® managing directors A or managing directors B.

The Management Board shall represent the Compamg.atithority to represent the Company shall alsgdsted in
two managing directors among whom, if one or mornaging directors B are in office, at least onelldha a
managing director B.

Composition of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman (age 62, Israeli citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Shraga Weisman was appoimsechanaging director A and President of the Mamegé
Board, for a term of four years and granted tHe t€hief Executive Officer’. On 28 June 2012, hasnre-appointed
for another term of four years.

Mr Weisman served as ‘Chief Executive Officer’ aslar Building Company Ltd. from 1997 until May 30@\shdar
Building Company Ltd., listed on the Tel-Aviv Stogkxchange since May 2007, is one of the largest estate
development companies in Israel focusing on resigleand commercial projects, hotels and proteetstbmmodation
projects. From 1990 to 1997, he was ‘Chief Exeeutdfficer’ of Natanya Tourism Development Compamhich
developed residential and infrastructure develogrpeoiects in Israel. Mr Weisman holds a BA titterh Tel-Aviv
University, an MSC title from Technion, the Israkistitute of Technology, and is a certified realage appraiser in
Israel. His current term as Managing Director eapin June 2016.
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Composition of the Management Board (cont'd)

Tomasz tapiski (age 37, Polish citizen, male)

On 23 June 2008, Mr tafski was appointed as managing director A and merobéne Management Board, for a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Chiefdfinial Officer’. On 28 June 2012, he was re-appairfor another
term of four years. Mr Lapgki is also a member of the management boards of sabsidiaries of the Company.

Between 2000 and 2008, Mr tapki worked in the investment banking division of iOredit Group in Warsaw
(formerly of HVB and of Bank Austria Creditanstak) in UniCredit CA IB Poland (formerly CA IB Finaiat
Advisers). His experience in investment bankindudes mainly M&A (mergers and acquisitions) trarnisars as well
as other corporate finance related assignmentsvasealso responsible for equity capital market (B@fnsactions,
including the initial public offering of Ronson Eype N.V. Before joining CA IB Financial Advisergom 1998 to
2000, Mr taphski worked for the consulting company Central Egrdprust. Mr tapiski graduated from Warsaw
School of Economics (Finance and Banking Facul§3.current term as Managing Director expires ine]J2016. Mr
tapinski does not perform any activities other thantfer Company.

Andrzej Gutowski (age 44, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Gutowski was appointed asagang director A and member of the Management &dar a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Sales &fatketing Director’. On 28 June 2012, he was rpeapted for
another term of four years. Mr Gutowski is also ammber of the management boards of many subsidiafi¢ise
Company.

Mr Gutowski had been employed by Ronson Developrnamagement Sp. z o.0. for five years as the ‘Sateb
Marketing Manager’. Mr Gutowski is also a membetled management boards of many subsidiaries o€tmpany.
Before joining Ronson Development Group, betwee®412003 Mr Gutowski worked for Emmerson Sp. z 0.0.
(leading real estate agency and advisory compatheifPolish market) as Director of Primary Markatsl member of
the management board. From 1988 until 1993, Mr @siko studied at Warsaw School of Economics (Fordigade).
His current term as Managing Director expires ineJ2016. Mr Gutowski does not perform any actisitigher than
for the Company.

Israel Greidinger (age 52, Israeli citizen, male)

On 30 June 2011, Mr Israel Greidinger was appoiatethanaging director B and member of the ManageBward of
the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Greidingethe Chief Operating Officer and member of Ewecutive
Board of Cineworld Group plc. Currently, Mr Greidar is also a Non-Executive Director of Global Cigldings
N.V. (previously known as Cinema City InternatiobaV.), a company of which he was Chief Financidfic@r since
1995 until 28 February 2014. He is also a direofdsrael Theatres Ltd. since 1994. From 1985 @21 ¥r Greidinger
served as Managing Director of C.A.T.S. Ltd. (Cotepiged Automatic Ticket Sales), a London basedpzomyg, and
from 1992 to 1994, he was President and Chief Biex®fficer of Pacer Cats Inc. His current termManaging
Director expires in June 2015. There is no conBifcinterest between the Company and other busimetbsties of Mr
Greidinger.

Ronen Ashkenazi (age 52, Israeli citizen, male)

On 30 June 2011, Mr Ronen Ashkenazi was appoirgadamaging director B and member of the ManageiBeatd

of the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Ashékairis CEO and co-owner of Gazit Globe Israel (Depment) Ltd

and CEO and indirect co-owner of U. Dori Group Wttbreover, Mr Ashkenazi is the Chairman of the lboafr U.Dori

Construction LTD, a director on the board of DomeEgy, a director on the board of Citycon Oyj, aparty

investment company specialized in retail premise§inland, Sweden and the Baltic countries. Higentrterm as
Managing Director expires in June 2015. There iscanflict of interest between the Company and othgsiness
activities of Mr Ashkenazi.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Articl&0 of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to implemnanicle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europdarliament
and the Council of the European Union of 21 ApfiD2 regarding public takeover bids, Ronson Europé. lthe
Company’) provides the following explanation:

a. Capital structure of the Company
The capital of the company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafueUR 0.02
each. Information on issued shares has been irctludger Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial 8tates.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued asjtary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company haverestriction with respect to the transfer of shafidee Company has
no depositary receipts issued with the Companyeeration.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company

The Company has been notified regarding sharel®ldéth a substantial holding in accordance with &et on
Financial Supervision (3% or more) in the Compay:I.T.R. 2012 B.V (ultimately controlled by Isra&heaters
Ltd.), U Dori Group Ltd. (indirectly), Amplico Otwty Fundusz Emerytalny and ING Otwarty Fundusz Bytadny.

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomgrrights.

e. Employees’ shares
The Company currently does not hold any employegesscheme or option plan where the control rigines not
exercised directly by the employees.

f. Restriction on voting right and issue of depasiy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtiggattached to issued shares. The Company haspasithry
receipts issued with the Company’s co-operation.

g. Agreements with shareholders

Currently, the Company is unaware of any sharehaddeeements, except for agreements among |.0R2 B.V.,
Israel Theaters Ltd., U. Dori Group Ltd. and I.TBori B.V., which sets forth certain rights andlightions of the
parties with respect to each other in connectiah warious matters, including the appointment t;magement board
and the supervisory board of the Company.

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors amdendments
to the Articles of Association

By virtue of articles 13 and 14 and articles 21 a@8df the Articles of Association, the General Kieg is authorized
to appoint, suspend or dismiss members of the Mamagt Board as well as members of the Supervisosyd The
Directors shall be appointed from a list of nomsjemntaining the names of at least two personsdoh vacancy, to
be drawn up by the Supervisory Board. A nominatidrich is drawn up in time shall be binding. Howevtite
General Meeting may deprive the nomination of itgllmg character by resolution adopted with a mgjaf not less
than two thirds of the votes cast, representingentban half of the issued capital. The membersiefManagement
Board and the Supervisory Board may be suspenddidmmissed by the General Meeting at any time.résolution to
suspend or dismiss a Director has not been propmgdide Supervisory Board, the resolution to sudpandismiss a
Managing Director is adopted with not less than thiods of the votes cast by shareholders, repteggmore than
half of the issued capital.

By virtue of article 40 of the Articles of Assodm, the Articles of Association can only be ameahédethe proposal of
the Management Board subject to approval from tige8/isory Board and the shareholders. A resoluticamend the
Articles of Association shall be passed by an alisahajority of the votes cast.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 5 of the Articles of Associati, the Management Board is, subject to the approahe
Supervisory Board, authorized to resolve to isthwes for a certain period for a maximum per issfughares of 25%
of the issued share capital immediately prior &t fesue, with an aggregate maximum of all nonedsshares of the
authorized share capital. The period of authoratif the Management Board by the General Meetirghareholders
was renewed by a decision of the General Meeting§hafreholders which took place on 28 of June 20t 2iother
period of five years lapsing at 28 June 2017.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid
The Company is not aware of any existing agreemith is relevant in the context of the issuanca ptiblic bid.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employethe event of a public bid
The employment contracts of the Members of the Mdangent Board do not contain any specific clausdstwiefer to
a change of control in the Company.
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Remuneration Report
Introduction

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdeitd lon 1 October 2007, upon recommendation of tipe&isory
Board, approved the Company’s remuneration polibicivsets forth the terms of remuneration of thenimers of the
Management Board. The remuneration for the SupmnwiBoard was also adopted at the same Generatlsblders’
Meeting.

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration poigcio provide a compensation program that allovesGompany to
attract, retain and motivate members of the Superyiand Management Boards and those who havehtdraater
traits, skills and background to successfully leadnage and supervise the Company. The remunenatiicy is
designed to reward members of the Management Baardi®ther key personnel for their contributiornthte success of
the Company. Each of the Supervisory Boards membegives fixed annual remuneration and remunergtien
attended meeting.

Governance

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves p#as of the remuneration policy for the Managenodrd. The
General Meeting of Shareholders further determithesemuneration of the Supervisory Board. Compansaf both
the Supervisory Board and Management Board is wederegularly. The Supervisory Board has a dedicate
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman

Mr Shraga Weisman, as a member of the ManagemeardBf Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an eynpént
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsoevdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The terms of his
compensation package include a gross monthly féleeoPLN equivalent of EUR 2,500. Mr Weisman i®adstitled to
reimbursement of housing and office costs amountindo the PLN equivalent of EUR 3,000 per monthwell as
certain other social and medical insurance costs. ddmpensation also includes a reimbursement asamably
incurred and documented expenses related to thepperformance of his consulting agreement uéoaimount of
EUR 5,000 per calendar year as well as reimburseofahe costs related to his and his family’s &lato Israel up to
the maximum amount of EUR 20,000 per year and gpamcar.

In addition, he provides via his consulting compaeyvices to Ronson Europe N.V. For these serhtreg/eisman’s
company charges Ronson Europe N.V. a monthly feEUWR 22,500. His consulting company is also emtitie an
annual bonus set at 3.3% of the consolidated ampraahx profit of the Group.

Tomasz tapiski

Mr Tomasz tapiski, as a member of the Management Board of RoBswape N.V., has entered into an employment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnthe®
employment contract include a monthly salary of PAROOO, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscaisd a
company car.
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Remuneration of the Management Board (cont'd)

Andrzej Gutowski

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, as a member of the ManagenBaard of Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into apl@yment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavddopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnth®
employment contract include a monthly salary of P2ZB000, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscasd a
company car.

Israel Greidinger

Mr Israel Greidinger is not entitled to any remwteEm from Ronson Europe nor from any of the Comfman
subsidiaries.

Ronen Ashkenazi

Mr Ronen Ashkenazi is not entitled to any remunerafrom Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company’
subsidiaries.

Pierre Decla

Mr Pierre Decla, previous member of the Managentodrd, was not entitled to any remuneration frorm$m
Europe nor from any of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Remuneration of the Management Board in 2013

Total compensation of the Members of the ManagerBeatrd — not including any benefits from the empleystock
incentive plan (share based payments) and the agmpar — amounted to PLN 3,302 thousand, of whivh t
compensation of;

- Mr Shraga Weisman amounted to PLN 2,116 thousand,
- Mr Tomasz tapiski amounted to PLN 653 thousand,
- Mr Andrzej Gutowski amounted to PLN 533 thousand.

Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricegperformance of Ronson Europe N.V.

On 3 February 2014 the Supervisory Board of the @y adopted an incentive plan, addressed to sdldaty
employees, which is based on the price performaricthe Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock Plafie
Phantom Stock Plan, which does not assume any s&we iof shares and which will not result in any rehares
supply, is based on the following key assumptiansiacludes the settlement mechanism as describletvb

i. the exercise price of one option under the RivarStock Plan is PLN 1.6;

ii. the total number of options is 2,705,000 (whishthe equivalent of approximately 1% of the Comps total
number of shares), and the allocation of optiongddicular employees shall be made by way of arste
decision of the Remuneration Committee;

iii. benefits will be aggregated among the seleaatployees (of the Company or of its subsidiariglsd join the
Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 2015, of i) 50% is awarded as of the date of the decisfahe
Remuneration Committee approving the Phantom S®dak, (b) 25% as of the end of 2014, and (c) 25%hby
end of 2015;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StocknPhaintain the right to exercise their optionsiluhe end of
2017 (or a maximum of two years from the date t@yno longer employed by the Ronson Group);
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Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricegperformance of Ronson Europe N.V. (cont'd)

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Companly pay the option holder the amount in cash eqoathe
difference between PLN 1.6 and the current markieeof the shares in the Company (“Current MafRete”)
allocated to a particular employee (option holder);

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedtlas average trading price of the shares duringteeeding calendar
month, whereby the average trading price shalldierchined by calculating the total turnover valud’LN of all
of the shares in the Company traded during thabgetivided by the total number of shares tradedngusuch
period (however, if the total value of the ovetalinover in any particular month is lower than PLOD thousand,
then the Current Market Price shall be calculatethe basis of the most recent two-month marketzaye;

vii. in the event that the free float is less tH&)%6 of all the outstanding shares in the Compamsy,Gurrent Market
Price will be established by a reputable valuatompany based on a comparable valuation of Ronguees
companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange doas®/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to submipayment request during the first five working slay each calendar
month, provided that all employees must observe taaging restrictions related to the sale/purchasé¢he
Company’s shares by Management and SupervisorydBowmmbers and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obssrgaf closed periods.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, Ptteototal 2,705,000 options, 950,000 options wadlecated to
Tomasz tapiski, and 675,000 options were allocated to And&atowski while the remaining 1,080,000 options were
allocated to other key employees of the Company.

Long-term incentive plan linked to Ronson Europe NV. financial results

On 3 February 2014 the Supervisory Board of the @umg adopted an incentive plan, addressed to edldaty
employees, which is based on the financial perfoiceaf the Company. Financial performance shatlétermined by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee of the SuperyiBoard taking into consideration either (a)rent sales
results (the new contracts signed with customarg))oprofits before tax recognized by the Company.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, Torapiaski (in addition to his remuneration) is entitlex &n
aggregated payment which would be equivalent ob%.6f the Company’s profit before tax in particufarancial
year. Moreover Andrzej Gutowski is entitled to ajgeegated payment which would be equivalent of Odf%he net
value of the Company’s current sales results.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Each Supervisory Board member currently receivesaamual remuneration of EUR 8,900 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendanbg telephone. Moreover Supervisory Board membersatitled to
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relatesktuices provided to the Company (mainly comprigiagel and
accommodation expenses). The Supervisory Board msrdre not entitled to any benefits on terminatibriheir
service. Two Supervisory Board members, notably Afie Mientkavich and Mr Frank Roseen (member of the
Supervisory Board until 25 November 2013), haveveditheir remuneration from the Company. The rematian
paid (or accrued) to the Supervisory Board membeisides only the remuneration for the remainingnbers: Mr
Mark Segall, Mr Yair Shilhav, Mr Przemyslaw Kowajtzand Mr Reuven Sharoni. The total Supervisory rHoa
remuneration during 2013 amounted to PLN 281 thodiggUR 67 thousand).
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Profile

Management believes that the residential marketwhole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry within
the European Union, including also the developiogntries in Central and Eastern Europe, which imegal provides
for many opportunities for residential developétewever due to the fact that the Polish econonstillsexperiencing
many dynamic changes, it may be sensitive to piatemp and down-turns. These market conditions famimportant
and significant risk factor for the Company and dtiner residential developers, as the developmerttegs (including
stages such as the purchase of land, the prepawdtiand for construction works, the constructpmocess itself and,
finally, also the sale of apartments) may take sdweears from start until completion. It is impeamt to understand that
decisions taken by the Company must assume awvediationg-term time horizon for each project as Iwad a
significant volatility of land prices, constructiczost levels and sales prices of apartments dufiegduration of
projects which may have a material impact on thm@any’s profitability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the raggdvelopment of many Polish cities which very oftevolves a lack of
stability of development plans which could subsgtdiyt impact the likelihood that projects on paulr sites are
realized as initially desired or planned. Quitesnftresidential developers are interested in bulgng parcels without
zoning conditions or without a valid master planttee area, which would allow for a better assesgrokthe ultimate

value of the plot. Pursuing such market opportasitnay result in relatively low prices of the Igratcels. However,
this strategy may result in increasing operati@mal financial risks for the developer. Moreovemfing development
plans of the cities could also impact the plannedetbpment and realization of utility infrastruauiincluding water,
gas, sewage and electricity connections), whidhiigal factor for the Company and other develspé&towever, for a
vast majority of land parcels, the Company hasadlyeobtained zoning approvals, which reduces tisis to the

Company significantly.

A very specific risk for the Polish residential rkarr is related to the initiatives of the Polish @mment supporting
young people wanting to buy their first apartmdifite previous government program, which expiredthateind of 2012,
was called Rodzina na Swoim (Family on its Own) amd subsidizing the costs of mortgage loans. A peygram

called Mieszkanie dla Miodych (Apartment for the ung) was launched in the beginning of 2014. ThesRol
government, whilst setting up the parameters ohguograms (for instance maximum total area ofdpartments
qualifying for the program, or maximum allowablécgrin particular cities), will thus be of influemon the increasing
attractiveness of certain type of apartments aadidtreasing for other types.

Another operating risk lies within the constructipnocess itself. The Company does not operate atreation
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnewatractors, who are responsible for runningabastruction and for
the finalization of the project including obtainiradl permits necessary for safe use of the apatsndmportant
selection criteria when hiring a general contradgtmlude experience, professionalism and finansteéngth of the
contractor as well as the quality of the insuragmalicy covering all risks associated with the comstion process.

The turbulence in the financial markets and with ¢uro currency during the past few years hastesbin a lack of

stability in the manner in which financing instituts (banks) have approached both real estate cuegpand

individual customers when applying for a mortgaggnl As the real estate business is very capit@uoning, the role
of the banking sector and its lending ability arilimgness are crucial for the Company leveragingonly when land

parcels are acquired but also during the laterestad development, especially during the constuagthase. Moreover,
the availability of external financing is a crucedément driving the demand for apartments, avaisé majority of our

customers are using mortgage secured loans tocfinidue purchase of apartments.

For addition informational on financial instrumenitsks see Note 39 of the Consolidated Financiiestients.
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Risk Management

As part of its risk management measures, the Coynjgacontinually requesting, monitoring and purdéhgsnsurance
policies for most common risks associated with dleéivities of its contractors and their subconteast including
construction companies and architectural desigrearsyell as insurance policies with respect taltpirty liability. In
the Company’s opinion, these insurance policiegrofidequate coverage for the financial consequeatemy
misconduct of Company’s business partners.

In order to mitigate the market risks involved witte Company’s activities, the Company appliesvaai¢ internal

procedures. Moreover, in response to market inggabier the past several years, the Company @ekcid scale down
the size of individual projects offered for saleg, ¢plitting larger residential projects into relaly smaller phases
(usually at on average around 100 units for eaabesbf completion). The Company’s plans for 201duaee the

possibility of commencing the construction of fawew projects and six further stages of projects #éna currently

under construction comprising some 570 and 650 ueiipectively, which means that the average sdadach new
project, i.e. stage of completion, will be arourD lunits. The Company is further mitigating theksiselated to the
construction process by selecting and hiring expeed construction companies with good reputatioh roven

track-record in Poland.

Moreover, various other organizational measurespradedures were implemented in order to safegterdjuality of
operations and to incorporate adequate checks aladdes, including approvals, authorizations, rgirig investment
decisions and so on. As part of implementing beatyre provisions of both the Dutch and Polishpooate
governance codes, the Company introduced a tailiotedhal risk management and control system. u#i@13, the
proper operation of the new internal risk manageraad control system has again been monitored eVakiation was
discussed with the members of the Audit Committed the Supervisory Board. Also, the Company hagtaok
whistleblower rules in place to ensure that empdsyef the Company and its subsidiaries have thsilgbty of
reporting alleged irregularities of a general, @tienal or financial nature.

The Company’s Management Board believes that iistieg risk management measures are sufficientrtwige a
reasonable degree of certainty as to the absenpatefial inaccuracies in the financial reportilngses and fraud.

Moreover, as a result of ongoing volatility in tfieancial markets and the continued unstable sd@nah the banking
sector, the Company’s Management pays particutentn to cash and liquidity management, basica#iguring
sufficient amounts of cash deposits with a viewa imontinuation of the Company’s operations in thgstentially more
turbulent times.

For a description of the Company’s financial instants risk management reference is made to Notef3de
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report

General

Introduction

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’) is a Dutch pulgibmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam,Nle¢herlands,
and was incorporated on 18 June 2007.

The Company (together with its Polish subsidiaritee Group’) is active in the development and safleesidential
units, primarily apartments, in multi-family resi&l real-estate projects to individual customersPoland. For
information about companies in the Group from whibkir financial data included in the Consolidateidancial
Statements see Note 1 of the Consolidated FinaStaééments.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wassagk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31 iDeee
2013, 39.8% of the outstanding shares are heldeaitly by 1.T.R. 2012 B.V., which is an indirectbsidiary of Israel
Theaters Ltd. (‘ITR 2012") and 39.8% of the outstimg shares are held indirectly by U. Dori Groud.L.whereas the
remaining 20.4% of the outstanding shares are teglgrheld by other investors including Amplico @inty Fundusz
Emerytalny and ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny vatich party holding an interest of between 5% arid ©0the
outstanding shares. On 5 March 2014, the markegeprias PLN 1.85 per share giving the Company a @hark
capitalization of PLN 503.9 million.

Company overview

The Company is an experienced, fast-growing ancayn residential real estate developer expandmgeébgraphic
reach to major metropolitan areas across Polanderaging upon its large portfolio of secured sitin® Company
believes it is well positioned to maintain its gmsi as a leading residential development comphrgughout Poland.

The Company aims to maximize value for its shamdrsl by a selective geographical expansion in Eotasnwell as
by creation of a portfolio of real estate developigroperties. Management believes the Companypbsitioned itself
strongly to navigate the volatile economic envireminthe Company has found itself in over the pegtal years. On
the one hand, the Polish economy appears to restedhe, which potentially bodes well for the Comygarprospects.
On the other hand, the tenuous European recoveyycotdtinue to have a negative impact on the Padnomy and
the Company’s overall prospects. As a result, tbengany continues to adhere to a development syraited allows it

to adjust quickly to these uncertain conditions dpreading risks through (i) closely monitoring fisojects, (ii)

potentially modifying the number of projects aneithquality and sizes, (iii) considering variouhi@t geographical
locations to commence development, and (iv) maiigiits conservative financial policy comparedotber regional
residential developers.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has 809 unitdable for sale in eleven locations, of which sewa ongoing
projects, comprising a total of 1,046 units, withogal area of 56,800 The construction of 396 units, with a total
area of 20,300 fis expected to be completed during 2014. In &@fdithe Group has a pipeline of 20 projects in
different stages of preparation, representing apprately 4,900 residential units with a total afaapproximately
320,500 m for future development in Warsaw, Po#naWroctaw and Szczecin. The Group is considering
commencement of another six stages of the curremtiyning projects comprising 638 units with a totaea of
35,800 M, and four new projects comprising 573 units wittol area of 34,500 1{in total 1,211 units with a total
area of 70,300 fij, during 2014.

During the financial year ended 31 December 20h8, Gompany realized sales of 572 units with thal tealue
PLN 221.8 million, which compares favorably to saté 380 units with a total value of PLN 153.0 ioifl during the
year ended 31 December 2012. These results appeafléct an improving market position of the Commpan

comparison to other developers listed on the WSEwfile they reported increased sales, they weee sdbwer rate
than our reported increase during the same period.
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Company overview (cont’'d)

During June and July 2013, the Company issued baittisan aggregate nominal value and issue prideLdd 116.3
million. The bonds carry an interest rate compaosfea base rate equal to 6 months Wibor plus a maxgth interest
payable semi-annually and maturing in June 2016N(P8.5 million), July 2016 (PLN 9.3 million) and e 2017
(PLN 83.5 million), with full payment due on the tudty date. The bonds have been issued in ordemtble the
Company to refinance the PLN 66.8 million in borisisued by the Company in April 2011. Moreover, iotdber
2013, the Company repaid all of its outstandingeseB bonds in the nominal value of PLN 15.7 milliotilizing its

option of earlier repurchase. Furthermore, the geds from the bonds provide the Company with auithti capital
required to purchase land for new projects as wasllto commence construction of new projects. Fdlitiadal

information see Note 28 and 29 of the Consolid&iedncial Statements.

Dividend policy

On 8 May 2013, the Company issued current repombmr 4/2013, announcing that the Company’s Managéme
Board would recommend to the General Meeting ofr&@ders to change its dividend policy and totsparying
dividend in 2013. On 14 May 2013, current repormber 5/2013 was issued, stating that he SuperviBogrd
approved the recommendations of the ManagementdBdan 27 June 2013, the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders approved the proposal to declareidetid for the financial year 2012 in the amounPaN 8,170,800 in
total or PLN 0.03 per ordinary share in cash. Thisqual to 26% of the net profit attributable he £quity holders of
the parent company in 2012.

Prior to 2013, since the incorporation of the Compand the IPO in 2007, the Company has retairsgprrdfits and did
not distribute dividends, in accordance with theidind policy as set out in the prospectus. The dswdend policy
assumes on-going periodic dividend payouts to Haeholders. The Management Board believes thaéxpected
operating, financial and cash-flow position of tbempany may allow for increasing the dividend payouhe future.
According to a new policy, the Board of Supervis@iyectors will be evaluating the future recommerates of the
Board of Managing Directors with respect to theeptil dividend payouts taking into account (i) tharent and
expected balance sheet of the Company, with clbsergance of the all balance-sheet linked debtranws, (i) the
financial needs of the Company aiming to be rard@dngst leading residential developers in Poland(gih changing
market environment.

Market overview

The Polish economy has proven to be relativelyngtreven in the recent turbulent times throughoubpge, which in

combination with the general paucity of dwellingsRoland (in comparison to all other European aiesjt creates,
what management believes to be, solid long termspwcts for further development of the residengal estate market
in spite of the volatility that has characterized tmarket for the past six years. Management ldid¢hve Company is
well positioned to adapt to changing market condii The Company’s sales results during 2010 thr@@1.3 seem to
confirm that the Company has adapted positivethéovolatile market environment.

The trend observed in 2010 and in 2011, when isingaactivities of developers resulted in an inseshoffer of
apartments available for sale on the market, slod@an in 2012, as many developers faced difficsliie finding
customers for their products. In 2012, the consibaoof 142 thousand new apartments was commencé&dland (a
decrease of 12% compared to 2011) and during 26d itimber decreased by further 10%. Simultanepdsiynand in
2013 increased in comparison to 2012 and the iseréa demand was even faster than in the supplis #lso
important to highlight that due to new regulati@m banking restrictions only the most reputableetipers (such as
the Company) were able to secure financing for imex@stments and were able to increase their ofibstantially.
Simultaneously, competition among real estate dg@erk increased, which has, in turn, led to in@éasustomer
demands and expectations relating to quality, aeradivanced stage of construction and higher exj@tsafor lower
priced apartments. Moreover, an increasing numbeustomers have indicated interest in more “ecanahsized”
apartments, i.e. the same number of rooms in denzaka.
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Market overview (cont'd)

Another unique factor affecting the Polish resid@nmarket is related to the governmental planspetjng and
subsidizing young couples purchasing their firsarapents. The previous program called “Rodzina m&i®”
(“Family on its own”) expired at the end of 2012heveas the new governmental program came intotefiethe
beginning of 2014.

Moreover, in the last few quarters, the NationahiBaf Poland has kept interest rates at recordlémels (only 2.5%
since July 2013). Sharp decreases in interestira@313 have positively impacted the residentiafkat, as on the one
hand mortgage loans became more affordable todtential clients and on the other hand more custemarchase
apartments for cash, as they consider this reateegtvestment as an attractive alternative tovény low interest
earned on banking deposits. To that end (accorttinthe estimates of real estate brokers), the nurabelients
purchasing apartments for cash doubled in compatsthe trends observed for similar periods in201

Taking into consideration all these circumstantss,demand increase noticed in 2013 caught upswipiply and more
recently, it appears demand has even begun to @xseeply, suggesting the possibility of potentiatreases in
apartment prices, which would benefit the Compdrhe number of total new apartments sold in Warsasng 2013
amounted to 14.6 thousand and this number was 1§bemhthan in 2012. Number of new apartments soldight
major Polish metropolitan areas (other than Warsagrgased in the same period by 13%.

Management believes that all the above factors, empetcially the significantly improved sales resulturing 2013,
particularly in the second half of 2013 for botle tBompany and the market as a whole throughoutahatry, may
indicate on-going improvement in the Polish resf@démarket in the coming quarters.

Meanwhile, on the construction side, arranging fthancing of construction sites has become mordleging for
developers due to implementation of a new law #wtered into force in Poland in April 2012, whickquires
construction processes to be financed from dehwedsas equity or, alternatively, to be securedallgitional bank
guarantees increasing security of customers’ depdsisuch deposits are being used for financhmeg ¢onstruction.
Management believes that the Company is in a velgtistrong financial position and should not fatificulties in
arranging debt financing for its projects. Accoglin when planning its newest projects, the Comphay prepared
itself for more demanding debt facility structutkat are being imposed by the lending banks espeaiaticipating the
requirements under the new developers’ law.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2013

A. Projects completed

The table below presents information on the prejéleat were completed (i.e. completing all condiomcworks and
receiving occupancy permit) during the year ende@®8cember 2013:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units(m?)
Sakura 1) Warsaw 136 8,300
Chilli 11 © Pozna 20 1,600
Naturalis 111 Warsaw 60 3,400
Verdis 10 Warsaw 78 4,900
Total 294 18,200
*) For additional information see section ‘B. §#ts breakdown by projects’ below.

B. Results breakdown by project

Revenue from the sale of residential units is reczayl upon the transfer to the buyer of signifiaasis and rewards of
the ownership of the residential unit, i.e. upamnsig of the protocol of technical acceptance dedttansfer of the key
to the buyer of the residential unit. Total revemdfighe Group recognized during the year ended 8dehber 2013
amounted to PLN 207.0 million, whereas cost ofsal@mounted to PLN 164.4 million, which resultedhigross profit

amounting to PLN 42.6 million with a gross margfr26.6%.

The following table specifies revenue, cost of saled gross profit in 2013 on a project by propedis:

Information on the

delivered units Revenue®” Cost of sales™ grroofist'S n?;?g;f\
Number Area of PLN PLN PLN

Project name of units units (m?) (thousand) % (thousand) % (thousand) %
Gemini Il 73 5,627 45,395 21.9% 27,618 16.8% 17,777 39.2%
Verdis | & I 82 5,935 40,481 19.6% 28,343 2% 12,138 30.0%
Sakura | & I 148 9,087 62,410 30.1% 53,006 2.2%6 9,404 15.1%
Impressio | 23 1,526 8,809 4.3% 9,011 5.5% 202} -2.3%
Constans 10 2,688 9,974 4.8% 10,320 6.3% 6)(34 -3.5%
Naturalis I, Il & Il 62 3,349 17,759 8.6% 5 9.5% 2,204 12.4%
Panoramika | 46 2,648 11,996 5.8% 11,354 6.9% 642 5.4%
Chilli 1 &1 30 2,221 9,276 4.5% 8,785 5.3% 491 5.3%
Other N.A N.A 925 0.4% 468 0.3% 457 49.4%
Total / Average 474 33,081 207,025 100.0% 164,460 100.0% 42,565 20.6%

*) Revenue is recognized upon the transfer afii@ant risks and rewards of the ownership of thgidential unit to the buyer, i.e. upon

signing of the protocol of technical acceptance traltransfer of the key of the residential unittte buyer.
(**) Cost of sales allocated to the delivered sriroportionally to the expected total value of pineject.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2013 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Gemini Il

The construction of the Gemini Il project was coetpll in December 2012. The Gemini Il project wagetped on a
land strip of 4,703 flocated in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (KEN Aw) situated next to the subway station
Imielin. The Gemini Il project comprises 2 eightdaeleven-storey, multi-family residential buildingsth a total of
167 apartments and 15 commercial units and an gagréloor space of 13,900°’m

Verdis | & Il

The construction of the Verdis | and Verdis Il gs was completed in December 2012 and DecembE3, 20
respectively. The Verdis | and Verdis Il projecteres developed on a part of a land strip of 16,360ocated in the
Wola district in Warsaw (Sowskiego Street). The Verdis | and Verdis Il projectsnprise 3 seven, eight and ten-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 128 apartments and 11 commercial unitsaandggregate floor
space of 9,400 frand 2 seven-storey, multi-family residential binitgs with a total of 72 apartments and 6 commercial
units and an aggregate floor space of 4,960respectively.

Sakura | & Il

The construction of the Sakura | and Sakura Il gutg was completed in May 2012 and May 2013, réisqede The
Sakura | and Sakura Il projects were developed pargof a land strip of 21,000%focated in the Mokotéw district in
Warsaw (Klobucka Street). The Sakura | and Sakunardjects comprise 1 eleven-storey, multi-famibsidential
building with a total of 99 apartments and 21 comuia units and an aggregate floor space of 8,16@md 1 seven
and eleven-storey, multi-family residential builgimvith a total of 136 apartments and an aggredate tpace of
8,300 m, respectively.

Impressio |

The construction of the Impressio | project was plated in June 2012. The Impressio | project waslbgped on a
part of a land strip of 14,500’tocated in the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw. Tihepressio | project comprises 3 four-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 70 apartments and an aggregate floor spiég00 .

Constans

The first, second and the third phases of the @olsshousing project were completed in July 2010;eXtber 2010
and June 2011, respectively. This project was dgeel on part of a land strip of 36,377 located in Konstancin near
Warsaw. The first, second and the third phasesefConstans housing project comprise 8 semi-dedachis (total
16 units) with an aggregate floor space of 4,4?15semi-detached units (total 10 units) with agragate floor space
of 2,758 m and 4 semi-detached units (total 8 units) wittaggregate floor space of 2,178, mespectively.

Naturalis I, Il & IlI

The construction of the Naturalis I, Il and Il pgots was completed in December 2012, August 20ti22agust 2013,
respectively. The Naturalis I, Il and Il projectgere developed on a part of a land strip of 31,8600cated in
tomianki near Warsaw. The Naturalis I, Il and IHofects comprise 1 four-storey, multi-family residgial building
with a total of 52 apartments and an aggregater fipmce of 2,900 fnand 2 four-storey, multi-family residential
buildings, each with a total of 60 apartments amdggregate floor space of 3,408 m
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B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Panoramika |

The construction of the Panoramika | project wangleted in October 2012. The Panoramika | projexs developed
on a part of a land strip of 30,300 focated in Szczecin at Bska Street. The Panoramika | project comprisesup fo
and five-storey, multi-family residential buildingsith a total of 90 apartments and an aggregater fkpace of
5,300 M.

Chilli1 &1l

The construction of the Chilli | and Il projects sveompleted in July 2012 and July 2013, respegtiviie Chilli | and

Il projects were developed on a part of a landpsnfi 39,604 rh located in Tulce near PoznaThe Chilli | and II
projects comprises 30 units with an aggregate fiparce of 2,100 frand 20 units with an aggregate floor space of
1,600 n3, respectively.

Other

Other revenues are mainly associated with salésegbarking places and storages in other projbetswere completed
in previous years, as well as rental revenues.
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C. Units sold during the year

The table below presents information on the totaisusold (i.e. total number of units for which tBempany signed
the preliminary sale agreements with the cliertsjing the year ended 31 December 2013:

Units sold during

Units sold until the year ended Units for sale as at
Project name Location 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2013 Total
Constans” Warsaw 21 11 2 34
Gemini 11©) Warsaw 166 14 2 182
Verdis 1 & 11 © Warsaw 124 79 14 217
Verdis 111 Warsaw - 21 125 146
Sakura 1 & 110 Warsaw 141 104 11 256
Sakura 11I™” Warsaw - 29 116 145
Naturalis I, I & 111 © Warsaw 61 45 66 172
Impressio ) Wroctaw 48 19 3 70
Impressio 11 Wroctaw - 1 141 142
Chilli1& 11 © Pozna 21 26 3 50
Chilli i Pozna - 2 36 38
Panoramika {’ Szczecin 33 47 10 90
Espresso " Warsaw 96 91 23 210
Espresso I{” Warsaw - 29 123 152
Miody Grunwald I Pozna 25 44 79 148
Tamka” Warsaw - 10 55 65
Total 736 572 809 2,117
*) For information on the completed projects s&usiness highlights during the year ended 31 Deeer2®13 — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 20 to 22).

(**) For information on current projects under cdnsction, see “Outlook for 2014— B. Current projsatnder construction” (pages 32 t034).
D. Commencements of new projects

The table below presents information on the presjémt which the construction and/or sales processneenced during
the year ended 31 December 2013:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units (nf)
Sakura 1) Warsaw 145 7,300
Verdis 111 © Warsaw 146 7,700
Espresso If’ Warsaw 152 7,600
Impressio 11 Wroctaw 142 8,400
Chilli 1 © Pozna 38 2,300
Tamka" Warsaw 65 5,500
Total 688 38,800
*) For additional information see section “Outlodér 2014 — B. Current projects under constructiqpages 32 to 34).

E. Land purchase

During financial year ended 31 December 2013, tteu@ did not purchase any land.
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Overview of results

The net profit attributable to the equity holdefstlee parent company for the year ended 31 Decer2b&B was

PLN 19,026 thousand and can be summarized as faillow

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Changes in the value of investment property
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expense

Other income

Result from operating activities

Finance income
Finance expense
Net finance income/(expense)

Profit before taxation

Income tax benefit
Net profit for the period before non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests

Net profit for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent

Net earnings per share attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (basic and diluteg

For year ended
31 December

2013

2012

PLN

(thousands, except per share data)

207,025 198,759
(164,460) (148,352)
42,565 50,407
774 (970)
(6,821) (6,200)
(15,905) (15,972)
(2,608) (1,953)
731 967
18,736 26,279
1,876 3,433
(3,371) (1,441)
(1,495) 1,992
17,241 28,271
1,181 3,040
18,422 31,311
604 344
19,026 31,655
0.070 0.116
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Revenue

Total revenue increased by PLN 8.3 million (4.2%ni PLN 198.7 million during the year ended 31 Deber 2012
to PLN 207.0 million during the year ended 31 Deben013, which increase is primarily explainedayincrease in
apartments delivered to the customers in termsex aize (in rf). The increase is offset in part by a decreasién
average selling price pem

Costof sales

Cost of sales increased by PLN 16.1 million (10.98%n PLN 148.4 million during the year ended 31cBmber 2012
to PLN 164.5 million during the year ended 31 Debem2013, which is primarily explained by the irase in
apartments delivered to the customers in termsed aize (in ), which is partly offset by a slight decreaselie t
average cost of sales pef.rBuring the year ended 31 December 2012, Costlessvas furthermore impacted by the
write-down adjustment on the Constans project.

Gross margin

The gross margin during the year ended 31 Dece2®EB was 20.6% compared to the gross margin dihiagear
ended 31 December 2012 of 25.4%. The decreas®ds gnargin is primarily explained by the increaawmber of
units delivered in less profitable projects.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by PLNnflkon (10.0%) from PLN 6.2 million for the yeanded
31 December 2012 to PLN 6.8 million for the yeadesh 31 December 2013. The increase of expensextsethe
changing market dynamics, which demand that deeetopndertake a more proactive sales and markeffog in a
more competitive environment. Simultaneously, thenber of units sold by the Company in the pericttéased by
50.5% (from 380 units during the year ended 31 b 2012 to 572 units during the correspondingppgen 2013).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by PLN 0.1 mil{ia4%) from PLN 16.0 million for the year endetl Becember
2012 to PLN 15.9 million for the year ended 31 Dmber 2013. The decrease is primarily explained bgaease in
the Management Board bonus which is calculatedopqrtion to the profit before tax. The decreasefiset in part by
an increase in the sales department bonus due indfease in sales.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by PLN 0.6 million (33.5%) PLN 2.0 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@l2 to
PLN 2.6 million for the year ended 31 December 204Bich is primarily explained by an increase inim@nance
expense of unsold units.

Other income

Other income decreased by PLN 0.3 million (24.4%6pf PLN 1.0 million for the year ended 31 Decembet?2 to
PLN 0.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2048ich is primarily explained by a decrease intatincome
from inventory.

Result from operating activities

As a result of the factors described above, the @amy's operating result decreased by PLN 7.6 mijlftom an
operating profit of PLN 26.3 million for the yeanded 31 December 2012 to an operating profit of RBN' million
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Net finance income

Finance income and expenses are accrued and agultals part of the cost price of inventory to #xtent this is
directly attributable to the construction of resitlal units. Unallocated finance income and expsmex capitalized are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

The table below shows the finance income and exgsebsgfore capitalization into inventory and thealtdinance
income and expenses capitalized into inventory.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 2,012 (136) 1,876
Finance expense (17,250) 13,879 (3,371)
Net finance (expense)/income (15,238) 13,743 (1,495)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 3,626 (193) 3,433
Finance expense (19,971) 18,530 (1,441)
Net finance (expense)/income (16,345) 18,337 1,992

Net finance expenses before capitalization decdelgd®LN 1.2 million (6.8%) from PLN 16.4 millioruding the year
ended 31 December 2012 to PLN 15.2 million durlmg year ended 31 December 2013, that is primaxiiyaéned by
a decrease in the reference rates (WIBOR). Theedseris offset in part by an increase in the aeenagj debt position
during the period from PLN 138.7 million during tfieancial year ended 31 December 2012 to PLN 15dilkon
during the financial year ended 31 December 2043yell as a result of accelerated recognition efdhe-time costs
related to the bonds issued in 2011, which werargiased before maturity.

Due to the increased proportion of the finisheddgoim the Company’s inventory (finished apartmertts) amount of
financial expense capitalized decreased.

Income tax benefit/(expense)

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Groalizeel a tax benefit of PLN 1.2 million, in comsomn to a tax
benefit of PLN 3.0 million for the year ended 31c@mber 2012. The tax benefit during the financedrg ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is explaingtidoyecognition of tax assets. The recognitiorheftax assets
took place after an organizational restructuringhef Group, which allowed the Company to utilizetaie tax losses
that in prior periods were deemed not to be usable.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the share of-pontrolling interest (minority shareholders) inofit and losses
from subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by then@my and amounted to PLN 604 thousand (positiwe)iie year
ended 31 December 2013 as compared to PLN 344ahdypositive) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Selected financial data

Exchange rate of Euro versus the Polish Zloty

Average Minimum Maximum Year end
PLN/EUR exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate
2013 (12 months) 4.198 4.067 4.343 4.147
2012 (12 months) 4.185 4.047 4.514 4.088
Source: National Bank of Poland (‘NBP’)
Selected financial data EUR PLN

(thousands, except per share data and number of stes)
For year ended 31 December or as at 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012

Revenues 49,315 47,493 207,025 198,759
Gross profit 10,139 12,045 42,565 50,407
Profit before taxation 4,107 6,755 17,241 28,271
Net profit for the year attributable to

the equity holders of the parent 4,532 7,564 19,026 31,655
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 12,804 (8,657) 53,753 (36,231)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 267 (1,872) 1,119 (7,833)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (11,338) (1,345) (47,596) (5,630)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,733 (11,874) 7,276 (49,694)
Inventory 149,585 163,425 620,330 668,080
Total assets 181,928 192,397 754,456 786,519
Advances received 17,016 16,754 70,565 68,492
Long term liabilities 39,505 37,409 163,827 152,927
Short term liabilities (including advances received 29,795 42,521 123,560 173,824
Equity attributable to the equity holders of thequa 112,174 111,511 465,186 455,858
Share capital 5,054 5,054 20,762 20,762
Average number of equivalent shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) 0.017 0.028 0.070 0.116

* Information is presented in EUR solely for pretsgion purposes. Due to the significant fluctuatafrthe Polish Zloty against the Euro over the

past years, the Statement of Financial Positioradid not accurately reflect the actual comparativencial position of the Company. The

reader should consider changes in the PLN / EURa&xge rate in 2013 comparing to 2012, when reviguliis data.

Selected financial data were translated from Phté iEUR in the following way:

(i) Statement of financial position data were skated using the period end exchange rate publighethe National Bank of Poland for the
last day of the period.

(ii) Statement of comprehensive income and casisftlata were translated using the arithmeticalrage of average exchange rates published

by the National Bank of Poland.
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Position

The following table presents selected details ftbm Consolidated Statement of Financial Positiowlich material
changes had occurred.

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

PLN (thousands)

Inventory 620,330 668,080

Advances received 70,565 68,492

Loans and borrowings 172,536 207,557
Inventory

The balance of inventory is PLN 620.3 million as 3ff December 2013 compared to PLN 668.1 milliono&s
31 December 2012. The decrease in inventory isgsiiynexplained by cost of sales recognized footaltamount of
PLN 163.9 million. The decrease is offset in partthie Group’s investments associated with direcistwiction costs
for a total amount of PLN 90.2 million and a netafince expense capitalized for a total amount of BN million.

Advances received

The balance of advances received is PLN 70.6 miléie of 31 December 2013 compared to PLN 68.5aniléis of
31 December 2012. The increase is a result of adgareceived from clients regarding sales of resigleunits for a
total amount PLN 209.1 million and is offset in fpay revenues recognized from the sale of residkutiits for a total
amount of PLN 207.0 million.

Loans and borrowings

The total of short-term and long-term loans anddwings is PLN 172.5 million as of 31 December 2@b8pared to
PLN 207.6 million as of 31 December 2012. The daseean loans and borrowings is primarily explaibgdepayment
of bonds loans (Series A and B) for the total amdlrN 82.5 million, as well as repayment of banrie for the total
amount PLN 90.6 million. The decrease is offsgtant by the effect of issuance of new bond loarsiéS C, D and E)
for the total amount PLN 113.3 million (net of isstosts), as well as proceeds from bank loansfrizrnk charges for
a total amount of PLN 26.4 million. Of the mentidnBLN 172.5 million, an amount of PLN 20.1 milli@omprises
facilities maturing no later than 31 December 2014.

The maturity structure of the loans and borrowirgffects the Company’s recent activities relatedaods issued in
April 2011, June 2013 and in July 2013. Simultarsdguthe banking loans that were obtained by thengany in the
past 5 to 6 years to partially refinance somefahd acquisitions with short-term and medium-teéanking facilities
are gradually converted into construction loansgmthe Company commences construction in a paatiqubject) and
repaid by the Company after construction is conepletnd the apartments are sold to the customeasldition, for the
majority of projects where construction works haleady commenced, the Company also entered into loan

agreements regarding the financing of construatmsts. The Company intends to repay its loans aneWwings, both
received for land purchases as well as for constnuavorks from the proceeds expected from custenierying

apartments in the projects co-financed with thei@aar loans as well as with the bonds.
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Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

The loans and borrowings may be split into fouregaties: 1) floating rate bond loans, 2) bankingnk related to
residential projects which are completed or undmrstruction, 3) banking loans granted for the feiag of land
purchases related to projects where the Companynbtaientered into loan facilities regarding theafining of
construction works and 4) loans from third parties.

Floating rate bond loans as at 31 December 2013iat@0d to PLN 119.4 million comprising a loan privel amount of
PLN 121.3 million plus accrued interest of PLN QOnillion minus one-time costs directly attributed ttee bond
issuances which are amortized based on the eféettierest method (PLN 2.6 million). For additionabrmation see
Notes 28 and 29 of the Consolidated Financial States.

The bank loans supporting completed projects ojept® under construction are tailored to the péceoastruction
works and of sales. As at 31 December 2013, loattss category amounted to PLN 17.4 million.

The bank loans granted to finance the land purchaseat 31 December 2013 amounted to PLN 24.5omilfi total.
Loans from third parties as at 31 December 2013uatedl to PLN 11.2 million.
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Debt and net debt position

As of 31 December 2013, the Company’s total delitaioks, bonds and third parties amounted to PLN5Li#llion

(31 December 2012: PLN 207.6 million). Taking imtccount the Company’s available cash position ab8tember
2013 amounting to PLN 52.2 million (31 December 20BLN 44.9 million), the net debt position of tG@mpany
amounted to PLN 120.3 million as at 31 Decembe32@1 December 2012: PLN 162.6 million).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations pradbipfrom cash flows provided by its sales actiastias well as
from borrowings under several loan facilities, udihg bonds. The net cash inflow from operatingvé@s and from
financing activities has enabled the Company ta@ed with the development of its residential prigj@nd purchasing
new plots of lands whilst at the same time mairmtgjsufficient liquidity for its day-to-day operatis.

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from operating atigi for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted. N 53.8
million which compares to a net cash outflow usedperating activities during the year ended 31dbdmer 2012 of
PLN 36.2 million. The increase in cash inflow isngipally explained by:

- a net cash inflow from inventory amounting to PL®5 million during year ended 31 December 2013 as
compared to a net cash outflow used in inventorpuating to PLN 23.7 million during the year endetl 3
December 2012. The main reason for increasing dkiw from inventory was an increase in the costales
recognized.

Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from investing ati#&s amounting to PLN 1.1 million during the yearded 31
December 2013 compared to a net cash outflow uséavesting activities totaling PLN 7.9 million dng the year
ended 31 December 2012. The increase is primatgiaged by:

- a net cash outflow used for granting of loans tategl parties amounting to PLN 0.2 million duriing tyear ended
31 December 2013 compared to PLN 7.5 million duthmyyear ended 31 December 2012.

Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in financingivaies totalled PLN 47.6 million during the yeanded
31 December 2013 compared to a net cash outfladlitgg PLN 5.6 million in the year ended 31 Decemp@12. The
decrease is primarily due to:

- a repayment of bonds loans (issued in April 20dt tlie total amount of PLN 82.5 million during tixear ended
31 December 2013 compared to PLN nil during the geded 31 December 2012;

- a repayment of secured bank loans amounting to 0.8l million during the year ended 31 December 2013
compared to a repayment of secured bank loans amguto PLN 48.5 million during the year ended 31
December 2012;

- a payment of announced dividend amounting to PN illion during the year ended 31 December 2013
compared to PLN nil during the year ended 31 Deezrgb12.

The decrease is partly offset by

- proceeds from issuance of newly issued bond loana total amount of PLN 113.3 million (net of issciosts)
during the year ended 31 December 2013 comparetNonil during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime equivalessis —
increased from 60 in 2012 to 66 in 2013. The ingeem the number of employees resulted from the g2my's
expanding activities.

Research and development

The Company and its subsidiaries are not involneahly research and development activities.

Environmental protection

The Company, in conducting its business activitieglertakes to comply with all laws and regulaticegarding use of
land and protection of the natural environment. Twmnpany is not a party to any pending proceedmegarding
potential environmental protection violations.

Quarterly reporting by the Company

As a result of requirements pertaining to U. Doro@ Ltd, one of the Company’s larger (indirectusholders, whose
shares are listed on the Tel Aviv stock excharge fitst quarter reports, semi-annual reports aird fuarter reports
are subject to a full scope review by the Comparaislitors. For the Company itself, being domiciiedthe
Netherlands and listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchamgg the semi-annual report is subject to an tatgiiew. The
Company has agreed with U. Dori Group that the scést the first and third quarter audit review wie fully
reimbursed to the Company. The Company considermdpats first and third quarter report providedthvan audit
report a benefit to all of its shareholders.
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A. Completed projects

The table below presents information on the tataidential units in the completed projects/stages the Company
expects to sell and deliver:

Number of residential units expected to

Number of residential units delivered (*) be delivered (*)
During the Sold until  Not sold as Total units
Until 31  period ended Total 31 at 31 expected
December 31 December units December  December to be Total
Project name Location 2012 2013 delivered 2013 2013 delivered project
Constan$™ Warsaw 19 10 29 3 2 5 34
Gemini 11 Warsaw 106 73 179 1 2 3 182
Verdis | & 1™ Warsaw 67 82 149 54 14 68 217
Naturalis 1,11 & 111 ©) Warsaw 33 62 95 11 66 77 172
Sakura | & 11 Warsaw 86 148 234 11 11 22 256
Impressio (7 Wroctaw 43 23 66 1 3 4 70
Chilli 1&11 ¢ Pozna 14 30 44 3 3 6 50
Panoramika (" Szczecin 23 46 69 11 10 21 90
Total 391 474 865 95 111 206 1,071

© For the purpose of disclosing information relatiedthe particular projects, the word “sell” (“sold) is used, that relates to signing the

preliminary sale agreement with the client for teale of the apartment; whereas the word “deliveftdlivered”) relates to the
transferring of significant risks and rewards oétbwnership of the residential unit to the client.

For information on the completed projects see “Besk highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb#8 2 B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 20 to 22).

B. Current projects under construction

The table below presents information on projectsafbich completion is scheduled in 2014 and 201% Tompany
has obtained construction permits for all projetégjes and has commenced construction.

Expected
Total area of Total Units sold until completion of

Project name Location units (m?) units 31 December 2013 construction
Espresso | Warsaw 9,500 210 187 2014
Miody Grunwald | Pozna 8,500 148 69 2014
Chilli 1l Poznah 2,300 38 2 2014
Sakura Ill Warsaw 7,300 145 29 2015
Verdis Il Warsaw 7,700 146 21 2015
Espresso Il Warsaw 7,600 152 29 2015
Impressio Il Wroctaw 8,400 142 1 2015
Tamka Warsaw 5,500 65 10 2015

Total 56,800 1,046 348
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B. Current projects under construction (cont’d)

Espresso | and Il

Description of project

The first and the second phase of the Espresseqiraje being developed on a part of a land sfrisd 92 i located
in Wola district in Warsaw at Jana Kazimierza Str@de first and the second phase of this projaitoomprise 2
seven-eight-nine-and-ten-storey, multi-family resitial buildings with a total of 202 apartments @h@ommercial

units and an aggregate floor space of 9,56@md 2 seven-and-eight -storey, multi-family restit# buildings with a
total of 142 apartments and 10 commercial unitsameggregate floor space of 7,60%) raspectively.

Stage of development

The construction of the Espresso | project commemcéarch 2012, while completion is expected ia fist quarter
of 2014. The construction of the Espresso Il progmmmenced in August 2013, while completion isextpd in the
second quarter of 2015.

Mtody Grunwald |

Description of project

The first phase of the Miody Grunwald project isnigedeveloped on a part of a land strip of 15,449lanated in
Grunwald district in Poznaat Jeleniogérska Street. The first phase of thigept will comprise 3 six-storey, multi-

family residential buildings with a total of 136apments and 12 commercial units and an aggredmte $pace of
8,500 .

Stage of development

The construction of the Mtody Grunwald | projechomenced in September 2012, while completion is ebgokin the
second quarter of 2014.

Chilli Il
Description of project

The third phase of the Chilli project is being deped on a part of a land strip of 39,604 lwcated in Tulce near
Pozna, and is a continuation of Chilli I and Chilli Nvhich were completed during 2012 and 2013. Thealthirase of
this project will comprise 38 units with an aggregfoor space of 2,300

Stage of development

The construction of the Chilli Il project commemncen September 2013, while completion is expectethe fourth
quarter of 2014.

Sakura Il

Description of project

The third phase of the Sakura project is being ldgesl on a part of a land strip of 21,008 lotated in the Mokotéw
district in Warsaw at Klobucka Street and is a pardtion of Sakura | and Sakura Il, which were ctatgd during

2012 and 2013. The third phase of this project edlinprise 1 six-and-seven-storey, multi-family desitial building
with a total of 145 apartments and an aggregate #pace of 7,300

Stage of development

The construction of the Sakura Ill project commehiteOctober 2013, while completion is expectethimfirst quarter
of 2015.
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B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsacont’d)

Verdis llI

Description of project

The third phase of the Verdis project is being dtmwed on a part of a land strip of 16,306 located in the Wola
district in Warsaw at Sowiskiego Street and is a continuation of Verdis | &eddis 1l, which were completed during

2012 and 2013. The third phase of this project wiimprise 2 seven-and-eleven-storey, multi-famégidential
buildings with a total of 140 apartments and 6 caruial units and an aggregate floor space of 700

Stage of development

The construction of the Verdis Ill project commethda October 2013, while completion is expectedha second
quarter of 2015.

Impressio Il
Description of project

The second and the last phase of the Impressiegirisj being developed on a part of a land strip4500 r located
in the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw at Rymarskae8t, and is a continuation of Impressio |, whichswompleted
during 2012. The last phase of this project wilinpise 5 four-storey, multi-family residential kdithgs with a total of
142 units with an aggregate floor space of 8,460 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Impressio Il project comoezhin November 2013, while completion is expedteithe second
quarter of 2015.

Tamka
Description of project

The Tamka project is being developed on a lang stfi2,515 m located in theSrédmiecie district in Warsaw at
Tamka Street (Warsaw city center). The Tamka ptojéit comprise 1 eight -storey, multi-family residtial building
with a total of 60 apartments and 5 commercialawith an aggregate floor space of 5,500 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Tamka project commencedanember 2013, while completion is expected intthedl quarter
of 2015.
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C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2014

As the Company is aware of the increasing compaetith the market, the Company has been carefulanage the
number of new projects and the makeup of such gtoje order to best satisfy consumer demand. Qu2idil4, the
Company is considering the commencement of devedopof another six stages of currently running gctg and four
new projects, which management believes are wékduto current customer requirements, includingaléen

apartments at more economical prices. Furthermuoreyder to minimize market risk, the Company’s regement
breaks down the new projects into relatively smmadtages. In the event of any market deterioraiodifficulties with

securing financing by the banks for the considgmajects, management may further delay some oktptans.

a) New Projects

Moko

The Moko project will be developed on a land swip12,150 M located in the Mokotéw district in Warsaw at
Magazynowa Street. The project will comprise 39Bsuwith an aggregate floor space of 23,600amd will be divided
into 2 or more phases. The first stage is to cosepfi90 units with an aggregate floor space of D120 The
Company is considering commencing constructiomeffirst phase of this project during 2014.

Copernicus

The Copernicus project will be developed on a latrip of 5,605 rh located in the Jgce district in Pozna at
Koscielna Street. The project will comprise 307 umiith an aggregate floor space of 15,200 Whe first stage is to
comprise 149 units with an aggregate floor space &0 m. The Company is considering commencing constractio
of the first phase of this project during 2014.

Jasminowa

The Jasminowa project will be developed on a larig sf 118,437 rhlocated inthe Mokotéw district in Warsaw at
Jasminowa Street. The project will comprise 656suwith an aggregate floor space of 49,200 Time first stage is to
comprise 101 units with an aggregate floor spac 400 M. The Company is considering commencing constractio
of the first phase of this project during 2014.

Skierniewicka

The Skierniewicka project will be developed on adastrip of 8,893 flocated inthe Wola district in Warsaw at
Skierniewicka Street. The project will comprise 458ts with an aggregate floor space of 23,960 Fhe first stage is
to comprise 133 units with an aggregate floor spate5,100 M. The Company is considering commencing
construction of the first phase of this projectidgr2014.

b) New stages of running projects

Panoramika Il

The Panoramika Il project is a continuation of Ranuka |. The project will comprise 105 units wiln aggregate
floor space of 5,600 fnThe Company is considering commencing constraatiothis project during the remainder of
2014.

Sakura IV

The Sakura IV project is the last stage of the &alkwoject and is a continuation of Sakura I, 1tl &t projects. The
project will comprise 114 units with an aggregdt®f space of 6,600 mThe Company is considering commencing
construction of this project during 2014.
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C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2014 (cont’d)

b) New stages of running projects (cont'd)

Verdis IV

The Verdis IV project is the last stage of the \fgngroject and is a continuation of Verdis I, lldahl projects. The
project will comprise 78 units with an aggregatofl space of 4,000 TnThe Company is considering commencing
construction of this project during 2014.

Espresso Il

The Espresso Il project is continuation of Espoebs@nd Il projects. The project will comprise 166its with an
aggregate floor space of 9,106.Mhe Company is considering commencing constroaifcthis project during 2014.

Mtody Grunwald Il

The Mtody Grunwald Il project is a continuationMfody Grunwald | project. The project will comprid&7 units with
an aggregate floor space of 8,206 ffihe Company is considering commencing constroctibthis project during
2014.

Chilli vV

The Chilli IV project is a continuation of Chilli, lll and 11l projects. The project will comprise 38its with an
aggregate floor space of 2,306.Mhe Company is considering commencing constroaifcthis project during 2014.
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D. Value of the preliminary sales agreements signeith clients for which revenue has not
been recognized in the Consolidated Statement ofm@rehensive Income as at
31 December 2013

The current volume and value of the preliminargesagreements signed with the clients do not imipecBtatement
of Comprehensive Income account immediately buy afiler final settlement of the contracts with thestomers (for
more details see under “A — Projects completed”vabon page 32). The table below presents the vafuthe
preliminary sales agreements executed with the @orip clients in particular for units that have been recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivenheco

Value of the preliminary sales

agreements signed with clients in Completed / expected
Project name Location thousands of PLN completion of construction
Gemini 11©) Warsaw 712 Completed
Verdis 1 & 11 ©) Warsaw 21,675 Completed
Sakura | & I Warsaw 6,618 Completed
Naturalis I, 11l & 111 © Warsaw 3,394 Completed
Panoramika { Szczecin 2,835 Completed
Constang’ Warsaw 3,107 Completed
Impressio ) Wroctaw 429 Completed
Chilli1&11 © Pozna 625 Completed
Subtotal completed projects 39,395
Espresso §” Warsaw 53,778 2014
Miody Grunwald I Pozna 17,711 2014
Chilli 11 Pozna 433 2014
Sakura 111 Warsaw 9,313 2015
Espresso I{” Warsaw 8,652 2015
Verdis 1117 Warsaw 7,776 2015
Impressio 1" Wroctaw 418 2015
Tamka™ Warsaw 10,503 2015
Subtotal projects under construction 108,584
Total 147,979

© For information on the completed projects seesiBess highlights during the year ended 31 Decer2b&B — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 20 to 22).

e For information on current projects under constiinat see “Outlook for 2014 — B. Current projectsden construction” (pages 32 to 34).

E. Main risks and uncertainties during 2014

While the improving market in 2013, that appea@@dcelerate in the second half of the year, piaignbodes well

for the Company in 2014 and in 2015, the overaineenic situation in Europe and in Poland and thgoarg

uncertainties in the housing market make it veffjadilt to predict results for 2014 precisely. Tleeel of development
of the Polish economy, the performance of the bapkndustry and consumers’ interest in new hougirgjects, as
well as increasing competition in the market anesotered to be the most significant uncertaintieste financial year
ending 31 December 2014.
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Major shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of the @f publication of this annual report (5 Mardhl2), the
following shareholders are entitled to exerciserd@fé of the voting rights at the General MeetingSbfareholders in
the Company:

As of As of As of
5 March 2014 Change in 31 December 2013 Change in 31 December 2012
Number of shares / number of Number of shares / number Number of shares /
% of shares shares % of shares of shares % of shares
Shares issued 272,360,000 - 272,360,000 - B0B0
Major shareholders:
o 87,449,187 87,449,187 - 87,449,187
ITR.2012B.V. 32.1% 32.1% 32.1%
I.T.R. Dori B.V. 87,449,187 87,449,187 - 87,449,187
32.1% 32.1% 32.1%
GE Real Estate CE 41,800,000 41,800,000 - 41,800,000
Residential B.V®" 15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
Amplico Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10
ING Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10

© In December 2012, I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and I.T.R. DBrV. entered into a partnership formed under Duéaty, which holds the voting rights
attached to 174,898,374 shares in the Companyseqiag 64.2% of the total number of shares inGbmpany, which were previously held by
I.T.R. Dori B.V.

§ I.T.R. 2012 B.V. is an indirect subsidiary of lsk@heaters Ltd. and |.T.R. Dori B.V. is a subsidiaf U. Dori Group Ltd.

) On 14 November 2013, , the shares in GE Real E€lBtdResidential B.V. were (indirectly, through taequisition of the shares of RN
Development Holding B.V.) acquired by |.T.R. 2012/Band U. Dori Group Ltd., which due to this trangon increased indirect shareholding
in Ronson by 7.67% each. As a result of this tretisa Israel Theaters Ltd. indirectly controls 34 of the Company’s shares and U. Dori
Group Ltd. indirectly controls 39.78% of the Comparshares.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shabgsManagement Board members in the year ended
31 December 2013 and until the date of publicatiohthe report

Shares

The following members of the Management Board olares in the Company:

- Mr Ronen Ashkenazi as at 31 December 2013 and #Hseaday of publishing this report indirectly heddL%
interest in the Company.

- Mr Israel Greidinger, as at 31 December 2013 arat dise day of publishing this report, indirectlgidh 8.03% of
the shares and 8.63% of the voting rights in them@any.
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Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shalssSupervisory Board members in the year ended
31 December 2013 and until the date of publicatiohthe report

Shares
The following members of the Supervisory Board @liares in the Company:

- Mr Arie Mientkavich as at 31 December 2013 and tath@ day of publishing this report indirectly h&dldD07%
interest in the Company.

Changes in the Management Board in the year endddicember 2013 and until the date of publication
of the report

Mr Pierre Decla was appointed on 27 June 2013.edigmed on 25 November 2013, in connection withstile of the
shares in RN Development Holding B.V. (holding 10@¥the shares in GE Real Estate CE Residential)Bby
General Electric Capital Corporation (“GE”), asesult of which GE does no longer own (directly mdirectly) any
shares in the Company. Mr Decla represented GE@Management Board.

Changes in the Supervisory Board in the year endddDecember 2013 and until the date of publication
of the report

Mr Frank Roseen resigned on 25 November 2013, imection with to the sale of the shares in RN Dewelent
Holding B.V. (holding 100% of the shares in GE Ré&atate CE Residential B.V.) by General Electriqi@d
Corporation (“GE"), as a result of which GE doeslaoger own (directly or indirectly) any shareglie Company. Mr
Roseen represented GE on the Supervisory Board.

Indemnity for Management Board members and SupeovisBoard members

The Articles of Association of the Company provide an indemnification for all directors of the Cpany (article
42). The members of the Supervisory Board and Mamegt Board shall be reimbursed for (i) all reabtmaosts of
conducting a defense against claims based on aé¢#lures to act in the exercise of their duti@g,any damages or
fines payable by them as a result of an act ouriaito act in the exercise of their duties, andl i@asonable costs of
appearing in other legal proceedings in which they involved as current or former directors of @@mpany. No
indemnification will be given to any director if itas been determined by a judgment which is nodosgbject to
appeal, that the act or failure to act is char&ddras willful misconduct or gross negligence. dkettons to award the
indemnification in a specific case are to be disetbin the Annual Accounts of the Company. Adoptibthe Annual
Accounts will be considered to be approval of sue$plutions, unless the General Meeting of Shadehsldecides
otherwise.
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Overview of the results during the three months edd31 December 2013

The Company’s net income for the three months erRledecember 2013 was PLN 1,192 thousand and can be

summarized as follows:

For the three months ended 31 December 2013 2012
Unaudited Unaudited
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue 39,060 125,319
Cost of sales (33,005) (86,854)
Gross profit 6,055 38,465
Changes in the value of investment property 774 (970)
Selling and marketing expenses (1,686) (1,758)
Administrative expenses (3,954) (5,305)
Other expenses (669) (1,021)
Other income 251 38
Result from operating activities 771 29,449
Finance income 447 594
Finance expense (708) (543)
Net finance income/(expense) (261) 51
Profit before taxation 510 29,500
Income tax benefit 432 1,781
Profit for the period before non-controlling interests 942 31,281
Non-controlling interests 250 75
Net profit for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent 1,192 31,356

Other

As of 31 December 2013, the Company has issuedagtgas for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimguto

a total of PLN 34,753 thousand.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had no litigatttaims or liabilities that in total exceed 10%thé Group’s

equity.

The following net movements in the Group’s mainyismns took place during the year ended 31 Dece0£3:

e adecrease in the provision for deferred tax lisdd of PLN 576 thousand (an increase of PLN 5@2@Lisand

during the year ended 31 December 2012).
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Statement relating to the system of internal coritro

In line with best practice provision 11.1.4 of tHeutch Code and bearing in mind the recommendatminghe
Monitoring Committee Corporate Governance Code,Gbenpany issues a declaration about the effectssné the
system of internal control of the processes on kvttie financial reporting is based.

In 2013, the Management Board assessed the eHeetg of the system of internal controls for firaneporting.

During the investigation on which this assessmeag tased, no shortcomings were identified that npghsibly have
a material impact on the financial reporting. Oa tasis of the results of the above assessmerthanisk analyses
that were carried out at the Company within thenfeavork of governance and compliance, the ManageBweatd is of

the opinion - after consulting with the Audit Contitee and with the approval of the Supervisory Boattat the

system of internal controls provides a reasonaldgrab of certainty that the financial reporting tegms no

inaccuracies of material importance. An inhereatrednt in how people and organizations work togeither dynamic
world is that systems of internal control cannodvide an absolute degree (though they can provideaaonable
degree) of certainty as regards the prevention aterial inaccuracies in the financial reporting dhnel prevention of
losses and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foaisa the financial reporting, functioned effectivelver the past year.
There are no indications that the system of inferaatrols will not function effectively in 2014.

Directors Representation statement

In conjunction with the EU Transparency Directive iacorporated in Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Findn®larkets
Supervision Act (Wet op het financieel toezichg tManagement Board therefore confirms to the biegs &nowledge
that:

- the Annual Financial Statements for the year en8ieddecember 2013 give a true and fair view of theets,
liabilities, financial position and profits and foef the Company and its subsidiaries,

- the additional management information discloseth@nAnnual Report gives a true and fair view of @@mpany and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 and the afiairs during the financial year to which tleport relates, and

- the annual report describes the principal risknfigdhe Company. These are described in detail it Director’s
Report.

Representation concerning election of the Compangigitor

The Management Board confirms that the Company&tauhas been elected according to applicablesraled the
audit firm and its registered accountants engagdtié audit of the financial statements of Ronsaroge N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indepatnceport, the agreement with the auditors wasesigon 25 July
2013. For information about agreed-upon engagenadritee Company’s auditor see Note 15 of the Companancial
Statements.
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Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For information on the financial risk managemeitjectives and policies see Note 39 of the Constil&inancial
Statements.

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz taiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer algs and Marketing Director
Ronen Ashkenazi Israel Greidinger

Rotterdam, 5 March 2014
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To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholdersafigon Europe N.V.

Independent auditor’s report

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésr20l3 of Ronson Europe N.V., Rotterdam, as seboypages
45 to 115. The financial statements consist of chaasted financial statements and the company Gizrstatements.
The consolidated financial statements comprisectmsolidated statements of financial position as3deDecember
2013, the consolidated statements of profit or os$ other comprehensive income, consolidatedrsétts of changes
in equity and consolidated statements of cash flofvhe year then ended and notes, comprising arsugnof the

significant accounting policies and other explanatmformation. The company financial statementsnpdse the

company statement of financial position as at 3tdbeber 2013, the company statement of profit o fos the year
then ended, the company statement of changes ityemqd company statement of cash flows for the yken ended
and notes, comprising a summary of the accountiigips and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of these financial statementscocomdance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as tatbpy the European Union and with Part 9 of Boak the Dutch
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the Diretddvoard report in accordance with Part 9 of Boo&f 2he Dutch
Civil Code. Furthermore management is responsiistich internal control as it determines is neags® enable the
preparation of the financial statements that axe from material misstatement, whether due to faugtror.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hfsisancial statements based on our audit. We adadwur audit in
accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch 8tds on Auditing and International Standards odi#g. This
requires that we comply with ethical requirememtd plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabkéeirance about
whether the financial statements are free from rizteisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtainliaevidence about the amounts and disclosurdkeirfinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend onditers judgment, including the assessment ofigles of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whethertd fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor derssiinternal control relevant to the entity's ar@gion and fair

presentation of the financial statements in ordatesign audit procedures that are appropriatedtircumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion orefffectiveness of the entity's internal control. &dit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting dicised and the reasonableness of accounting estimade by

management, as well as evaluating the overall ptaien of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaiseslifficient and appropriate to provide a basis dur audit
opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financiaktatements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaegive a true and fair view of the financial pmsit of Ronson
Europe N.V. as at 31 December 2013 and of its tesd its cash flows for the year then ended iroatance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as tbpy the European Union and with Part 9 of BoaK the Dutch
Civil Code.
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Opinion with respect to the company financial statments

In our opinion, the company financial statemented true and fair view of the financial positiohRonson Europe
N.V. as at 31 December 2013 and of its result édash flows for the year then ended in accordavidePart 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section92:3ub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code,
we have no deficiencies to report as a result efexamination whether the Director’s report, to theent we can
assess, has been prepared in accordance with BaB®&ok 2 of this Code, and whether the informatas required
under Section 2:392 sub 1 at b-h has been annExether we report that the management board refwothe extent
we can assess, is consistent with the financitdsiants as required by Section 2:391 sub 4 of titelHDCivil Code.

Amsterdam, 5 March 2014

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

Signed by J.H. de Prie
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Othe€omprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenue 6 207,025 198,759
Cost of sales (164,460) (148,352)
Gross profit 42,565 50,407
Changes in the value of investment property 16 774 (970)
Selling and marketing expenses 8 (6,821) (6,200)
Administrative expenses 9 (15,905) (15,972)
Other expenses 11 (2,608) (1,953)
Other income 12 731 967
Result from operating activities 18,736 26,279
Finance income 13 1,876 3,433
Finance expense 13 (3,371) (1,441)
Net finance income (1,495) 1,992
Profit before taxation 17,241 28,271
Income tax benefit 14 1,181 3,040
Profit for the year 18,422 31,311
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 18,422 31,311
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

equity holders of the parent 19,026 31,655
non-controlling interests (604) (344)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 18,422 31,311
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basidduted) 27 272,360,000 272,360,000
In Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Net earnings per share attributable to

the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutejl 27 0.070 0.116

The notes on pages 50 to 105 are an integral phittese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 15 9,270 8,660
Investment property 16 9,840 8,279
Loans granted to third parties 17 629 1,043
Loans granted to related parties 18 8,536 7,704
Deferred tax assets 19 12,470 11,798
Total non-current assets 40,745 37,484
Current assets

Inventory 20 620,330 668,080
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 21 38,027 30,661
Income tax receivable 524 2,422
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 22 1,268 2,944
Loans granted to third parties 17 843 -
Other current financial assets 23 515 -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 52,204 44,928
Total current assets 713,711 749,035
Total assets 754,456 786,519

The notes on pages 50 to 105 are an integral phittese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (cond)

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium 282,873 282,873
Retained earnings 161,551 152,223
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 25 465,186 455,858
Non-controlling interests 26 1,883 3,910
Total equity 467,069 459,768
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 28, 29 113,759 86,756
Secured bank loans 28, 30 27,528 39,893
Loans from third parties 28,31 11,192 13,932
Other payables 394 816
Deferred tax liability 19 10,954 11,530
Total non-current liabilities 163,827 152,927
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 32 32,728 38,090
Floating rate bond loans 28,29 5,607 1,657
Secured bank loans 28, 30 14,450 65,319
Advances received 33 70,565 68,492
Income tax payable 9 35
Provisions 34 201 231
Total current liabilities 123,560 173,824
Total liabilities 287,387 326,751
Total equity and liabilities 754,456 786,519

The notes on pages 50 to 105 are an integral phtttese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 Decemb@12:

Attributable to the
Equity holders of parent

Share Share Retained & Total
. - - Total controlling —=
capital premium earnings interests equity
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) —_—
Balance at 1 January 2012 20,762 282,873 120,568 4,203 4,254 428,457
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 - - 5.6 31,655 (344) 31,311
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 31,655 31,655 (344) 31,311
Balance at 31 December 2012 20,762 282,873 152,223455,858 3,910 459,768
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 - - 2,0 19,026 (604) 18,422
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 19,026 19,026 (604) 18,422
Dividend paid (see Note 25) - - (8,171) (8,171) - (8,171)
Acquisition of Non-controlling interest (see
Note 26) - - (1,527) (1,527) (1,423) (2,950)
Balance at 31 December 2013 20,762 282,873 161,551465,186 1,883 467,069

The notes on pages 50 to 105 are an integral ptti@se consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Profit for the period 18,422 31,311
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period to neash used in operating activities

Depreciation 9,15 627 745
Decrease/(increase) in the value of investmentestpp 16 (774) 970
Finance expense 13 3,371 1,441
Finance income 13 (1,876) (3,433)
Profit on sale of property and equipment 12 (152) a77)
Write-down of inventory 20 - 4,957

Income tax benefit 14 (1,181) (3,040)
Subtotal 18,437 32,774
Decrease/(increase) in inventory 41 59,676 (23,749)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivabléprepayments (7,366) (18,307)
Decrease/(increase) in other current financialtasse (515) -

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payableacmded expenses (5,784) 6,690
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 34 (30) (30)

Increase/(decrease) in advances received 2,073 (18,899)
Subtotal 66,491 (21,521)
Interest paid (15,796) (18,068)
Interest received 1,253 3,295
Income tax received 1,805 63
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 53,753 (36,231)

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 15 (713) (692)
Loans granted to third parties 17 (327) -
Loans granted to related parties 18 (175) (7,488)
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 1,676 (432)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 658 779
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 1,119 (7,833)

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Proceeds from bank loans, net of bank charges 30 26,438 35,324
Repayment of bank loans 30 (90,589) (48,442)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 29 113,322 -
Repayment of bond loans 29 (82,500) -
Acquisition of Non-controlling interest 26 (2,950) -
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 25 (8,171) -
Loans received from third parties 31 1,193 7,488
Repayment of loans received from third parties 31 (4,339) -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (47,596) (5,630)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 7,276 (49,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 44,928 94,622
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 52,204 44,928

The notes on pages 50 to 105 are an integral piathi@se consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(@)

(b)

Background and business of the Company

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), a Dutch puldiempany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands, was incorporated on 18 June 2007 rdadjistered office is located at Weena 210-212,dRdém,
the Netherlands. The Company (together with itssRadubsidiaries ‘the Group’), is active in the elepment
and sale of units, primarily apartments, in mudtivily residential real-estate projects to individuastomers in
Poland.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBtavk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2013, 39.78% of the outstanding sharexargolled by I.T.R. 2012 B.V., which is an indite
subsidiary of Israel Theaters Ltd. (‘ITR 2012") (B2% through a jointly controlled partnership fodnender
Dutch law between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. an@7P6 through a jointly controlled company formed end
Dutch law between ITR 2012 and U. Dori Group) afd78% of the outstanding shares are controlled by U
Dori Group Ltd (‘U Dori Group’) (32.11% through aiptly controlled partnership formed under Dutckvla
between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. (of which it del 50% of the shares) and 7.67% through a jointly
controlled company formed under Dutch law betweER 2012 and U. Dori Group). The remaining 20.44% of
the outstanding shares are held by other investoiading Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny and@N
Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny each holding betweenatd 10% of the outstanding shares. The number of
shares held by the investors is equal to the nurabewntes, as there are no privileged shares issyethe
Company.

A list of the companies from which the financiata are included in these Consolidated Financete8tents
and the extent of ownership and control are preskintNote 1(b).

The details of the Polish companies whose finansiatements have been included in these Consalidate
Financial Statements, the year of incorporation #redpercentage of ownership and voting rightsctliyeor
indirectly held by the Company as at 31 DecembéB2@re presented on the following pages.

The projects managed by the companies are in \&astages of development ranging from being in toegss
of acquiring land for development to projects whick completed or near completion.

50



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Background and business of the Company (cont’d)

Year of Share of ownership & voting rights

Entity name incorporation at the end of

31 December 31 December
2013 2012

a. held directly by the Company :
1. Ronson Development Management Sp. z 0.0. 1999 100.0% 100.0%
2. Ronson Development 2000 Sp. z o.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
3. Ronson Development Warsaw Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
4. Ronson Development Investment Sp. z o.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
5. Ronson Development Metropol Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
6. Ronson Development Properties Sp. z o0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
7. Ronson Development Apartments Sp. z 0.0. 2003 100.0% 100.0%
8. Ronson Development Enterprise Sp. z o0.0. 2004 100.0% 100.0%
9. Ronson Development Company Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
10. Ronson Development Creations Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
11. Ronson Development Buildings Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
12. Ronson Development Structure Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
13. Ronson Development Pozn&p. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
14. E.E.E. Development Sp. z o0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
15. Ronson Development Innovation Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
16. Ronson Development Wroctaw Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
17. Ronson Development Capital Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
18. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
19. Ronson Development Construction Sp. z o0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
20. Ronson Development City Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
21. Ronson Development Village Sp. z d®. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
22. Ronson Development Conception Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
23. Ronson Development Architecture Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
24. Ronson Development Skyline Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
25. Ronson Development Continental Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
26. Ronson Development Universal Sp. z 6o. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
27. Ronson Development Retreat Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
28. Ronson Development South Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
29. Ronson Development West Sp. z 6'b. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
30. Ronson Development East Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
31. Ronson Development North Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
32. Ronson Development Providence Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
33. Ronson Development Finco Sp. z 0.0. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
34. Ronson Development Partner 2 sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
35. Ronson Development Skyline 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
36. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0. 2012 100.0% 100.0%

(1) The Company has the power to govern the financial @perating policies of this entity and to obtaienefits from its activities, whereas
Kancelaria Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubrzycki hafgslegal title to the shares of this entity.
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1. Background and business of the Company (cont’d)
Share of ownership & voting rights
Entity name Year of incorporation at the end of

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

b. held indirectly by the Company :

37. AGRT Sp. zo.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
38. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0.- Panoraipka 2007 100.0% 100.0%
39. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0. — Estate Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
40. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — Home Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
41. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 — Horizon Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
42. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0- Sakura Sp.k 2007 100.0% 100.0%
43. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 —Town Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
44. Ronson Development Destiny Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
45. Ronson Development Millenium Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
46. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-EEE 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
47. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Apartments 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
48. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-ldea Sp.k 2009 100.0% 100.0%
49. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Destiny 2011 Sp.k. 0092 100.0% 100.0%
50. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Enter@f41 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
51. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Retf¥t 3p.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
52. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Wroctaw 2011 Sp.k. 0920 100.0% 100.0%
53. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
54. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. — Gemini 2 Sp.k. 9200 100.0% 100.0%
55. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.- Verdis Sp.k. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
56. Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. 2006 82.0% 68.4%
57. Ronson Development Apartments 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
58. Ronson Development 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
59. Ronson Development Retreat 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
60. Ronson Development Enterprise 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
61. Ronson Development Wroctaw 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
62. E.E.E. Development 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
63. Ronson Development Nautica 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
64. Ronson Development Gemini 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
65. Ronson IS sp. z0.& 2010 50.0% 50.0%
66. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Naturalis Sp.k. 1201 100.0% 100.0%
67. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Impressio Sp.k. 1201 100.0% 100.0%
68. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Continental 201k.Sp 2011 100.0% 100.0%
69. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Providence 2014 Sp. 2011 100.0% 100.0%
70. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. — Capithl Bp. k 2011 100.0% 100.0%
71. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Architecture 201.k.S 2011 100.0% 100.0%
72. Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. SpR. 2012 50.0% 50.0%
73. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 1 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%
74. Ronson Development Sp. z o.0. - City 2 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%
75. Ronson Development Sp. z o0.0. - City 3 Sp.k. 2012 100.0% 100.0%

(2) The Group accounts for the investments in Rons@&pl& 0.0. and in Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. Sp.k. ewestment in a jointly controlled entity in
accordance with IAS 31, i.e. the proportionate cdidsition method is applied.
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2.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Basis of preparation and measurement

Basis of preparation and statement of compliare

These Consolidated Financial Statements have Ipeepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘IFRS0). the year ended 31 December 2013, in light ef th
current process of IFRS endorsement in the Europkedgaon and the nature of the Group’s activitiegréhis no
difference between the IFRSs applied by the Graugp the IFRSs endorsed by the European Union. IFRSs
comprise standards and interpretations accepteldebinternational Accounting Standards Board (“IAs&nd

the International Financial Reporting InterpretaidCommittee (“IFRIC”). The Company Financial Staésnts
have been prepared in accordance with article 3&2!8 Netherlands Civil Code.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were auhdrby the Boards of Directors of Ronson Europe. NV

5 March 2014.

These Consolidated Financial statements have pesgpared on the assumption that the Group is aggoin
concern, meaning it will continue in operation tbe foreseeable future and will be able to readigeets and
discharge liabilities in the normal course of ifeoations.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have begpaped on the historical cost basis, except foestment
property which was measured at fair value. The odshused to measure fair values for the purpogeciare
the Consolidated Financial Statements are discUsstetr in Note 35.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eantity in the Group are measured using the cuyrefche
primary economic environment in which the entityemges (the ‘functional currency’) being Polish &¥lo
(‘PLN’). The Consolidated Financial Statements gresented in thousands of Polish Zloty, except when
otherwise indicated, which is the parent compamgfional and presentation currency. Although then@Gany

is Dutch, it operates mainly in Poland.

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requirasagement to make judgments, estimates and assushiat
affect the application of accounting policies ahé teported amounts of assets, liabilities, thelaksire of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effihancial statements, and the reported amounitscoime and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resnéty differ from these estimates. Estimates anceriyidg
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. iRegit0 accounting estimates are recognized ipdhnod in
which the estimate is revised.
In particular, information about significant areafsestimation, uncertainty and critical judgmemsapplying
accounting policies that have the most significafféct on the amounts recognized in the finandetiesnents,
are described in the following notes:

Note 16 — investment property

Note 19 — utilization of tax losses

Note 20 — inventory

Note 21 — trade and other receivables and prepagmen

Note 34 — provisions

Note 37 — commitments and contingencies

Estimation of net realizable value for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and ratizable value (NRV). NRV for completed inventqmpperty is
assessed with reference to market conditions aicdgexisting at the reporting date and is detegthiny the
Group having taken suitable external advice anthénlight of recent market transactions. NRV inpexg of
inventory property under construction is assess#iuneference to market prices at the reporting datt similar
completed property, less estimated costs to compmletstruction and less an estimate of the timaevalf
money to the date of completion.
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2.

(d)

(e)

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)
Use of estimates and judgments (cont'd)

Valuation of investment property

The fair value of the investment property is deiaead by independent real estate valuation expagsdon the
discounted cash flow approach. The determinatiotheffair value of the investment property requites use
of estimates such as future cash flows from aqsetsh as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revestreams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, any enwingental matters and the overall repair and conditb the

property) and discount rates applicable to thosetas

Deferred tax asset recognition

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unusetbsars and deductible temporary differences tegent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be availatdgainst which the losses and deductible tempaliffarences
can be utilized. Significant management judgmengdgiired to determine the amount of deferred &sets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing thedlevel of future taxable profits together withure tax
planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Notent¥4Note 19.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Compan

Control exists when the Company has the powepteig the financial and operating policies of atiterso as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assegsiontrol, potential voting rights that presenthg @&xercisable
are taken into account. The financial statementsutfsidiaries are included in the consolidated nione

statements from the date that control commencaékthatdate that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and argalined gains and losses arising from intra-groapsactions,
are eliminated during consolidation. Jointly cotiéd entities are those enterprises over whoseviieti the
Company has joint control, established by contacagreements. The Consolidated Financial Statesment
include the Company’s proportionate share of therpnises’ assets, liabilities, revenues and exgemngth
items of similar nature on a line-by-line basisnfrthe date that joint control commences untildage that joint
control ceases.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are pezhfor the same period as the financial stateroéparent.
The Group entities keep books of accounts in aerae with accounting policies specified in the Aatting

Act dated 29 September 1994 (‘the Accounting Aetith subsequent amendments and the regulationsdssu
based on that Act (all together: ‘Polish Accounti&tandards’). Ronson Europe N.V. keeps the books of
accounts in accordance with accounting policiesiired by Dutch law. These consolidated financiateshents
include a number of adjustments not included inttheks of account of the Group entities, which weaeele in
order to bring the financial statements of thoditiea to conformity with IFRSs.

Where property is acquired, via corporate acdaisitor otherwise, management considers the sutestathe
assets and activities of the acquired entity iredeining whether the acquisition represents theiiaten of a
business. Where such acquisitions are not judgdaetan acquisition of a business, they are notddeas
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acdh&ecorporate entity is allocated between the itlehte
assets and liabilities of the entity based on thelative fair values at the acquisition date. Adiagly, no
goodwill or additional deferred taxation arises.h@tvise, acquisitions are accounted for as business
combinations.
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2. Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

() Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted for the prepanatd the current Consolidated Financial Statememts
consistent with those of the previous financialry@de Group has adopted the following amendmentERS
and IFRIC interpretations applicable to annual répg periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013:

. Amendments tdAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Presentatibiiems of Other
Comprehensive Income

e  Amendments to IFRS Eirst-time Adoption of International Financial Rapiag Standards- Government
Loans

e Amendments to IFRS Financial Instruments: DisclosuresOffsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities- Amendments to IFRS 7

e Amendments to IAS 1thcome Taxes: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlyiagets
e IFRS 13Fair Value Measurement
e Amendments to IAS 18mployee Benefits
e IFRIC 20Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Swfisiine
e Improvements to IFRSs (issued in May 2012):
- IAS 1 — Clarification of the requirement for comative information
- IAS 16 — Classification of servicing equipment
- IAS 32 — Tax effects of distributions to holdersegjfuity instruments
- IAS 34 — Interim financial reporting and segmeribimation for total assets and liabilities

Adoption of the above new standards and amendn@standards did not have impact on the finammaition
or performance of the Group.

The Group has not early adopted any other stand#etpretation or amendment that was issuedsnbti yet
effective. The Adoption of: IFRS 10 Consolidatedhdticial Statements, restated IAS 27 Separate Ralanc
Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, restat&l 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventunes a
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitiegsvdelayed as allowed till 2014. Based on the mpiadry
analyses performed, IFRS 10, IFRS 12, restated2[A8nd restated IAS 28 are not expected to havéngpgct
on the currently held investments of the Group.

The application of IFRS 11 will impact the finaakiposition of the Group by eliminating proportioma
consolidation of the joint venture in Ronson IS zp.o. and in Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. Sp.k.. Withapglication
of the new standard, these investments will be aea for using the equity method of accounting.
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beepliegp consistently in all periods presented in ¢hes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(@)

(b)

(i)

(©)

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translabeithe respective functional currencies of Groujtiest
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of #ms#ctions using:

the purchase or selling rate of the bank whoseicEare used by the Group — in case of foreign
currency sales or purchase transactions, as wethéncase as of the debt or liability payment
transactions;

the average rate specified for a given currencyhieyNational Bank of Poland as on the transaction
date, unless a customs declaration or other bindiimgment indicates another rate — in case of other
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the rémprtiate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency &easlated using the exchange rates as at the ofaties
initial transactions.

Revenue
Revenue from operations includes:

Revenue from the sale of residential units

Revenues from the sale of residential units aregeized upon transfer to the buyer of the significa
risks and rewards of ownership of the residentidt (i.e. upon signing of the protocol of technical
acceptance and transfer of the key to the resmlentiit), after a valid building occupancy permésh
been obtained by the Group.

Advances received related to pre-sales of residlemtits, which represent deferred income, arerdesde
when they do not meet the criteria to be recognagdevenue. When they subsequently meet these
criteria, they are recognized as revenue.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Groupmprise loans granted, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other cuiremtcial assets, loans and borrowings, and trae a
other payables. All financial assets are recogninéthlly at fair value plus, in the case of int@®nts

not at fair value through profit or loss, direc#ligributable transaction costs.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(©)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

A financial instrument is recognized if the Grougcbmes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognizecifatoup’s contractual rights to the cash flows fribw
financial assets expire or if the Group transféws tinancial asset to another party without retagni
control or substantially all risks and rewards loé isset. Regular way purchases and sales of f@hanc
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. tieetlolgt the Group commits itself to purchase or thel
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized & @roup’s obligations specified in the contractiexpor

are discharged or cancelled.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand amadl & integral part of the Group’s cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash déepiisdor the purpose of the statement of cashslow

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Group elassified into one of the following categories:

Category Statement of financial position item Measurement
Held for trading Cash and cash equivalent Fair value- through profit
and loss

Loans and receivables Short-term deposits Apnsattcosts
Other current financial assets Amortized costs
Loans granted to third parties Amortized costs
Loans granted to related parties Amortized costs
Trade and other receivables Amortized costs

Other financial liabilities Floating rate bonds mArtized costs
Loans from others Amortized costs

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses ortiaea costs

Secured bank loans Amortized costs

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresalets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are cladsd#t current assets, provided their maturity dags n
exceed 12 months after the reporting date. Loadsraceivables with maturities exceeding 12 months
from the reporting date are classified under nomesu assets. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized asing the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses aregm®ized in the statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognizeidhpaired, as well as, through the amortization
process.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amedizost using the effective interest method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(d)
()

(ii)

(e)

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured dtless accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atteble to the acquisition of the asset. The costetff
constructed assets includes the cost of matenmisdaect labor, any other costs directly attrilleato
bringing the asset to a working condition for ittended use, and the costs of dismantling and remgov
the items and restoring the site on which they@rated.

When significant parts of property, plant and emapt are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assetsspecific useful lives and depreciation, respetyi
Likewise, when a major inspection is performedcist is recognized in the carrying amount of tlaap
and equipment as a replacement if the recognitiberia are satisfied. All other repair and mairaece
costs are recognized in the statement of compréareimcome as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineibaser the estimated useful life of each comporént
an item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful life of property and equipmdapending on the class of asset, ranges fron¥ to
years. Leased assets are depreciated over thershbthe lease term and their useful lives. Landat
depreciated.

When parts of an item of property and equipmenthgifferent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property guipenent.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeslare reassessed at the reporting date, andeatljus
prospectively since the beginning of the yearpifrapriate.

Leases

Finance leases — lessee accounting

Leases in which the Group assumes substantialthaltisks and rewards of ownership are classdiged
finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the lekhasset is measured at an amount equal to the loiwer
its fair value and the present value of the mininmaase payments.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at,cosluding transaction costs. Subsequently taahi
recognition, investment properties are stated at vfalue, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from charigethe fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of comprehensive incanthe period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when eittesr have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and oture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposategds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indartiee period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property when there is a change in use. For a transfen f
investment property to owner occupied property,dbemed cost for subsequently accounting is the fai
value at the date of change in use. If owner o@migiroperty becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance ilith policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.

Inventories of residential units
Inventories consist of multi-family residential restate projects to individual customers.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost atdealizable value. The cost of inventories inekid
expenditure incurred relating to the constructiba project.
Costs relating to the construction of a projectiactuded in inventories of residential units akdios:
costs incurred relating to projects or a phase pfagect which are not available for sale (work in
progress),
costs incurred relating to units unsold associafitidl a project.

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land,

b) construction costs paid to the general contraatddimg the residential project,

¢) planning and design costs,

d) perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxesrataiuring the period of construction,

e) borrowing costs to the extent they are directlyitaitable to the development of the project (see
accounting policy (1)),

f) professional fees attributable to the developméthe project,

g) construction overheads and other directly relatesdsc

Inventory is recognized as a cost of sales in thtement of comprehensive income when the sale of
residential units is recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(h)
(i)
0

(ii)

()
(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables and prepayment
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortizstdess impairment losses.

Equity

Share capital

Share capital includes the proceeds received flmrissue of ordinary shares on the nominal value in
exchange for cash.

Share premium

Share premium includes the excess of proceedsvezt&iom the issue of shares over the nominal value
of shares.

Shares issuance costs are deducted from shareuypnemi

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impairejeotive evidence indicates that one or more evesae

had a negative effect on the estimated future flagls of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assetasured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and thesqme value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tesfer impairment on an individual basis. The rerain
financial assets are assessed collectively in grthgt share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the statgrnécomprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal barrelated objectively to an event occurring afer
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assatasured at amortized cost the reversal is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financiakets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impant. If any such indication exists then the asset’
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the grehtey value in use and its fair value less costsetbh In
assessing value in use, the estimated future dasis fire discounted to present value using a pre-ta
discount rate that reflects current market assestsnoéd the time value of money and the risks spetif

the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods asessed at each reporting date for any indicattaats
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aniimpat loss is reversed if there has been a change
the estimates used to determine the recoverabler@man impairment loss is reversed only to thesakt
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceeddlrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimhéss had been recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(k)

o

(m)

(n)

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pastnt, the Group has a present legal or constaicti
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd td
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtedmined by discounting the expected future chossf
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marketssssents of the time value of money and the risksifip

to the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the invemyt of properties which necessarily take a substhnt
period of time to get ready for their intended wsesale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective assets, moreover the borrowing costciassd with the bonds issued by the Company are
capitalized indirectly to the Company’s inventofyl. other borrowing costs are expensed in the ki
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of ingtrealculated using the effective interest methwd t
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowirfgunds.

The interest capitalized is calculated using th@upls weighted average cost of borrowings after

adjusting for borrowings associated with specifavelopments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalized exqtted gross interest incurred on those borrowings.
Interest is capitalized as from the commencemertheevelopment work until the date of completion.

The capitalization of borrowing costs is suspendetthere are prolonged periods when development
activity is interrupted.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and defeasedQurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates edantesubstantively enacted at the reporting daie aay
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previowsseCurrent tax expense is calculated accordirnigxo
regulations in effect in the jurisdiction in whittie individual companies are domiciled.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balastveet method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitieghaidcarrying amounts for financial reporting poses,
and for tax losses carried forward, except forittitgal recognition of assets or liabilities in @bsaction
that is not a business combination and that affeeither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferrexl ig
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpdied to the temporary differences when they reser
based on the laws that have been enacted or stibstpenacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to therextsat it is probable that future taxable profiil be
available against which the asset can be utiliaé@ach reporting date deferred tax assets areceelio

the extent that it is no longer probable that #lated tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tazets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legallgferceable right exists to set off current tax &ss@ainst
current income tax liabilities and the deferredetaxelate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings pares(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
computations of the basic earnings per share degrdimed on the basis of the weighted average numbe
of shares outstanding during the year. The dil@arhings per share are determined by adjusting the
statement of comprehensive income and the weightethge number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary sbay which comprise share options granted and rights
obtain shares by employees.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r

Share options granted

Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of share options granted to manageéraad other employees as at the grant date is
recognized as an employee expense, with a corrdsgprincrease in equity recognized in retained
earnings, over the period during which the empleyescome unconditionally entitled to the optionse T
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted eztrétile actual number of share options that vest.

Cash-settled transactions

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measauigally at fair value at the grant date. This faalue is
expensed over the period until the vesting datl wdtognition of a corresponding liability. Thehbliity

is re-measured to fair value at each reporting dptéo, and including the settlement date, withncfes
in fair value recognized in employee benefits exggen

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement ofdiabpositions comprise cash at banks and on hadd a
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofetd months or less, except for collateralized digpos

For the purpose of the consolidated statement ftasls, cash and cash equivalents consist of cadh an
short-term deposits as defined above, net of mudstg bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contritortipension plans are recognized as an expense in th
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Poland are requiveder applicable regulations, to pay, on a monthly
basis, social security contributions for the empkg/ future pension benefits. These benefits, aaugr

to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, are state plans amd characterized as defined contribution plans.
Therefore, the Company’s subsidiaries have no legial constructive obligation to pay future
pension benefits and their obligation is limitechyment of contributions as they fall due.

Jointly controlled entities

The Group has an interest in a joint venture whigch jointly controlled entity, whereby the venttare
have a contractual arrangement that establishas gontrol over the economic activities of the snti
The Group recognizes its interest in the joint vemtusing the proportionate consolidation methdee T
Group combines its proportionate share of eachebssets, liabilities, income and expenses gihe
venture with similar items, line by line, in itsresplidated financial statements. The financialestegnts

of the joint venture are prepared for the same ntagpperiod as the parent company. Adjustments are
made where necessary to bring the accounting pslioiline with those of the Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidateahitial statements to eliminate the Group’s shére o
intragroup balances, income and expenses and img@ajains and losses on transactions between the
Group and its jointly controlled entity. Losses wansactions are recognized immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net reblzaalue of current assets or an impairment [oks.
joint venture is proportionately consolidated urntie date on which the Group ceases to have joint
control over the joint venture.

Upon loss of joint control and provided the fornm@nt control entity does not become a subsidiary o
associate, the Group measures and recognizesritsmag investment at its fair value. Any differenc
between the carrying amount of the former jointtomied entity upon loss of joint control and trearf
value of the remaining investment and proceeds filsposal are recognized in profit or loss. Whemn th
remaining investment constitutes significant inflae, it is accounted for as investment in an aaseci
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(s)

Fair Value

The Group measures investment properties at faieva each balance sheet date. In addition, &ires

of financial instruments measured at amortized aostdisclosed in Note 35 and Note 36.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddth @n asset or paid to transfer a liability in@derly
transaction between market participants at the uneasent date. The fair value measurement is based o
the presumption that the transaction to sell tisetagr transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability,

- in the absence of a principal market, in the mdsaatageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market leistccessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measlusing the assumptions that market participantddv
use when pricing the asset or liability, assumihat tmarket participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asakes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset imghest and best use or by selling it to anatienket
participant that would use the asset in its highestbest use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are apptepn the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximgitte use of relevant observable inputs and miningiz
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value imseasured or disclosed in the financial statemergs a
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, ddsed as follows, based on the lowest level input itha
significant to the fair value measurement as a ahol

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marker identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includétthivw Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or imdctly (i.e., derived from prices);

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that ar@t based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognizechanfinancial statements on a recurring basis, theus
determines whether transfers have occurred betweevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input thasignificant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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4.

Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standardianterpretations, insofar endorsed by the Eemop
Union, are not yet effective for the year endedd@tember 2013, and have not been applied in prapthiese
consolidated financial statements:

The first phase of IFRS 9 Financial InstrumentsasSlfication and Measurement and subsequent
amendments — effective date postponed by IASB witlpooposing potential deadline for endorsement,

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements — effedbr financial years beginning on or after 1 Jayu
2013, — in EU effective at the latest for financyedars beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Entity
decided to apply IFRS for the periods beginnindlalanuary 2014,

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — effective for finahgi@ars beginning on or after 1 January 2013 —Unh E
effective at the latest for financial years begimgnion or after 1 January 2014. Entity decided tphap
IFRS for the periods beginning on 1 January 2014,

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitiegffective for financial years beginning on or afte
1 January 2013 — in EU effective at the latestfioancial years beginning on or after 1 Januaryf01
Entity decided to apply IFRS for the periods begigron 1 January 2014,

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Tramsituidance - effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 in EU effexty the latest for financial years beginning omiber
1 January 2014,

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements — effectivdif@ancial years beginning on or after 1 Janudi$2
— in EU effective at the latest for financial yedesginning on or after 1 January 2014. Entity deditb
apply IAS for the periods beginning on 1 Januar¥£,0

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venture$fective for financial years beginning on oteaf
1 January 2013 - in EU effective at the latestfiioancial years beginning on or after 1 January4201
Entity decided to apply IAS for the periods begimmbn 1 January 2014,

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments — Prigem: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities- effective for financial years begingjron or after 1 January 2014,

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investntemities (issued on 31 October 2012) —
effective for financial years beginning on or aftejanuary 2014.

IFRIC 21 Levies — effective for financial years begng on or after 1 January 2014 — not endorsed by
EU till the date of approval of these financialtstaents,

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amounts Disclostdioe Non-Financial Assets (issued on 29 May
2013) — effective for financial years beginningamafter 1 January 2014,

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives andn@uuation of Hedge Accounting (issued on 27
June 2013) — effective for financial years begignim or after 1 January 2014,

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Empe@ontributions (issued on 21 November 2013) —
effective for financial years beginning on or affeduly 2014 — not yet endorsed by EU till the daite
approval of these financial statements,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 — some amentts effective for financial years beginning on
or after 1 July 2014 and some effective prospebtif@ transactions occurring on or after 1 July12G-
not yet endorsed by EU till the date of approvathafse financial statements,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 — effecfefinancial years beginning on or after 1 July
2014 — not yet endorsed by EU till the date of appl of these financial statements,

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts — effective fimancial years beginning on or after 1 January
2016 — not yet endorsed by EU till the date of appl of these financial statements

The Group has not early adopted any other stantfdedpretation or amendment that has been issueid b
not yet effective.
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5. Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments are defined as aepantities developing particular residential petg, which
for the reporting purposes were aggregated. Theeggton for reporting purpose is based on geoggaph
locations (Warsaw, PozhaWroctaw and Szczecin) and type of activity (depehent of apartments and
development of houses). Moreover, for two particalssets the reporting was based on type of incoemtal
income from investment property.

According to the Management Board’'s assessmentppleeating segments identified have similar ecocomi
characteristics. Aggregation based on the typesgélbpment within the geographical location hastsggplied
since primarily the location and the type of depahent determine the average margin that can bzedabn
each project and the project’s risk factors. Cozrsidy the fact that the production process for tpants is
different from that for houses and considering féet that the characteristics of customers buyipgrznents
slightly differ from those of customers interestacbuying houses, aggregation by type of develogmathin
the geographical location has been used for segrapatting and disclosure purposes.

Segment results, assets and liabilities includestdirectly attributable to a segment as well aséfthat can be
allocated indirectly based on reasonable critddiaallocated loss for the year comprises mainly heffide
expenses, unallocated assets comprise mainly eas#id cash and cash equivalents and income taksasse
Unallocated liabilities comprises mainly income tiabilities and floating rate bond loans.

Data presented in the table below are aggregatégplyof development within the geographical lomatti

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

As at 31 December 2013

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Aparients Houses Apartments Houses
Segment
assets 375,915 40,161 9,840 133,607 75,327 2,585 0d0,3 7,688 705,424
Unallocated
assets 49,032 49,032
Total
assets 375,915 40,161 9,840 133,607 75,327 5852, 60,301 7,688 49,032 754,456
Segment
liabilities 117,041 9,774 24,737 - 588 1,279 - - 153,419
Unallocated
liabilities - - - 133,968 133,968
Total
liabilities 117,041 9,774 24,737 - 588 219 - 133,968 287,387
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) As at 31 December 2012

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Aparients Houses Apartments Houses
Segment
assets 420,313 48,260 8,279 102,388 82,118 2,520 810,3 7,659 741,917
Unallocated
assets 44,602 44,602
Total
assets 420,313 48,260 8,279 102,388 82,118 5202, 70,380 7,659 44,602 786,519
Segment
liabilities 181,446 11,451 17,514 - 821 1 10,716 - - 22,9
Unallocated
liabilities - - - 104,802 104,802
Total
liabilities 181,446 11,451 - 17,514 - 821 1 0,716 - 104,802 326,751
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5. Segment reporting (cont’'d)

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Revenue 166,153 9,974 772 9,321 - 8,809 - 11,996 - - 7,026
Segment
result 35,809 (828) 1,203 (900) - (575) 4 301 4) - 35,002
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (16,266)  (16,266)
Result from
operating
activities 35,809 (828) 1,203 (900) - (575) (4) 301 (4) (16,266) 18,736
Net finance
income (533) (22) - 108 - 32 - 12 - (1,092) (1,495)
Profit
before tax 35,276 (850) 1,203 (792) - (543) 4 313 (4) (17,358) 17,241
Income tax
benefit 1,181
Profit for
the year 18,422
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 713 713
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) For the year ended 31 December 2012

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Revenue 159,132 9,863 583 5,117 - 17,689 - 6,375 - 8,199
Segment
result 48,281  (4,697) (697) (796) - 763 4 56 4) - 2,902
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (16,623)  (16,623)
Result from
operating
activities 48,281  (4,697)  (697) (796) - 763 @) 56 @) (16,623) 26,279
Net finance
income 199 (1) - 42 - 33 1) 5 - 1,715 1,992
Profit
before tax 48,480 (4,698)  (697) (754) - 796 5) 61 @) (14,908) 28,271
Income tax
benefit 3,040
Profit for
the year 31,311
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 692 692

66



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini Il 45,395 68,655
Verdis I+l 40,481 29,166
Sakura I+l 62,410 42,853
Impressio | 8,809 17,689
Constans 9,974 8,106
Naturalis [+II+11] 17,759 9,165
Imaginarium I1+111 47 8,162
Panoramika | 11,996 6,375
Chilli 1+11 9,276 4,221
Nautica I+l 60 1,662
Galileo 45 896
Gardenia - 683
Other 773 1,126
Total revenue 207,025 198,759

7. Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini ll 27,618 40,155
Verdis [+l 28,343 18,707
Sakura I+l 53,006 32,725
Impressio | 9,011 16,739
Constans 10,320 8,106
Naturalis [+11+l1] 15,555 7,870
Imaginarium l+l1ll 37 6,089
Panoramika | 11,354 6,124
Chilli 1+11 8,785 3,871
Nautica I+l 60 1,448
Galileo 29 591
Gardenia - 680
Write-down of inventory - 4,957
Other 342 290
Total cost of sales 164,460 148,352
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8.

9.

10.

Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Advertising 5,308 5,265
Brokerage fees 1,100 417
Other 413 518
Total selling and marketing expenses 6,821 6,200

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Personnel expenses 10 11,152 11,053
External services 2,632 2,610
Materials and energy 674 612
Depreciation 627 745
Taxes and charges 176 178
Other 644 774
Total administrative expenses 15,905 15,972

Personnel expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Wages and salaries 9,590 9,687
Social security and other benefits 1,562 1,366
Total personal expenses 11,152 11,053
Average number of personnel employef 66 60

(*) All employees are employed in the territoryPafland.
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11. Other expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Maintenance expense of unsold units 1,621 702
Cost of repairs and defects 314 623
Expense for contractual penalties and compensation 68 223
Group restructuring expense 100 109
Impairment of trade receivablés 36 10
Cost of research and due diligence of new projects 56 138
Other expense 413 148
Total other expense 2,608 1,953

(1) For additional information see Note 21.

12. Other income

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues from contractual penalties and compemsatio 159 179
Rental income from inventory 192 554
Net profit on sale of property and equipment 152 177
Other income 228 57
Total other income 731 967
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13.

Finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 759 - 759
Interest income on bank deposits 1,247 136 1,111
Other finance income 6 - 6
Finance income 2,012 136 1,876
Interest expense on financial liabilities (13,935 (11,831) (2,104)
Foreign exchange loss (6) - (6)
Commissions and fees (3,264) (2,048) (1,216)
Other finance expense (45) - (45)
Finance expense (17,250) (13,879) (3,371)
Net finance expense (15,238) (13,743) (1,495)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 331 - 331
Interest income on bank deposits 3,013 193 2,820
Foreign exchange gain 1 - 1
Other finance income 281 - 281
Finance income 3,626 193 3,433
Interest expense on financial liabilities (18p7 (16,994) (1,076)
Foreign exchange loss (12) - (12)
Commissions and fees (1,785) (1,536) (249)
Other finance expense (104) - (104)
Finance expense (19,971) (18,530) (1,441)
Net finance income/(expense) (16,345) (18,337) 1,992
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14. Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Current tax

Current period 72 63
Taxation in respect of previous periods (5) (2,369)
Total current tax (benefit)/expense 67 (2,306)

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (8,118) 5,825
Tax losses utilized/(recognized) 6,870 (6,559)
Total deferred tax benefit (1,248) (734)
Total income tax benefit (1,181) (3,040)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Profit for the year 18,422 31,311
Total income tax benefit (1,181) (3,040)
Profit before income tax 17,241 28,271
Expected income tax using the Polish tax rate (19%) 3,276 5,371

Tax effect of

Taxes in respect of previous periods (5) (2,369)
Non-deductible expenses, net 67 29

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets lando (1,910) 8,223
Tax benefit in connection with the organizatiorestructuring of the

Group (3,017) (14,655)
Other differences 408 361
Tax benefit for the period (1,181) (3,040)
Effective tax rate - 6.85% -10.75%
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15. Property and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,108 1,703 8,551 11,362
Additions 405 43 265 713
Transferred from inventory - - 1,030 1,030
Disposals (215) (132) (1,201) (1,548)
Closing balance 1,298 1,614 8,645 11,557
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 811 735 1,156 2,702
Depreciation for the period 87 228 312 627
Disposals (200) (74) (768) (1,042)
Closing balance 698 889 700 2,287
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 297 968 7,395 8,660
Closing balance 600 725 7,945 9,270
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,097 1,767 8,575 11,439
Additions 94 429 169 692
Transferred from inventory - - 366 366
Disposals (83) (493) (559) (1,135)
Closing balance 1,108 1,703 8,551 11,362
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 733 783 974 2,490
Depreciation for the period 161 364 220 745
Disposals (83) (412) (38) (533)
Closing balance 811 735 1,156 2,702
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 364 984 7,601 8,949
Closing balance 297 968 7,395 8,660

Impairment loss

In the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 Decezbtigr the Group did not recognize any impairmess |

with respect to Property and equipment.
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16. Investment property

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at 1 January 8,279 9,249
Transferred from inventory 787 -
Change in fair value during the year 774 (970)
Balance as at 31 December, including: 9,840 8,279
Cost 4,434 3,647
Fair value adjustments 5,406 4,632

As at 31 December 2013, the investment propertydied property held for long-term rental yields axagbital
appreciation, and were not occupied by the Groune ifivestment property consists of two real esthjects
located in Warsaw:

i) a plot of land (71, Gwialzista Street) and an office building with an agate usable floor space of
1,318 nf located on this plot that is leased to third partiader lease agreements with an indefinite term
subject to a three-month notice period for termiaraf“Bielany IP"),

i) two commercial (office) units located at 57K Avenue (in the Gemini | project), with a totgigregate
usable floor space of 17&8reased to third parties with an indefinite terdi§ynéw IP”).

Investment property is valued at fair value deteredias at 31 December 2013 and as at 31 Decemb2rb30
the Management. The investment property has besm \alued by an independent appraiser, having an
appropriate recognized professional qualificatisased on current prices on an active market. Balhations
came up with similar results.

The Bielany IP was valued based on the discounssth dlow approach, including the assumption asnto a
annual discount rate of 8.0% (during a 6 year faseperiod), a capitalization exit yield of 6.0%mnanthly rate

of PLN 35/m? and a long term vacancy rate of 10%. The assunsptisrat the end of 2012 included: an annual
discount rate of 9.0%, a capitalization exit yiefd7.0%, a monthly rent of PLN 38/’mand a long term vacancy
rate of 10%.

The Ursynéw IP was valued on the basis of the mexsnt comparable transactions, involving salesiraflar
units in the Gemini | and Il projects.

The fair value of completed investment propertias heen determined on a market value basis in dacos
with International Valuation Standards (IVS), a$ eat by the IVSC. The valuations were preparedaon
aggregated non-leveraged basis. The valuations penfermed by an accredited independent valuatdn wi
recognized and relevant professional qualificatiord with recent experience in the local market #rel
specific category of the investment properties edlu

If the yields used for the appraisals of investmanatperty on 31 December 2013, had been 100 basgissp
higher than was the case at that time, the valubeofnvestments would have been 13% lower (31 Déee
2012: 12% lower). In this situation, the Compangtsareholders’ equity would have been PLN 1.3 nmillio
lower (31 December 2012: PLN 1.0 million lower).

The continued instability in the financial marketsises volatility and uncertainty in the world’ital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sule there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaties can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

The investment property is currently occupied.
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17. Loans granted to third parties

The table below presents the movement in Loandeplan third parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 1,043 928
Loans granted 627 -
Loans repaid (300) -
Accrued interest/(interest repayment), net 102 115
Total closing balance 1,472 1,043
Closing balance includes:
Current assets 843 -
Non-current assets 629 1,043
Total closing balance 1,472 1,043

The loans are granted to one of the shareholddRoo$on Espresso Sp. z 0.0. As at 31 December 2@l 2s
at 31 December 2013 the loans bear a fixed inteagstof 15% and a variable rate of 12.2% (variaftierest is
charged based on the latest interest rate as charg¢he construction credit/loan granted by thekbao the
Group and increased by 7%, and updated at the tiagiof each quarter), respectively.
For securing the repayment of the loan, the Compehys a pledge on the partner’s share in RonspneEso
Sp. z 0.0. as well as on a part of the loans gdamgethe partner to Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0.

18. Loans granted to related parties

The table below presents the movement in Loangeplao related parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 7,704 -
Loans granted 250 7,488
Loans repaid (75) -
Accrued interest/(interest repayment), net 657 216
Total closing balance 8,536 7,704
Closing balance includes:
Current assets - -
Non-current assets 8,536 7,704
Total closing balance 8,536 7,704

These loans are granted to the joint venture (RofScsp. z 0.0. Sp.k., that was established d2i). The
loans mature in 2017. As at 31 December 2012 arat 8% December 2013 the loans bear a variableofate
9.2% and a variable rate of 8.6% (variable intei®sharged based on the latest interest rate ag@th on the
construction credit/loan granted by the banks @ @roup and increased by 2%, and updated at begirofi

each calendar year), respectively.
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19.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at the mggand end of the financial periods are attriblgdo the

following:
Opening Recognized in Closing
balance 1  the statement of balance 31
January comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013 income 2013
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 21,613 (6,870) 14,743
Accrued interest 2,881 2,145 5,026
Accrued expense 225 (46) 179
Other 454 - 454
Total deferred tax assets 25,173 (4,771) 20,402
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuewrtory 22,797 (6,433) 16,364
Accrued interest 640 243 883
Fair value gain on investment property 880 147 1,027
Other 588 24 612
Total deferred tax liabilities 24,905 (6,019) 18,886
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) (1,248)
Deferred tax assets 25,173 20,402
Deferred tax liabilities 24,905 18,886
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual companies (13,375) (7,932)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 11,798 12,470
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 11,530 10,954
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19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’'d)

Opening Recognized in Closing
balance 1  the statement of balance 31
January comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2012 income 2012
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 15,054 6,559 21,613
Accrued interest 740 2,141 2,881
Accrued expense 280 (55) 225
Other 454 - 454
Total deferred tax assets 16,528 8,645 25,173
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuewrtory 15,045 7,752 22,797
Accrued interest 300 340 640
Fair value gain on investment property 1,064 (184) 880
Other 585 3 588
Total deferred tax liabilities 16,994 7,911 24,905
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) (734)
Deferred tax assets 16,528 25,173
Deferred tax liabilities 16,994 24,905
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual companies (10,685) (13,375)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 5,843 11,798
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 6,309 11,530
The tax losses carried forward expire in the follwing years:
As at 31
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) December 2013
2014 1,766
2015 5,400
2016 4,541
2017 2,482
2018 554
After 2018 -
Total deferred tax asset in respect of tax lossesrciad forward 14,743

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities
There are no unrecognized deferred tax liabilities.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to therxteat it is more likely than not that future thle profits will
be available against which the asset can be wudilidarecognized deferred tax assets relate priynaritax loss
carry-forwards, which are not considered probablealization prior to their expiration.

The Company did not recognize entire deferred &metaon consolidation level resulting from conttitios as
the recoverability of such assets is uncertain.
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19.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)
Realization of deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sgeranagement considers whether it is more likey not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets ndtl be realized. The ultimate realization of defdrtax assets

is dependent upon the generation of future tax@ideme during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management consitteesscheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities
projected future taxable income, and tax planningtegies in making this assessment. In order Ity faalize

the deferred tax asset (before offsetting agaipftrded tax liability), the Group will need to geate future
taxable income of approximately PLN 107,379 thods&ased upon the level of historical taxable inecand
projections for future taxable income over the @asi in which the deferred tax assets are dedugtible
management believes it is more likely than not tiwat Group will realize the benefits of these deitile
differences. The amount of the deferred tax as#éthnis considered realizable, could however beiced in
the near term if estimates of future taxable incalmeng the tax loss carry-forward period are reglic

Tax losses in Poland are required to be utilizethiwi5 years following the period in which they giriated,
subject to the limitation that a maximum of 50%wé loss carry-forward can be used in one year.ldsses in
the Netherlands are required to be utilized withiyears following the period in which they origiedt

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in Poland

Balance
01 Tax Balance 31 Tax Balance 31
January losses Additions/ December losses Additions/ December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2012 expired (Realizations) 2012 expired (Realizations) 2013
Tax losses 2,363 (3,083) 8,223 7,503 (355) (1,910) 5,238
Total 2,363 (3,083) 8,223 7,503 (355) (1,910) 5,238
Tax losses carry forward
As at 31 December 2013 2012
Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2008 carried forward - - - 14,563 388 14,951
Tax loss 2009 carried forward 5,690 5,799 11,489 11,715 11,605 23,320
Tax loss 2010 carried forward 25,361 11,475 36,836 37,129 16,538 53,667
Tax loss 2011 carried forward 24,228 7,746 31,974 32,450 8,030 40,480
Tax loss 2012 carried forward 16,482 2,147 18,629 17,893 2,930 20,823
Tax loss 2013 carried forward 5,834 404 6,238 - - -
Total tax losses carried forward 77,595 27,571 105,166 113,750 39,491 153,241

Moreover the Company is not recognizing deferredassets on tax losses carried forward in the Niathas.
The accumulated Dutch tax losses available forydamvard as per 31 December 2013 are estimatbd BUR
1,509 thousand (2012: EUR 1,851 thousand).
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The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sulg there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and manka&ues can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2013:

Closing
Opening balance 31
balance 01 Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2013 finished units Additions 2013
Land and related expense 369,211 (21,377) 3,411 51,2385
Construction costs 64,598 (67,883) 90,226 86,941
Planning and permits 20,300 (3,095) 7,238 24,443
Borrowing cost$” 69,839 (5,835) 13,743 77,747
Other 3,144 (1,406) 2,302 4,040
Work in progress 527,092 (99,596) 116,920 544,416
Recognized in the Closing
Opening  Transferred to Transferred Transferred statement of balance 31
balance 01  property and to investment  from work in comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2013 equipment property progress income 2013
Finished goods 142,557 (1,030) (787) 99,596 (163,897) 76,439
Revaluation write down recognized )
) in statement of comprehensive Closing
Opening income balance 31
balance 01 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2013 Increase Utilization 2013
Write-down (1,569) - 1,044 (525)
Total inventories at the lower
of cost or net realizable value 668,080 6360

(1) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimory with 8.6% average effective capitalizatioterest rate.
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20.

Inventory (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2012:

Closing
Opening Transferred to balance 31
balance 01 property and Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 equipment finished goods Additions 2012
Land and related expense 399,143 (84) (51,210) 621,3 369,211
Construction costs 104,839 (246) (175,180) 135,185 64,598
Planning and permits 21,872 (20) (7,454) 5,892 am,3
Borrowing cost$” 61,438 (22) (9,914) 18,337 69,839
Other 3,627 (4) (4,360) 3,881 3,144
Work in progress 590,919 (366) (248,118) 184,657 527,092
Recognized in the Closing
Opening statement of balance 31
balance 01 Transferred from comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 work in progress income 2012
Finished goods 40,497 248,118 (146,058) 142,557
_ Revaluation write down recognized in Closing
Opening statement of comprehensive income balance 31
balance 01 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 Increase Utilization 2012
Write-down (99) (4,957) 3,487 (1,569)
Total inventories at the lower of
cost or net realizable value 631,317 668,080

1) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimory with 9.2% average effective capitalizatioterest rate.

Write-down revaluating the inventory:

The company assessed internally the net realizatdle of the inventory and decreased the value vithemet
realizable value was lower than the cost. In vidwhe market situation in the property market iniabhthe
Group operates, during the year ended 31 Decenfl#8 and 2012 the Group took a particularly congaersa
approach to the inventory review with regard tovdfuation to net realizable value. As a resultjriyithe years
ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, thgp@nade a write-down adjustment of nil and a write
down adjustment in the total amount of PLN 4,950utand, respectively, which amount is included as qf
cost of sales in the Consolidated Statement of Gehgmsive Income. Management examined possible
impairment on inventory for each project separataficording to the projection of revenues net frmost of
sales. For the net realizable value calculatiordbmpany used the average effective capitalizatitarest rate.

The valuation of Inventory is as follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Valued at cost 615,255 652,768
Valued at net realizable value 5,075 15,312
Total inventory 620,330 668,080
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20. Inventory (cont'd)

For information about future commitments to the eyah contractor for construction services related t
inventory construction, see Note 37.

For information about the balance sheet value wénitory used to secure banks loans and floatirg vahds
series C, see Note 28.

21. Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December

2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Value added tax (VAT) receivables 4,361 4,774
Trade and other receivables 3,393 2,884
Prepayments 1,334 1,464
Advances for land purchase 28,939 21,539
Total trade and other receivables and prepayments 38,027 30,661

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, thapGrad no allowance for doubtful debts.
During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 Omxedd12, the Group wrote down an amount of PLN 36
thousand and PLN 10 thousand, respectively awezable debts included in trade and other reckigab

22.  Short-term bank deposits — collateralized

As at 31 December

2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Deposits collateralized for securing the repaynoéimterest related to the
credit facilities provided to the Group 768 2,097
Other deposits collateralized 500 847
Total short-term bank deposits — collateralized 68 2,944

The interest rates earned on these deposits \@aryZ#6 to 2.5% on an annual basis.
For information about the fair value of short-tdsemk deposits - collateralized see Note 35.

For information about the pledge over short termklieposits see Note 30.
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23. Other current financial assets

The new regulations related to the activity of tbsidential developers, which came into force orApél 2012,
imposed on all residential developers in Polandohligation to open an escrow account for all cusiem
purchasing residential units during the construcfieriod. According to these regulations, all anteyaid by the
customers have to be paid directly to the escrmowtt. The developer is entitled to receive the eyainly once
certain conditions — related mainly to progresshef construction process — are met or the upornramsfer of
ownership of the apartment to the customer.

As long as the money is kept in the escrow accdbetCompany is neither entitled to any benefits, can it
dispose of the cash in any way.

The obligation relates only to the new projectsolthivere offered for sale after 29 April 2012. A8atDecember
2013, the Company operates three projects (Chillirhpressio Il and Tamka) under the new regufatias at 31
December 2012 the Company did not operate anyqirafeler new regulation).

24. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bankndmehd and short-term deposits freely availabletfie
Group. Cash at bank comprises of overnight depdsiésshort-term deposits have an original maturityying
from one day to three months.

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cash at bank and in hand 24,211 16,429
Short-term deposit 27,993 28,499
Total cash and cash equivalents 52,204 44,928

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates baseathily bank deposit rates. As at 31 DecembeB201d 31
December 2012 the Group held overnight depositsimsdving accounts amounting to PLN 17,990 thodisan
and PLN 12,588 thousand, respectively. As at 3leber 2013 and 31 December 2012 the overnight depos
and in saving accounts that earn interest ratggngabetween 2% - 2.8% and 2% - 4.3%, respectively.
Short-term deposits have a duration varying betwasn day and three months depending on the imneediat
cash requirements of the Group. As at 31 Decemb&B 2nd 31 December 2012, they earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates varying betva8én 2.8% and 4% - 4.4%, respectively.

For information about the fair value of cash anshcequivalents see Note 35.

For information about the pledge over cash and egsivalents see Note 30.

25. Shareholders’ equity
1)  Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huoh.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary shareate®l December 2013 and as at 31 December 2012
amounted to 272,360,000. The number issued sharessethe number of votes, as there are no pratleg
shares issued by the Company.

There are no restrictions regarding dividend pays)dature dividends may be proposed and paid daogto
Dutch GAAP.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)

2) Dividend

On 27 June 2013, the General Meeting of Sharetmhgproved the distribution of a dividend for theahcial
year 2012 amounting to PLN 8,170,800 in total orNRLO3 per ordinary share. The dividend day was
determined as 1 August 2013, and the dividend w&bgn 20 August 2013.

26. Non-controlling interests

Movements in non-controlling interests during tleayended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2053 are
follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 3,910 4,254
Acquisition of additional stake in consolidatedsidiary™ (1,423) -
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to namyodling interests (604) (344)
Closing balance 1,883 3,910

(1) On 18 December 2013, the Group acquired an additid3.6% of the equity of Ronson Espresso Sp..4lteceinafter‘Espresso”)
for PLN 2,950 thousand in cash, thereby increagim@wnership to 82.0%. As at 17 December 2013irbethe transaction, the book value
of the non-controlling interest in Espresso amodnte PLN 3,306 thousand. As a result of the tratisac Non-controlling interests
decreased by PLN 1,423 thousand. The differende theé acquisition price, amounting to PLN 1,527uend was charged to Retained

earnings.

27. Net earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculatediviiing net profit for the year by the weightedesage
number of ordinary shares outstanding during ther.yBiluted earnings per share amounts are catmlilby
dividing the net profit for the year by the weightaverage number of ordinary shares outstandinggitine
year plus the weighted average number of ordinaayes that would be issued on conversion of albihgive

instruments into ordinary shares.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic):

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012

Net profit attributable to equity holders of thergrat company

(PLN thousands) 19,026 31,655
Balance at beginning of the period 272,360,000 , 352,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000
Basic earnings per share 0.070 0.116

There have been no other transactions involvinghargt shares between the reporting date and tleeadat
completion of these consolidated financial statemen
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28. Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Floating rate bonds 29 119,366 88,413
Secured bank loans 30 41,978 105,212
Loans from third parties 31 11,192 13,932
Total loans and borrowings 172,536 207,557

Information about the contractual terms of the @isunterest-bearing loans and borrowings is preskm the
table below. For more information about the Grougkposure to interest rate and foreign currendy, sse
Note 39.

Loans as at 31 December 2013:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest and fees value
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series A PLN 4.25% 2014 5,000 70 (65) 5,005
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series C PLN 3.75% 2017 83,500 221 (1,944) 81,777
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series D PLN 4.55% 2016 23,550 70 (519) 23,101
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series E PLN 4.55% 2016 9,250 311 (78) 9,483

Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 121,300 672 (2,606) 119,366
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2014 6,557 - (37) 6,520
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2014 7,994 - (64) 7,930
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2015 28,352 - (824) 27,528

Subtotal (Bank ) 42,903 - (925) 41,978

Loans from partner in jointly

controlled entity PLN 8.6%4 2017 7,663 872 - 8,535
Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiary PLN 7.29% 2016 1,924 733 - 2,657
Subtotal (third parties) 9,587 1,605 - 11,192
Total 173,790 2,277 (3,631) 172,536

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obdmn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by
2%, and updated at the beginning of each calendar.y

(2) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obamn the construction credit/loan granted by thaeks to the Group and increased by
2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.
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28.

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2012:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest and fees value
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series A PLN 4.25% 2014 51,340 942 (437) 51,845
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series B PLN 4.95% 2014 36,160 715 (307) 36,568

Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 87,500 1,657 (744) 88,413
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans PLN  Bank’s margin 2013 10,001 - (64) 9,937
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN  Bank's margin 2013 55,515 134 (270) 55,379
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank'smargin - 5014 12 Gog 3 (252) 12,449
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank'smargin - 5014 10021 - (33) 9,988
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans pLN  Bank's margin 2015 5,572 - (217) 5,355
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN  Bank's margin 2015 12,257 - (153) 12,104

Subtotal (bank) 106,064 137 (989) 105,212

Loans from partner in jointly

controlled entity PLN 9.28% 2017 7,488 216 - 7,704

Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiary PLN 9.3% 2016 5,245 983 - 6,228

Subtotal (third parties) 12,733 1,199 - 13,932

Total 206,297 2,993 (1,733) 207,557

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obdmgn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by

2%, and updated at the beginning of each calendar.y

(2) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obdmn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by

2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.

Balance sheet value of assets used to secure logateived from banks and floating rate bonds serieS:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Inventory 350,925 338,837
Other 16,306 -

Balance sheet value of pledged assets 367,231 338,837
Amount of loans and borrowings 123,755 105,212
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29.

Floating rate bonds
The table below presents the movement in Floatitg lbond loans:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 88,413 87,847
Repayment of bond loans (series A and B) (82,500) -

Proceeds from bond loans (series C, D and E) 116,300 -
Issue cost (2,978) -

Issue cost amortization 1,116 576
Accrued interest 8,352 8,262
Interest repayment (9,337) (8,272)
Total closing balance 119,366 88,413

Closing balance includes:

Current liabilities 5,607 1,657
Non-current liabilities 113,759 86,756
Total closing balance 119,366 88,413

As at 31 December 2013 and as at 31 December 20d@& anants on floating rate bonds are met.

Series A and B:

The 5,134 series A bonds and 3,616 series B baad$ with a nominal value of PLN 10 thousand perdbo
were issued in April 2011. On 14 June 2013, the gamy purchased 4,634 series A bonds and 2,05G d&rie
bonds, thus redeeming an aggregate amount of PL&#66thousand. On 18 October 2013, the Company
repurchased all remaining outstanding 1,566 s&iesnds, utilizing its right of earlier repurchase.

The maturity dates of the remaining 500 seriesoatfhg rate bonds loans is 18 April 2014. The baratsy an
interest rate composed of a base rate equal tonshsdVibor plus a margin of 4.25%. .

Series C and D:

On 14 June 2013, the Company issued 83,500 seriesn@s and 23,550 series D bonds, together with an
aggregate nominal value of PLN 107,050 thousané. ridminal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1 thodisa
and is equal to its issue price. The series C behdl be redeemed on 14 June 2017, whereas ilks 8ebonds
shall be redeemed on 14 June 2016 at nominal viedapectively. The bonds carry an interest ratepas®d of

a base rate equal to 6 months Wibor plus a mafgt 7% and 4.55%, respectively. Interest is pagaigimi-
annually in June and December until redemption.date

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 14 Jurt’ Z8eries C bonds) or 14 June 2016 (series D honds
respectively, in case of the occurrence of certaignts covering a number of obligations and rdgirie
applicable to the Company, including the obligatiormaintain its financial ratios at certain leveisstrictions

on investments in land having an unregulated statdsrestrictions on related party transactions.

The series D bonds are not secured, whereas tles s€r bonds are secured by joint mortgage up to
PLN 100,200 thousand established by the ComparglistPsubsidiaries. Moreover, the ratio betweenvlee

of the pledged properties and the total nominalealf the Bonds issued shall not decrease below 90%
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29. Floating rate bonds (cont’d)

Series E:

On 15 July 2013, the Company issued 9,250 seriesns with a total nominal value of PLN 9,250 themk
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1 ¢hod and is equal to its issue price. The seribsrigls
shall be redeemed on 15 July 2016. The bonds earipterest rate composed of a base rate equairtonths
Wibor plus a margin of 4.55%. Interest is payalelmisannually in January and July until redemptiated

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 15 Juli62(n case of the occurrence of certain eventemoy a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels, restrictionsiowestments in land having an unregulated statdsrastrictions
on related party transactions.

Financial ratio covenants for series C, D and E:

Based on the bonds conditions, in each reportimgpgehe Company shall test the ratio between Nt do
Equity (hereinafter “Ratio” or “Net IndebtednesstiBg. The Ratio shall not exceed 60% however ifidg the
Reporting Period the Company paid dividend or penfd any buy-out of its treasury shares then theoR&all
not exceed 50%.

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance shdeé\af loans and borrowings less the consolidated
value of cash and cash equivalents and short-tank deposits - collateralized.

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtreafquity attributable to equity holders of ttaegnt,
less the value of the intangible assets (excludimg financial assets and receivables), includireciically (i)
the intangible and legal assets, goodwill andtfi§ assets constituting deferred income tax deedeby the
value of the provisions created on account of therded income tax, however, assuming that thenbalaf
those two values is positive. If the balance ofesssand provisions on account of deferred incomeiga
negative, the adjustment referred to in item (iipze shall be zero.

Reporting period starting from the second quarter of 2013 — mehagjtiarterly reporting period with respect
to which the Group Net Indebtedness Ratio will bstad, while a “Reporting period” shall mean a king
reporting period, i.e. each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rati e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2013
Net debt 119,064
Equity 463,670
Net Indebtedness Ratio 25.7%
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30.

Secured bank loans

The table below presents the movement in Secunekl Ibans:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 105,212 117,711
New bank loan drawdov 27,428 36,750
Bank loans repayments (90,589) (48,442)
Bank charges (990) (1,426)
Bank charges amortization 1,054 778
Accrued interest/(interest repayment) on bankdpaet (137) (159)
Total closing balance 41,978 105,212
Closing balance includes:
Current liabilities 14,450 65,319
Non-current liabilities 27,528 39,893
Total closing balance 41,978 105,212

For information related to unutilized bank loaniliies see Note 37.

Covenants on secured bank loans:

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company hasreached any loan covenant, which would expose th
Company for risk of obligatory and immediate repayinof any loan and has been able to extend altiegp

loan facilities.

For the bank loans the following collateral was gien:

Ordinary and floating mortgages on Inventory (&l restate units), see Note 28.

Pledge over bank accounts which are presenteci€timsolidated Statement of Financial Position ashC
and cash equivalents up to the amounts/installnterdsamounting to PLN 9,953 thousand and PLN 10,147
thousand as at 31 December 2013 and 31 Decemb2y 2@pectively.

Deposits guarantee for interests on credits, seée Rih

Assignment of receivables arising from insuranceeagent and from the agreements concluded with
clients.

Subordination agreement on loans from relatedgzarti

Blank promissory note drawn by particular subsilieempanies with a promissory note declarationap t
the amount of the loan plus interest.

Advance payments of dividends by the borrowerd tuitirepayment of loans are not allowed.
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31. Loans from third parties
The table below presents the movement in Loans frimd parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 13,932 5,726
Proceeds 1,193 7,488
Repayments (4,339) -
Interest repayment (589) -
Accrued interest 995 718
Total closing balance 11,192 13,932

Closing balance includes:
Current liabilities - -

Non-current liabilities 11,192 13,932
Total Closing balance 11,192 13,932

For additional information, see Note 28.

32. Trade and other payables and accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Trade payables 19,212 18,305
Guarantees for construction wdtk 4,694 4,603
Accrued expenses 6,180 12,222
Value added tax (VAT) and other tax payables 807 1,503
Non-trade payables 1,835 1,457
Total trade and other payables and accrued expenses 32,728 38,090

Trade and non-trade payables are non-interestrigeand are normally settled on 30-day terms.

1) The long-term part of guarantees for constructiarhkg is presented in non-current liabilities.
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33. Advances received

Advances received consist of customer advancesoftstruction work in progress (deferred revenue) an
comprise customer advances for the following prsjec

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini ll 112 27,401
Verdis I+l 10,832 15,379
Verdis Il 1,636 -

Sakura [+l 1,715 9,874
Sakura Ill 1,773 -

Espresso | 40,477 9,081
Espresso Il 1,715 -

Naturalis I+11+111 1,016 4,211
Panoramika | 777 1,000
Mtody Grunwald | 7,109 550
Constans 2,138 203
Impressio | 94 101
Impressio I 67 -

Chilli Il 85 593

Tamka 861 -

Other 158 99

Total 70,565 68,492

For information about contingent receivables fragmsd contracts with clients, see Note 37.

34. Provisions

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at the beginning of the year 231 261
Increase/(decrease) (30) (30)
Balance at the end of the year 201 231

As at 31 December 2013, the provision included etqubnecessary costs of guarantees for construstioks
amounting to PLN 201 thousand, whereas as at 3&rbleer 2012, the provision included expected necgssa
costs of guarantees for construction works amogrtrPLN 231 thousand.
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35. Fair value estimation of financial assets anddbilities
The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiegyether with the carrying amounts shown in tlgolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are as follows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 De?esmat:er 2013
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 32,332 32,332
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 22 1,268 1,261
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 1,472 1,216
Loans granted to related parties Loans and receivables 18 8,536 8,128
Other current financial assets Loans and receivables 23 515 515
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 24 52,204 52,204
Liabilities:
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 28 119,366 119,274
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 41,978 42,000
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 11,192 10,503
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 31,921 31,921
Unrecognized gain 88
As at
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 December 2012
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 24,423 24,423
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 22 2,944 2,928
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 1,043 1,072
Loans granted to related parties Loans and receivables 18 7,704 7,364
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 24 44,928 44,928
Liabilities:
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 28 88,413 89,177
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 105,212 105,051
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 13,932 13,152
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 36,587 36,587
Unrecognized gain (150)

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were use@stimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

o trade and other receivables, cash and cash eguigalether current financial assets and trade dhero
payables: the carrying amounts approximate faue/élecause of the short maturity of these instrasnen

e short-term bank deposit — collateralized : the Yailue is estimated by discounting the future déshs of
each instrument using discount rates offered toGhaup for similar instruments of comparable maiesi

by the Group’s bankers;

e loans and borrowings: the fair value is estimatgddiscounting the future cash flows of each ins&am
using discount rates offered to the Group for @imihstruments of comparable maturities by the @iou

bankersThe own non-performance risk as at December 313 2@k assessed as insignificant.
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35. Fair value estimation of financial assets anddbilities (cont’d)

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated ftasis (PLN denominated), where applicable, are tase
WIBOR plus/minus margin as at 31 December 20133nBecember 2012 and are as follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
Loans and borrowings 5.6%-7.3% 7.0%-9.0%
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 2.7% 196,

36. Fair value measurement hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value measurerhimtairchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:
e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active miarker identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéithivv Level 1 that are observable for the assdiadmility,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectlye(i. derived from prices);

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that aue based on observable market data (unobserirghles).

Quantitative disclosures fair value hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2013:

Fair value measurement using:

Quoted prices in Significant Significant

Date of active markets ~ observable inputs  unobservable inputs
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment property 31-Dec-13 - - 9,840
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Loans granted to third parties 31-Dec-13 - 1,216 -
Loans granted to related parties 31-Dec-13 - 8,128 -
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 31-Dec-13 - 1,261 -
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Floating rate bonds 31-Dec-13 - 119,274 -
Secured bank loans 31-Dec-13 - 42,000 -
Loans from third parties 31-Dec-13 - 10,503 -

During 2013, there have been no transfers betwesgalll and Level 2.
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37. Commitments and contingencies

Investment commitments:

The amounts in the table below present unchargedsiment commitments of the Group in respect of
construction services to be rendered by the generdtactors:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Chilli 111 4,471 -
Espresso | 1,941 25,514
Espresso I 25,047 -
Mtody Grunwald | 1,811 24,995
Sakura Il 19,515 -
Tamka 26,837 -
Verdis Il 23,219 -
Chilli 11 - 2,201
Naturalis IlI - 2,972
Sakura Il - 4,206
Gemini |l - 1,916
Verdis | - 1,668
Panoramika | - 1,388
Naturalis | - 491
Verdis Il - 13,889
Total 102,841 79,240

Contingent liabilities:

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not havecantingents liabilities.

Investment commitments -land purchase:

In June 2012, the Group entered into preliminamgcipase agreements with private individuals forptaftland
with an area of 118,4007focated in Warsaw, district Mokotow atsdginowa Street. Conclusion of the final
purchase agreements and transferring of the owipen$the properties is expected to be finalizedrduthe
first half of 2014. The final payment will amouwntPLN 62 million.
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37.

Commitments and contingencies (cont’d)

Contingent receivables - contracted sales not yeeécognized:

The table below presents amounts to be received fhe customers having bought apartments from Ronso
subsidiary companies and which are based on thee\afl the sale and purchase agreements signedtveith
clients until 31 December 2013 after deduction aympents received at reporting date (such paymegitgyb
presented in the Consolidated Statement of FinBRoisition as Advances received):

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Chilli 1 & 11 568 1,430
Chilli 11 413 -

Constans 969 1,831
Espresso | 13,316 16,950
Espresso Il 6,937 -

Gemini Il 640 8,663
Impressio | 335 1,458
Impressio Il 358 -

Mtody Grunwald | 10,629 5,868
Naturalis I, Il & 11l 2,378 3,257
Panoramika | 2,058 1,864
Sakura | &Il 4,902 12,002
Sakura Ill 7,546 -

Tamka 9,672 -

Verdis | & 1l 10,844 11,643
Verdis lll 6,155 -

Total 77,720 64,966

Unutilized construction loans:

The table below presents the list of the constomctioan facilities, which the Company arranged ifor
conjunction with entering into loan agreements wite banks in order to secure financing of the tonton
and other outstanding costs of the ongoing projetih® amounts presented in the table below inchie
unutilized part of the construction loans availaol¢he Company:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | 4,491 31,509
Espresso I 35,000 -

Sakura Il - 13,515

Sakura lll 33,103 -

Sakura IV 28,025 -

Tamka 33,186 -

Impressio Il 34,750 -

Moko 57,450 -

Mtody Grunwald - 17,752

Total 226,005 62,776
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38.

Related parties

Parent company

The Company enters into various transactions wétisubsidiaries and with its directors and exeeutifficers.
The interest in the Company held (indirectly) bytigeading shareholders, (1) Israel Theaters Ltd. @) U.
Dori Group Ltd. each holding (indirectly) 39.8% iife Company’s share capital and votes. The Company
immediate shareholders are I.T.R. 2012 B.V., |.TIRri B.V. and GE Real Estate CE Residential B.V.
(controlled since November 2013 by U. Dori Groug.ldnd I.T.R. 2012 B.V.), with an interest in slsaire the
Company’s capital of 32.1%, 32.1% and 15.3%, rethpadg, as at 31 December 2013. For a list of slibsies
reference is made to Note 1(b).

The main related parties’ transactions arise on:

e transactions with key management personnel,
¢ loans granted to related parties,

e other.

Outstanding balances with related parties as d&dember 2013 and as at 31 December 2012 are wedecu
interest free (except for loans granted to thetjeémture (Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. Sp.k.) and settiéroecurs in
cash. The Group did not record any impairment oéinables relating to amounts owed by related @it
either year. This assessment is undertaken eaahcfal year through examining the financial positaf the
related party and the market in which the relatadypoperates. All transactions with related partieere
performed based on market conditions.

Transactions with key management personnel
As at 31 December 2013, key management persontied @ompany include:
Shraga Weisman - President of the Management Board, Chief EtveeDfficer

Tomasz tapiaski - Member of the Management Board, Chief Financiéicér
Andrzej Gutowski - Member of the Management Board, Sales and Maggk®irector
Israel Greidinger - Member of the Management Board

Ronen Ashkenazi - Member of the Management Board

Key Management Board personnel compensation
Apart from the compensation listed below, thereewvao further benefits, including share based paysnen
granted to key management personnel in the pegoded 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012. Key
management personnel compensation can be presenteliows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short term employee benefits 34,5 1,562
Management bonus 582 935
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 2,116 2,497
Salary and other short term employee benefits 522 522

Management bonus 131 211
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapgiski 653 733
Salary and other short term employee benefits 311 311

Management bonus 222 144
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 533 455
Total 3,302 3,685
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38.

Related parties (cont'd)

Loans to directors
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, weneno loans granted to directors.

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfiemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmardh
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephone)iriguthe major part of the year, the Supervisoraigio
consisted of 6 member; as at 31 December 2013 tla@dBconsists of 5 members. Two Supervisory Board
members have waived their remuneration and thusadideceive any payment from the Company. Thd tota
amount due in respect of Supervisory Board feemd2013 is PLN 281 thousand (EUR 67 thousand; 2012
PLN 242 thousand (EUR 58 thousand)).

Residential units purchased by key management

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Grolgpresidential one unit including one parking gland
one storage to Mr Shraga Weisman for a total nebusin(excluding VAT) of PLN 890 thousand. These
transactions were executed at arm’s length and weaglherence to the Group’s policy in respectatéted-
party transactions. During the year ended 31 Deee2012, similar transactions did not occur.

Loans granted to related parties
The loans are granted to the joint venture, RomS@p. z 0.0. Sp.k.. For additional information bkxe 18.

Other

As a result of requirements pertaining to U. Donio@ Ltd., one of the Company’'s larger (indirect)
shareholders, whose shares are listed on the Tl tuck exchange, the first quarter reports, senmual
reports and third quarter reports are subjectftdl acope review by the Company’s auditors. F@& @ompany
itself, being domiciled in the Netherlands andelisbn the Warsaw Stock Exchange, only the semiamnmeport

is subject to an audit review. The Company haseagwith U. Dori Group that the costs for the fiastd third
quarter audit review will be fully reimbursed tet&ompany. The additional audit review startedfahethird
quarter ended 30 September 2012. The reimburseafemtdit review costs is disclosed in Note 15 te th
Company Financial Statements.
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39. Financial risk management, objectives and polies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afafincial risks: market risk (including currency rigkice risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidiisk. The Group’s overall risk management progranioeeises on
the unpredictability of financial markets and se&kminimize potential adverse effects on the Gietfipancial

performance. The Management Board reviews and sg@eies for managing each of these risks ang éine

summarized below. The Group also monitors the nigmiee risk arising from all financial instruments

The Group does not use derivative financial insents to hedge currency or interest rate risksrayiiom the
Group’s operations and its sources of finances,laind has been throughout the year ended 31 Decet@h3
and 2012, the Group’s policy that no trading inriigive) financial instruments shall be undertaken

The Group’s principal financial instruments compreash balances, bank loans and bonds. The maingaiof
these financial instruments is to manage the Geoliguidity and to raise finance for the Group’sogtions.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thed@p if a customer or counter party to a finanaiskiument fails

to meet its contractual obligations. Financial iastents that potentially subject the Group to cotregions of
credit risk consist principally of cash and cashiealents and receivables.

The Group is making significant cash payments as sgctor preliminary land purchase agreements. The
Group minimizes its credit risk arising from sucyments by registering advance repayment obligstionhe
mortgage register of the respective property. Manant has a credit policy in place and the exposuceedit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Groupsdaot expect any counter parties to fail in meetheir
obligations The carrying amounts of the financial assets remtethe maximum credit risk exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportintgdeas as follows:

As at 31 December As at 31 December

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) 2013 2012

Trade and other receivables 4,727 4,348
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 1,268 2,944
Cash and cash equivalents 52,204 44,928
Total 58,199 52,220

The Group places its cash and cash equivalent®amdial institutions with high credit ratings. Magement
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meebhligations. Concentrations of credit risk witdspect to
trade receivables are limited due to the large rarolh customers comprising the Group’s customee b@ke
credit quality of cash at banks and short-term bdegosits can be assessed by reference to extretit
ratings:

As at 31 December  As at 31 December

2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN)

Rating

AAA 16 13
A 40,261 26,076
BBB 11,927 17,521
No available information - 1,318
Total cash at banks and short-term bank deposits 52,204 44,928
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39.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of frgucash flows of a financial instrument will fluetie because of
changes in market prices, such as foreign excheaige and interest rates will affect the Grouptome or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments, Buas bank loans, floating rate bond loans, cash casth
equivalents and short-term bank deposits. The tigeof market risk management is to manage andraon
market risk exposures within acceptable parametdrie optimizing return.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk aenreables and payables denominated in a curreteyr tian
PLN to a limited extent only. As at 31 December 2@hd 2012, trade receivables and payables dentadiima
foreign currencies were insignificant.

(ii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to marketable and non-marletazurities price risk does not exists becausésttoup
has not invested in securities as at 31 Decembks 20d 2012.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group didn't enter into any fixed-rate borrogsntransaction. The Group’s variable-rate borrowiage
exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due smgés in interest rates. Short-term receivablespaydbles
are not exposed to interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will ndsie able to meet its financial obligations as thay due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to enswae far as possible, that it will always have isight

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, undepotb normal and stressed conditions, without incigrri
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Gsaeputation.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of fundisg a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tamnsiders
the maturity of both its financial investments dinthncial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, otiman€ial
assets) and projected cash flows from operatiohg Group's objective is to maintain a balance betwe
continuity of funding and flexibility through these of bank overdrafts, bank loans and floating lated loans.
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39. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)
Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed
In respect of income-earning financial assets andrést-bearing financial liabilities, the followgntables

indicate their average effective interest ratethatreporting date and the periods in which theyuneaor, if
earlier, re-price.

As at 31 December 2013

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.2% 5,236 5,236 - - - -
Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 22 1.5%-2.5% 1,268 1,268 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to third parties 17 12.294Y 1,472 843 - - 629 -
Loans granted to related parties 18 8.694? 8,536 - - - 8,536 -
Wibor + 0.1%-
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.5% 46,968 46,968 - - - -
Wibor + Bank's
Secured bank loans 28 margin 41,978 157 14,293 27,528 - -
Loans from others 28 7.2%-8.6%) 11,192 - - - 11,192 -
Wibor 6M +
Floating rate bonds 28 3.75%-4.95% 119,366 5,005 - - 114,361 -

® The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtesrest rate calculated on the construction ctéotin granted by bank to the Group
increased by 7%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
@ The interest rate is calculated based on the latestest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning lefinckar year.
® The interest rate is calculated based on the latgsrest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group

increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyevalendar year /quarter.

As at 31 December 2012

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.3% 3,841 3,841 - - - -
Loans granted to third parties 17 13.50% 1,043 - - 1,043 - -
Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 22 2.5%-4.5% 2,944 2,944 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to related parties 18 9.294Y 7,704 - - - 7,704 -
Wibor + 0.1%-
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.5% 41,087 41,087 - - - -
Wibor + Bank's
Secured bank loans 28 margin 105,212 137 65,182 22,434 17,459 -
Loans from others 28 9.39%? 13,932 - - - 13,932 -
Wibor 6M +
Floating rate bonds 28 4.25%-4.95% 88,413 1,657 - 86,756 - -

® The interest rate is calculated based on the latgsrest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning lefinckar year.
@ The interest rate is calculated based on the latesrest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group

increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyevalendar year /quarter.
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39.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed (ctd)
It is estimated that a general increase of onegm¢age point in interest rates at the reporting deduld
increase/(decrease) the net assets and the statefreemprehensive income by the amounts listethéntable
below. The analysis prepared for 12-month periadsimes that all other variables remain unchanged.

As at As at
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Statement of comprehensive income
Variable interest rate assets 190 (190) 162 (162)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (575) 575 (688) 688
Total (385) 385 (526) 526
Net assets
Variable interest rate assets 190 (190) 162 (162)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (575) 575 (688) 688
Total (385) 385 (526) 526

* The financial costs which are related to loand Borrowing are capitalized by the Group to worlpioegress. Such costs are gradually
recognized in the statement of comprehensive incoased on the proportion of residential units stilthas been assumed in the above
analysis that one third of the financial costs ellted and capitalized in a given period is disatbin the statement of comprehensive
income based on the proportion of residential usitd of a given period and the remaining parthef tosts remains in the inventories and
will be disclosed in the statement of comprehensigeme in the following accounting periods.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitsds into relevant maturity groupings based dre t
remaining period from reporting date to the corttratmaturity date. The amounts disclosed in théetare the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2013

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 30,044 36,148 138,839
Trade and other payables 31,921 - -
Total 61,965 36,148 138,839 -

As at 31 December 2012

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 80,354 114,945 36,568 -
Trade and other payables 36,587 - -
Total 116,941 114,945 36,568
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39. Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Real-estate risk

Management believes that the residential marketwebkole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry
within the European Union, including also the depétg countries in Central and Eastern Europe, himic
general provides for many opportunities for restdg¢rdevelopers. However, due to the fact that Bodish
economy is still experiencing many dynamic changesay be sensitive to potential up and down-tuiliieese
market conditions form an important and significaisk factor for the Company and for other resigent
developers, as the development process (includages such as the purchase of land, the preparattitzmd
for construction works, the construction processlitand, finally, also the sale of apartments) nake several
years from start until completion. It is importaiot understand that decisions taken by the Companst m
assume a relatively long-term time horizon for eacbject as well as a significant volatility of thprices,
construction cost levels and sales prices of agarsnduring the duration of projects which may haveaterial
impact on the Company’s profitability and financingeds.

Another specific risk is associated with the raggdelopment of many Polish cities, which very oftevolves a
lack of stability of development plans which coslabstantially impact the likelihood that projectsparticular
sites are realized as initially desired or planr@dite often, residential developers are interestdallying land
parcels without zoning conditions or without a dgathaster plan for the area, which would allow fopedter
assessment of the ultimate value of the plot. Pogssuch market opportunities may result in rekgviow
prices of the land parcels. However, this strategy result in increasing operational and finandiks for the
developer. Moreover, changing development planth@fities could also impact the planned develograed
realization of utility infrastructure (including wex, gas, sewage and electricity connections), vigccritical
factor for the Company and other developers. Howefee a vast majority of land parcels, the Compiag
already obtained zoning approvals, which reducssigk to the Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiorocess itself. The Company does not operate stremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnepatractors, who are responsible for running ¢bastruction
and for the finalization of the project includingtaining all permits necessary for safe use ofapartments.
Important selection criteria when hiring a gene@htractor include experience, professionalism famahcial
strength of the contractor as well as the qualityhe insurance policy covering all risks assodatéth the
construction process.

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltegun a lack of stability in the manner in whiihancing
institutions (banks) have approached both reatesmmpanies and individual customers when appljong
mortgage loan. As the real estate business is e@pjtal consuming, the role of the banking sectud ds
lending abilities are crucial for the Company laging not only when land parcels are acquired lsat during
the later stages of development, especially dutiegconstruction phase. Moreover, the availabditgxternal
financing is a crucial element driving the demamddpartments, as the vast majority of our custsraeg using
mortgage secured loans to finance the purchasgastraents.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world'pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sute there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaues can change rapidly due to the current nbarke
conditions.
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40.

Capital management

When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectisesafeguard the Group’s ability to continue asoing
concern in order to provide returns for sharehadend benefits for other stakeholders and to mairda
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofiteapln order to maintain or adjust the capitausture, the
Group may adjust the profit appropriation, retuapital to shareholders, issue new shares or seditado
reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industny Group monitors capital on the basis of tharigg ratio
and leverage. The Group’s policy is to keep theiggaatio of the Group lower than 60%, and a lagerof the
Group lower than 50%.

Banking covenants vary according to each loan ageeg but typically are not related directly to tpearing
ratio of the Company but to the proportion of Idarvalue of the mortgage collateral which usuadlyequired
not to cross the limit of 50% or 60%. Moreover @empany is obliged to monitor its indebtedness ating to
the conditions of the bond issuance, which req@mongst others, that in each reporting periodGbmpany
shall test the ratio between Net debt to Equitye Ratio shall not exceed 60% however if duringReporting
Period the Company paid dividend or performed auny-dut of its treasury shares then the Ratio shatl
exceed 50% (for additional information see Note 29)

During the period the Group did not breach anytefléan covenants, nor did it default on any otbkits
obligations under its loan agreements.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt dividgdotal equity. Net debt is calculated as totatrbwings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ t®own in the consolidated Statement of Financiaitiom)
less cash and cash equivalents. Leverage is cedduda net debt divided by total capital employestal capital
employed is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in @mnsolidated Statement of Financial Position plesdebt
financing assets in operation.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December @0d31 December 2012 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Loan and borrowings, including current portion 2686 207,557
Less: cash and cash equivalents (52,204) (44,928)
Net debt 120,332 162,629
Total equity 467,069 459,768
Total capital employed 587,401 622,397
Gearing ratio 25.8% 35.4%

Leverage 20.5% 26.1%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are stiltgeexternally imposed capital requirements. Theege no
changes in the Groups approach to capital managedueng the year.

During the period the Group did not breach anyt®fdan and borrowings covenants, nor did it défaolany
other of its obligations under its loan agreements.
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41.

42.

Cash flow reconciliation

Inventory

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance sheet change in inventory 47,750 (36,763)
Finance expense, net capitalized into inventories 13,743 18,337
Write-down of inventory - (4,957)
Inventory transferred into investment property T8 -
Inventory transferred into fixed assets (1,030) (366)
Change in inventory in the consolidated statementf@ash flows 59,676 (23,749)

Events during the financial year

Dividend

On 27 June 2013, the General Meeting of Sharet®lgproved the distribution of a dividend for tiahcial
year 2012 amounting to PLN 8,170,800 in total orNRLO3 per ordinary share. The dividend day was
determined as 1 August 2013, and the dividend aabqn 20 August 2013.

Land purchase

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Comparghased no land.

Bank loans

Between June and December 2013, the Company erniteoeannexes to loan facilities with Bank BZWBKAS.
with an aggregate initial value of PLN 39.7 milljomhich were granted in the past to refinance thstscof the
land purchase in a few projects in Warsaw, WroctBezna and in Szczecin. In July and December, the
Company repaid PLN 11.4 million and PLN 2.0 millicespectively, reducing its total indebtednessteeldo
these loans to the aggregated amount of PLN 2dI®mand releasing mortgage in two projects. Basedhe
final annexes signed in December 2013,the repaydestof the loan of PLN 18.3 million has been eats to
January 2015 and the repayment date of the loatic@ed to project Tamka) of PLN 8.0 million hasbhe
extended to March 2014.

In August 2013, the Company entered into an anoigie loan facility with Bank Millennium with an ggegate
value of PLN 8.8 million. Based on the signed anmepgart of the loan equal to PLN 2.4 million hagh repaid
and the repayment date of the remaining loan bel&tN 6.4 million) has been extended until Jul{t£20

In August 2013, the Company executed loan agreemesth Alior Bank S.A. related to the housing
development project at Magazynowa Street in Wardamder these loan agreements Alior Bank S.A. is to
provide financing to cover the costs of construtiimd to partially refinance costs of land acqigisiup to the
total amount of PLN 57.5 million. Under the loarregments the final repayment date of the loanifiedlis
established for 31 May 2016.
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42.

Events during the financial year (cont’d)

Bank loans (cont’d)

In November 2013, the Company executed a loan agreewith Bank BZWBK S.A. related to the housing
development project Tamka in Warsaw. Under the lagreement BZWBK S.A. is to provide financing to
refinance the previously granted loan to refinatiee costs of the land purchase (in the amount df BLO
million) as well as to cover the costs of constiarctup to the total amount of PLN 41.2 million (inding
refinancing PLN 8.0 million). Under the loan agrestnthe final repayment date of the loan facilities
established for 19 February 2017.

In December 2013, the Company entered into an atmétxe land loan facility with the Bank BZWBK S.A.
related to refinancing of the purchase costs af lanproject Mtody Grunwald in Poznan. Based ois #mnex
the loan was prepaid in the amount of PLN 2.1 omlland the repayment date of the outstanding amwmfunt
PLN 10.0 million was extended until January 2016th% same time the Company and the Bank BZWBK S.A.
decided to cancel the construction loan which wedighted to secure financing of the constructiostxof the
first.

In December 2013, the Company executed a loan mgrgerelated to the Company’s performance of thé ne
stages of the housing development project namedir8a#t Klobucka Street in Warsaw. Under the loan
agreement the Bank PEKAO S.A. is to provide finagdio cover the costs of construction and developrok
the project up to the total amount of PLN 61.13lioml. The final date of repayment of the loan fagilvas
established for 30 September 2016.

In December 2013, the Company executed loan agrasnmwith Alior Bank S.A. related to the housing
development project named Impressio Il in Wroctdnder these loan agreements Alior Bank S.A. is to
provide financing to cover the costs of constructip to the total amount of PLN 34.75 million. Undee loan
agreements the final repayment date of the loaiitfes is established for 19 December 2016.

Bond loans

On 14 June 2013, the Company issued 83,500 seriesn@s and 23,550 series D bonds, together with an
aggregate nominal value of PLN 107,050 thousand,pamchased 4,634 series A bonds with nominal vafue
PLN 10 thousand each, and 2,050 series B bondshegeith an aggregate amount of PLN 66,840 thadisan
Reference is made to Note 29.

On 15 July 2013, the Company issued 9,250 seriesnids with a total nominal value of PLN 9,250 thamds
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1 ¢hod and is equal to its issue price. The seribsrigls
shall be redeemed on 15 July 2016. The bonds eariyterest rate composed of a base rate equairtonghs
Wibor plus a margin. Interest is payable semi-atipiia January and July until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theddadnclude provisions regarding early redemptiomaat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 15 Juli62(n case of the occurrence of certain eventemoy a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels, restrictionsiowestments in land having an unregulated statdsrastrictions
on related party transactions.

On 18 October 2013, the Company repurchased atanding 1,566 series B bonds, utilizing its righearlier
repurchase.
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42. Events during the financial year (cont’d)
Completions of projects

In May 2013, the Group completed the constructibthe Sakura Il project comprising 136 units withogal
area of 8,300 fn

In July 2013, the Group completed the constructibthe Chilli Il project comprising 20 units withtatal area
of 1,600 .

In August 2013, the Group completed the constractibthe Naturalis Il project comprising 60 unitsth a
total area of 3,400

In December 2013, the Group completed the congbruct the Verdis Il project comprising 72 apartriseand
6 commercial units and an aggregate area of 4,900 m

Commencements of new projects

In June 2013, the Company commenced the salesitsfafithe Sakura Il project, with the constructioork
commenced in October 2013. The Sakura Il projatita@mprise 145 units with an aggregate floor spa¢
7,300 .

In June 2013, the Company commenced the salesitsfafrthe Verdis Il project, with the construatiavorks
commenced in October 2013. The Verdis Il projedt @omprise 146 units with an aggregate floor spa¢
7,700 .

In June 2013, the Company commenced the salesitsfafithe Espresso Il project, with the constraetivork
commenced in August 2013. The Espresso |l projéttcamprise 152 units with an aggregate floor spa¢
7,600 .

In September 2013, the Company commenced the cetistt and the sales of units of the Chilli lll pFct. The
Chilli 111 project will comprise 38 units with anggregate floor space of 2,30F.m

In September 2013, the Company commenced the shiests of the Impressio Il project, with the ctmstion
works commenced November 2013. The Impressio ljeptawill comprise 142 units with an aggregate floo
space of 8,400 i

In November 2013, the Company commenced the can&truand the sales of units of the Tamka project.
Tamka project will comprise 65 units with an aggregfloor space of 5,500°m

43. Subsequent events

Incentive plan

On 3 February 2014 the Supervisory Board of the @ adopted an incentive plan, addressed to edl&ety
employees, which is based on the price performafntiee Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock Plartie
Phantom Stock Plan, which does not assume anyssg of shares and which will not result in any saares
supply, is based on the following key assumptiansiacludes the settlement mechanism as describletvb

i. the exercise price of one option under the Phar8tuk Plan is PLN 1.6;

ii. the total number of options is 2,705,000 (whislthe equivalent of approximately 1% of the Compsi total
number of shares), and the allocation of optionpddicular employees shall be made by way of arste
decision of the remuneration committee of the Regration Committee;
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43. Subsequent events (cont’d)

Incentive plan (cont’d)

ii. benefits will be aggregated among the seleastployees (of the Company or of its subsidiarigsd join
the Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 201%ha¢h (a) 50% is awarded as of the date of thesitatiof
the Remuneration Committee approving the PhantaokI®lan, (b) 25% as of the end of 2014, and (&) By
the end of 2015;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StoadnRhaintain the right to exercise their optionsluhé end of
2017 (or a maximum of two years from the date t@yno longer employed by the Ronson Group);

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Comparllypay the option holder the amount in cash eqaathe
difference between PLN 1.6 and the current markieef the shares in the Company (“Current Mafkete”)
allocated to a particular employee (option holder);

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedthe average trading price of the shares duringptkeeding
calendar month, whereby the average trading phieé be determined by calculating the total turnmoxedue in
PLN of all of the shares in the Company tradedrduthat period divided by the total number of sharaded
during such period (however, if the total valudhasf overall turnover in any particular month is éavthan PLN
100 thousand, then the Current Market Price shalt&iculated on the basis of the most recent twotimo
market average);

vii. in the event that the free float is less tH&0% of all the outstanding shares in the Compamy,Gurrent
Market Price will be established by a reputableigibn company based on a comparable valuatiorooén’s
peer companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exch@raged on P/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to subraippayment request during the first five working slay each
calendar month, provided that all employees musénke any trading restrictions related to the patehase of

the Company’s shares by Management and Supervizmayd members and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obssgaf closed periods.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, buhe total 2,705,000 options, 950,000 options were
allocated to Tomasz tagski, and 675,000 options were allocated to And@efowski while the remaining
1,080,000 options were allocated to other key eyg#e of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenues from consulting services 5,402 3,729
General and administrative expense 3 (3,395) (3,942)
Operating profit/(loss) 2,007 (213)
Finance income 5 9,656 9,945
Finance expense 5 (10,226) (8,867)
Net finance income/(expense) (570) 1,078
Profit before taxation 1,437 865
Income tax 6 - -
Profit before result from subsidiaries 1,437 865
Result from subsidiaries after taxation 8 17,589 30,790
Profit for the year 19,026 31,655

The notes on pages 110 to 115 are an integral giaihese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
After profit appropriation

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 8 455,258 439,196
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 105,054 97,170
Total non-current assets 560,312 536,366
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 475 456
Receivable from subsidiaries 4,558 1,127
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 21,574 9,862
Cash and cash equivalents 1,403 1,293
Total current assets 28,010 12,738
Total assets 588,322 549,104
Equity

Shareholders’ equity 10

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium reserve 282,873 282,873
Revaluation reserve 4,096 3,474
Retained earnings 157,455 148,749
Total shareholders’ equity 465,186 455,858
Liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 11 113,759 86,756
Total long-term liabilities 113,759 86,756

Current liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 11 5,607 1,657
Accrued interest on loans from subsidiaries 3,310 3,310
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 460 1,523
Total current liabilities 9,377 6,490
Total liabilities 123,136 93,246
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 588,322 549,104

The notes on pages 110 to 115 are an integral giaihese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 Decemb@12:

Share Share  Revaluation Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital  premium reserve earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2012 20,762 282,873 4,173 896 424,203
Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 - - (699) 32,354 31,655
Balance at 31 December 2012 20,762 282,873 3,474 8,149 455,858

Payment of dividends (see Note 10) - -

(8,171) ,178)

Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 - - 622 18,404 19,026
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (see

Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements) - - - (1,527) (1,527)

Balance at 31 December 2013 20,762 282,873 4,096 7,455 465,186

The notes on pages 110 to 115 are an integral giathese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 19,026 31,655

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period
to net cash (used in)/from operating activities:

Net finance income/(expense), net 5 570 (1,078)
Net results subsidiaries during the year 8 (17,589) (30,790)
Subtotal 2,007 (213)

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

and prepayments (29) (187)

Decrease/(increase) in receivable from subsidiarie (3,431) 2,867
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable

and accrued expense (1,063) 838
Subtotal (2,506) 3,305

Interest paid, net (3,747) (8,203)
Net cash used in operating activities (6,253) (4,898)

Cash flows from investing activities

Loans granted to subsidiaries, net of issue cost (18,788) -
Repayment of loans granted to subsidiaries 2,500 5,990
Dividend from subsidiary 8 - 6,100
Investment in subsidiaries 8 - (11,003)
Net cash used in investing activities (16,288) 1,087

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend payment (8,171) -
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 113,322 -
Repayment of bond loans (82,500) -
Net cash from financing activities 22,651 -

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 110 (3,811)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,293 5,104
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,403 1,293

The notes on pages 110 to 115 are an integral giathese Company financial statements.
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1.

General

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), is a Nethertatichited liability company with its statutory seft
Rotterdam, the Netherlands, and was incorporatetBalune 2007.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBawk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2013, 39.78% of the outstanding sharesariolled by I.T.R. 2012 B.V. , which is an inglt
subsidiary of Israel Theaters Ltd. (‘ITR 2012") (B2% through a jointly controlled partnership fodnender
Dutch law between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. an@7P6 through a jointly controlled company formed end
Dutch law between ITR 2012 and U. Dori Group) a®d78% of the outstanding shares are controlled by U
Dori Group Ltd (‘U Dori Group’) (32.11% through aiitly controlled partnership formed under Dutchvla
between ITR 2012 and ITR Dori B.V. (of which it del 50% of the shares) and 7.67% through a jointly
controlled company formed under Dutch law betweER 2012 and U. Dori Group). The remaining 20.44% of
the outstanding shares are held by the public.

The Company holds and owns (directly and indigg@ctb Polish companies. These companies are actithe
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to tharties. For additional information see Note 1.bthe
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting principles

The Company’s financial statements have been pedpamder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 afkBd of
the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning that the actiogrprinciples and measurement basis of the Cogipan
financial statements are similar to those appliégt respect to the Consolidated Financial Statemésge Notes

2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemeptg)ept for the valuation of subsidiaries which eatued
using the net asset value method. The Company ¢éimlaBtatements have been prepared in conformitiy wi
generally accepted accounting principles in thehsigands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared in acamdaith International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRS’) as adopted by the EU as described in Niote the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue from consulting services represents feagyet by the Company to its subsidiaries; this nmeds
eliminated upon consolidation.
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3. General and administrative expense

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

External services 793 909
Remuneration fees 2,499 2,869
Other 103 164
Total 3,395 3,942

4, Directors’ remuneration

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereemeo further benefits, in the periods ended 31 Dibes
2013 and 31 December 2012. Key Management Boabpeel compensation, payable by the Group, can be
presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short term employee benefits 34,5 1,562
Management bonus 582 935
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 2,116 2,497
Salary and other short term employee benefits 522 522

Management bonus 131 211
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 653 733
Salary and other short term employee benefits 311 311

Management bonus 222 144
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 533 455
Total 3,302 3,685

According to the conditions of the termination agrnent concluded in 2008 with Mr Kerem, former Riest

of the Management Board and former Chief Execudféicer of the Company, the consulting agreement
between him and the Company and its subsidiaryredpas of end of March 2009 (‘Expiration Date’).
Mr Kerem is entitled to a bonus equal to 0.5% &f fine-tax profits generated by projects that wevaeal by
the Company as at the Expiration Date. This corscchawever only those projects which are based emplits

of land with validated zoning conditions or withetlalid master plans. Moreover, Mr Kerem is ertditte an
additional bonus equal to 2.5% of the pre-tax prgdinerated by the projects that were in conswoadr were
completed as at the Expiration Date.
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4.

5.

6.

Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmard
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephone)iriguthe major part of the year, the Supervisonaigio
consisted of 6 member; as at 31 December 2013 tla@dBconsists of 5 members. Two Supervisory Board
members (Mr Arie Mientkavich and Mr Frank Roseeaydwaived their remuneration and thus did notivece
any payment from the Company. The total amount idueespect of Supervisory Board fees during 2013 is
PLN 281 thousand (EUR 67 thousand; 2012: PLN 2424hAnd (EUR 58 thousand)) and can be presented as
follows:

As at 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr Mark Segall 72 65
Mr Yair Shilhav 81 65
Mr Reuven Sharoni 78 65
Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk 50 a7
Total 281 242

(*) The amounts above were translated from EUR Riabish Zlotys (PLN) using the average exchange Fatblished by the NBP.

Net finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Interests and fees on granted loans to subsidiaries 9,402 9,847
Interest income on bank deposits 254 98
Finance income 9,656 9,945
Interest expense on bonds measured at amortizéd cos (8,352) (8,262)
Foreign exchange loss - (9)

Commissions and fees (1,874) (596)
Finance expense (10,226) (8,867)
Net finance income/(expense) (570) 1,078

Income tax

No Dutch income taxes have been recorded, primbgbause current year’s tax charge has been offsétst
the carry forward of taxable losses from the pBsalizations of these carry forward tax lossesdaegendent
upon generating sufficient taxable income in thaqokthat the carry forward tax losses are realiBabked on
all available information, it is not probable ththe carry forward tax losses are realizable andefbee no
deferred tax asset is recognized.

The Company is not recognizing deferred tax assptsax losses carried forward in the Netherlandse T
accumulated Dutch tax losses available for carrwdéod as per 31 December 2013 are estimated tollie E
1,509 thousand (2012: EUR 1,851 thousand).
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7.

9.

Personnel

The Company did not employ any personnel during fihancial years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012. The new law crisis levy that wasduced in the Netherlands during 2012 havenmoeict

on the company.

Investment in subsidiaries

The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at ttediasset value.

The movements in subsidiaries are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 439,196 403,503
Investments in subsidiaries - 11,003
Net result subsidiaries during the year 17,589 790,
Dividends received during the year - (6,100)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (1,527) -
Balance at end of the year 455,258 439,196

The Company holds and owns (directly and indirgctly Polish companies. These companies are actitreei
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to fhartles. For additional information see Note 1.bthe

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loan granted to subsidiaries

Loans as at 31 December 2013:

Charge
Nominal Year of Accrued sand Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interestrate  maturity Capital interest fees value
Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2014 7,360 2,944 - 10,304
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.75% 2014 2,500 4,814 - 7,314
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.45% 2014 - 3,956 - 3,956
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.25% 2017 79,805 2,502 (1,413) 80,894
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.05% 2016 23,550 995 (385) 24,160
Total loans granted to subsidiaries 113,215 15,211 (1,798) 126,628
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9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Loan granted to subsidiaries (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2012:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest  and fees value
Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2013 7,360 2,502 - 9,862
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 4.75% 2014 51,340 5,970 (465) 56,845
Wibor 6M +
Ronson Development Finco PLN 5.45% 2014 36,160 4,510 (345) 40,325
Total loans granted to subsidiaries 94,860 12,982 (810) 107,032

(*) The borrower may redeem the loan at any time stadirggyear from the loan agreement date.
The loans are not secured.

Shareholders’ equity

The authorized share capital of the Company cansisB00,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary sharest &1 December 2013 amounted to 272,360,000 (as at
31 December 2012: 272,360,000 shares).

According to Dutch Law, the Company has an amonat ¢f tax) of PLN 4,096 thousand (2012: PLN 3,474
thousand) as legal reserve relating to unrealieedlts of changes in fair value of an investmeapprty owned

by one of the Company’s subsidiaries. This legs¢ree is not available for dividend distribution.

On 27 June 2013, the General Meeting of Sharetmhgproved the distribution of a dividend for theahcial

year 2012 amounting to PLN 8,170,800 in total orNRLO3 per ordinary share. The dividend day was
determined as 1 August 2013, and the dividend aabqn 20 August 2013.

Floating rate bond loans

As at 31 December 2013, the floating rate bonds loamprise a loan principal amount of PLN 121,300
thousand plus accrued interest of PLN 672 thousainds costs directly attributed to the bond isseafehich
are amortized based on the effective interest ni@thmounting to PLN 2,606 thousand. As 31 Decer2bén

all covenants were meet.

For additional information see Notes 28 and 2%&Qonsolidated Financial Statements.

Commitments and contingencies

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had no commitgand contingencies.

Related party transactions

During the financial years ended 31 December 2048 &1 December 2012, respectively, there were no
transactions between the Company on the one haddt{sashareholders, their affiliates and otheates parties
which would qualify as not being at arm’s length.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies

For a description of the Company’s financial risemagement, objectives and policies reference isentad
Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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15.

16.

Information about agreed-upon engagements of hCompany’s auditor
Information about audit agreements and the valuges those agreements is disclosed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Audit remuneratioft’ 630 562
Reimbursed audit review costs (192) (101)
Total audit remuneration for the expense of the Company 438 461

@ Audit remuneration includes amounts paid and du¢héo Company’s auditors worldwide for professionatvices
related to the audit and review of unconsolidated aonsolidated financial statements of the Compang its
subsidiaries for the relevant year (excluding fleegax advisory services). The part of the auel@ felated to the Dutch
auditor amounted to PLN 195 thousand (EUR 47 thadjstor 2013 and PLN 170 thousand (EUR 41 thousaod) f
2012.

@ Costs in respect of the audit review of the Compafigss and third quarter reports have been reiméaitsy one of the
Company’s shareholders. For an explanation refereceade to Note 38 to the Consolidated FinanciateBtents
(under ‘Other’).

Subsequent events

For a description of the Company’s subsequent syarference is made to Note 43 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Rotterdam,
5 March 2014

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer I8a and Marketing Director
Ronen Ashkenazi Israel Greidinger

The Supervisory Board

Mark Segall Arie Mientkavich Przemyslaw Kowalczk

Reuven Sharoni Yair Shilhav
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Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 30 of the Articles of #aiation,

1) the Management Board, with prior approval of th@&uisory Board, shall determine which portion loé t
profits — the positive balance of the income statieim shall be reserved. The profit remaining dbalat the
disposal of the general meeting;

2) profit distributions may only be made to the extdrd equity exceeds the paid and called up pathef
capital increased with the reserves which must dmtained pursuant to the law;

3) Dividends shall be paid after the adoption of thal Accounts evidencing that the payment of dinits
is lawful. The General Meeting shall, upon a pr@bad the Management Board, which proposal must be
approved by the Supervisory Board, at least detegrfi) the method of payment in case payments adem
in cash (ii) the date and (iii) the address or adsies on which the dividends shall be payable;

4) the Management Board, with prior approval of theo&uisory Board, may resolve to pay an interim
dividend provided the requirement of the seconcagraph has been complied with as shown by interim
accounts drawn up in accordance with the provisicthe law;

5) the General meeting may, subject to due observaittes provision of paragraph 2 and upon a propbsgal
the Management Board, which proposal has been aegprby the Supervisory Board, resolve to make
distributions out of a reserve which need not tarfzéntained by virtue of the law;

6) cash payments in relation to shares if and in aagahe distributions are payable outside the é&tthds,
shall be made in the currency of the country willeeeshares are listed and in accordance with thkcaple
rules of the country in which the shares of the @any have been admitted to an official listing on a
regulated stock exchange. If such currency is metsime as the legal tender in the Netherlandantioaint
shall be calculated against the exchange raterdigted by the Management Board at the end of the day
prior to the day on which the General meeting shedblve to make the distributions in accordancea wi
paragraph.1l above. If and in as far as the Companthe first day on which the distribution is palgab
pursuant to governmental measures or other exirargdcircumstances beyond its control, is not able
pay on the place outside the Netherlands or inréiievant foreign currency, the Management Board is
authorized to determine to that extent that theygayts shall be made in euros and on one or mocelia
the Netherlands. In such case the provisions ofitstesentence of this paragraph shall not apply.

7) the General meeting may, upon a proposal by thealfiag Directors, which proposal was approved by the
Supervisory Board, resolve to pay dividends, or endistributions out of a reserve which need nobé¢o
maintained by virtue of the law, wholly or partiaih the form of shares in the capital of the Compa

8) a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribugmpires after 5 years;

9) for the calculation of the amount of profit distrtibn, the shares held by the Company shall baudrdl.

Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2013, as at theofidlés report, Management proposes to allocatentt
profit for the year 2013 amounting to PLN 19,026uband to Retained earnings. This proposal has been
reflected in the Company's Statement of Financaditidon per 31 December 2013. However, in line vifta
prevailing dividend policy, management and the Boaf Supervisory Directors will be evaluating the
possibility of declaring a dividend for financia¢gr 2013 in light of the Company's financial pasiti taking
into account (i) the current and expected balardmetsof the Company, with close observance of the a
balance-sheet linked debt covenants, (i) the firnneeds of the Company aiming to be ranked astong
leading residential developers in Poland and ¢lidanging market environment. This evaluation masnay not
result in changing the proposed profit appropriafior financial year 2013. The boards intend toetakfinal
decision ultimately before the date of the publaratof the agenda for the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to be held before the end of June.2Bddh agenda will reflect the final proposal fooff
appropriation.

Subsequent events — other information
Refer to Note 43 of the Consolidated FinancialeStegnts (pages 104 and 105).
Auditor’s report

The auditor’s report is set up on pages 43 and 44.
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